
Administrative Office  
1717 North Indian Hill  
Boulevard, Suite B 
Claremont, CA 91711 
Phone (909) 623-6131 
Fax (909) 623-4073 

Clinical Office / Adult  
2008 North Garey Avenue 
Pomona, CA 91767 
Phone (909) 623-6131 
Fax (909) 865-9281 

Clinical Office / Child & Family 
1900 Royalty Drive, Suite 180 
Pomona, CA 91767 

Phone (909) 766-7340 

Fax (909) 865-0730 

MHSA Administrative Office 
2001 North Garey Avenue 
Pomona, CA 91767 
Phone (909) 623-6131 
Fax (909) 326-4690 

Wellness Center 
1403 North Garey Avenue  
Pomona, CA 91767 
Phone (909) 242-7600 
Fax (909) 242-7691 

www.tricitymhs.org 

 

 

 

 

 

    

HOPE. WELLNESS. COMMUNITY. 
Let’s find it together. 

Founded in 1960  
by the residents 

of Pomona, 
Claremont and La 
Verne. 

 

www.tricitymhs.org  

 

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
 

AGENDA 
   

GOVERNING BOARD / MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION  

REGULAR JOINT MEETING  
 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2023 AT 5:00 P.M. 

 

Meeting Place:    MHSA Administration Building 

           2001 North Garey Avenue, Pomona, CA  91767 

 

To join the meeting on-line clink on the following link: 

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8ca105b8/07i5jNjW3UO0Vfm-

Ny5LkA?u=https://tricitymhs-org.zoom.us/j/83025289013?pwd=li5FB-

REPv4wVWrP1P8BlMJ2xgvGkbl8.5tPf5UjI8NYgHfPR 

Passcode: awFL+Wy4 

 
Public Participation.  Section 54954.3 of the Brown Act provides an opportunity for 

members of the public to address the Governing Board on any item of interest to the public, 

before or during the consideration of the item, that is within the subject matter jurisdiction 

of the Governing Board.  Therefore, members of the public are invited to speak on any 

matter on or off the agenda.  If the matter is an agenda item, you will be given the 

opportunity to address the legislative body when the matter is considered. If you wish to 

speak on a matter which is not on the agenda, you will be given the opportunity to do so at 

the Public Comment section. No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the 

Agenda.  The Chair reserves the right to place limits on duration of comments.  

In-person participation: raise your hand when the Governing Board Chair invites the 

public to speak. 

Online participation: you may provide audio public comment by connecting to the meeting 

online through the zoom link provided; and use the Raise Hand feature to request to speak. 
 

Please  note  that  virtual  attendance  is  a  courtesy  offering  and  that  technical difficulties 

shall not require that a meeting be postponed. 
 

Written participation: you may also submit a comment by writing an email to 

molmos@tricitymhs.org. All email messages received by 3:30 p.m. will be shared with the 

Governing Board before the meeting.  
 

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda 

and distributed by Tri-City Mental Health Authority to all or a majority of the Governing 

Board orMHC less than 72 hours prior to this meeting, are available for public inspection 

at 1717 N. Indian Hill Blvd., Suite B, in Claremont during normal business hours. 

In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, any person with a disability who requires 

an accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should contact JPA 

Administrator/Clerk Mica Olmos at (909) 451-6421 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

  

GOVERNING BOARD 
 

Jed Leano, Chair 
(Claremont) 
John Nolte, Vice-Chair 
(Pomona) 
Carolyn Cockrell, Member 
(La Verne) 
Paula Lantz, Member 
(Pomona) 
Wendy Lau, Member 
(La Verne) 
Elizabeth Ontiveros-Cole, 
Member 
(Pomona) 
Ronald T. Vera, Member 
(Claremont) 

 

http://www.tricitymhs.org/
http://www.tricitymhs.org/
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8ca105b8/07i5jNjW3UO0Vfm-Ny5LkA?u=https://tricitymhs-org.zoom.us/j/83025289013?pwd=li5FB-REPv4wVWrP1P8BlMJ2xgvGkbl8.5tPf5UjI8NYgHfPR
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8ca105b8/07i5jNjW3UO0Vfm-Ny5LkA?u=https://tricitymhs-org.zoom.us/j/83025289013?pwd=li5FB-REPv4wVWrP1P8BlMJ2xgvGkbl8.5tPf5UjI8NYgHfPR
https://link.edgepilot.com/s/8ca105b8/07i5jNjW3UO0Vfm-Ny5LkA?u=https://tricitymhs-org.zoom.us/j/83025289013?pwd=li5FB-REPv4wVWrP1P8BlMJ2xgvGkbl8.5tPf5UjI8NYgHfPR
mailto:molmos@tricitymhs.org


TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY HOPE. WELLNESS. COMMUNITY. Let’s find it together. 

www.tricitymhs.org 

 
GB / MHC REGULAR JOINT MEETING AGENDA – DECEMBER 20, 2023      PAGE 2 OF 5 

 

 

    

GOVERNING BOARD CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chair Leano calls the meeting to Order. 

 

ROLL CALL  

 

Board Members Carolyn Cockrell, Paula Lantz, Wendy Lau, Elizabeth Ontiveros-Cole, and Ron 

Vera; Vice-Chair John Nolte; and Chair Jed Leano. 

 

MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION ROLL CALL 

     

GB Liaison Carolyn Cockrell; Commissioners Clarence D. Cernal, Isabella A. Chavez, Nichole 

Perry, Joan M. Reyes, Twila L. Stephens, and Toni L Watson; Vice-Chair Wray Ryback; and Chair 

Anne Henderson.  

 

POSTING OF AGENDA 

 

The Agenda is posted 72 hours prior to each meeting at the following Tri-City locations: Clinical 

Facility, 2008 N. Garey Avenue in Pomona; Wellness Center, 1403 N. Garey Avenue in Pomona; 

Royalty Offices, 1900 Royalty Drive #180/280 in Pomona; MHSA Office, 2001 N. Garey Avenue 

in Pomona; and on the Tri-City’s website: http://www.tricitymhs.org  

 
 

 

 

 
TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY HOUSING OVERVIEW 

 
 

 

 

 

 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION REGULAR 

MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 12, 2023  

 

Recommendation:   “A motion to approve the Mental Health Commission Minutes of 

its Regular Meeting of September 12, 2023.” 

 

2. SELECTION OF AN AD-HOC COMMITTEE TO PREPARE THE 2023 DATA 

NOTEBOOK FOR LOCAL BEHAVIORAL HEALTH BOARDS AND 

COMMISSIONS 
 

Recommendation:   “That the Mental Health Commission create an Ad-Hoc Committee 

to work with TCMHA staff to complete the 2023 Data Notebook for FY 2021-22.” 

 

 

MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION 

 

PRESENTATION 

http://www.tricitymhs.org/
http://www.tricitymhs.org/


TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY HOPE. WELLNESS. COMMUNITY. Let’s find it together. 

www.tricitymhs.org 

 
GB / MHC REGULAR JOINT MEETING AGENDA – DECEMBER 20, 2023      PAGE 3 OF 5 
 

 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 9, 2023 GOVERNING BOARD  

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING  

 

Recommendation:  “A motion to approve the Minutes of the Governing Board Adjourned 

Regular Meeting of August 9, 2023.” 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 15, 2023 GOVERNING 

BOARD  REGULAR MEETING  

 

Recommendation:  “A motion to approve the Minutes of the Governing Board Regular 

Meeting of November 15, 2023.” 

 

5. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 727 ESTABLISHING THE 2024 

MEETING SCHEDULE OF THE TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

GOVERNING BOARD AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION  

 

Recommendation:  “A motion to adopt Resolution No. 727 establishing the dates, time, 

and place where the Governing Board and the Mental Health Commission Meetings are 

held.” 

 

6. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 728 ADOPTING TRI-CITY MENTAL 

HEALTH AUTHORITY’S PUBLISHED RATES EFFECTIVE FY 2022-23 

 

Recommendation:  “A motion to adopt Resolution No. 728 establishing TCMHA’s 

Published Rates effective Fiscal Year 2022-23.” 

 
 

 

 

 
7. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 729 AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A SUBORDINATION AND 

INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT WITH RESTORE NEIGHBORHOODS, LA, 

INC. (RNLA) AND THE LENDERS OF THE CLAREMONT GARDENS SENIOR 

HOUSING PROJECT AT 956 W BASELINE ROAD IN CLAREMONT, 

CALIFORNIA  
 

Recommendation:  “A motion to adopt Resolution No. 729 authorizing the Executive 

Director to execute a new “Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement” for the Claremont 

Gardens senior housing project located at 956 W. Baseline Road in Claremont, California. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

http://www.tricitymhs.org/


TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY HOPE. WELLNESS. COMMUNITY. Let’s find it together. 

www.tricitymhs.org 

 
GB / MHC REGULAR JOINT MEETING AGENDA – DECEMBER 20, 2023      PAGE 4 OF 5 
 

 

    
 

8. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 730 APPROVING THE 

SUBCONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR THE HUD CONTINUUM OF CARE 

PROGRAM WITH THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY (LACDA); AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 
 

Recommendation:  “A motion to adopt Resolution No. 730 Authorizing the Executive 

Director to execute the Subcontractor Amendment with LACDA for the HUD Continuum 

of Care Program.” 

 

 

 

 

 
9. RIMMI HUNDAL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

 

10. DIANA ACOSTA, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER REPORT 

 

11. LIZ RENTERIA, CHIEF CLINICAL OFFICER REPORT 

 

12. SEEYAM TEIMOORI, MEDICAL DIRECTOR REPORT 

 

13. DANA BARFORD, DIRECTOR OF MHSA AND ETHNIC SERVICES REPORT 

 

14. NATALIE MAJORS-STEWART, CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER REPORT 

 
GOVERNING BOARD / MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 

Members of the Governing Board or Mental Health Commission may make brief comments or 

request information about mental health needs, services, facilities, or special problems that may 

need to be placed on a future Governing Board or Mental Health Commission Agenda. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

The Public may at this time speak regarding any Tri-City Mental Health Authority related issue.  

No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the Agenda.  The public participating on-

line can make a comment by using the ‘raised hand’ feature. The Chair reserves the right to place 

limits on duration of comments.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next Regular Meeting of the Mental Health Commission will be held on Tuesday, January 

9, 2024 at 3:30 p.m., in the MHSA Administrative Office, 2001 North Garey Avenue, Pomona, 

California.  

 

 

MONTHLY STAFF REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

http://www.tricitymhs.org/


TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY HOPE. WELLNESS. COMMUNITY. Let’s find it together. 

www.tricitymhs.org 

 
GB / MHC REGULAR JOINT MEETING AGENDA – DECEMBER 20, 2023      PAGE 5 OF 5 
 

 

    
 

The next Regular Meeting of the Governing Board will be held on Wednesday, January 17, 

2024 at 5:00 p.m., in the MHSA Administrative Office, 2001 North Garey Avenue, Pomona, 

California. 

    

 

MICAELA P. OLMOS 

       JPA ADMINISTRATOR/CLERK 

 

http://www.tricitymhs.org/


 
 

MINUTES 
 REGULAR MEETING OF THE MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2023 – 3:30 P.M.   

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 
 
 
 
 

The Mental Health Commission held on Tuesday, September 12, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. in the MHSA 
Office located at 2001 North Garey Avenue, Pomona, California. 
 
CALL TO ORDER Chair Henderson called the meeting to order at 3:34 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL   Roll call was taken by Chief Clinical Officer Renteria. 
 
 MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION  
 

PRESENT: Anne Henderson, Chair  
  Carolyn Cockrell, GB Member Liaison 
  Toni L. Watson 
  Nichole Perry 
  Joan M. Reyes 
  Twila L. Stephens  

            
 ABSENT:  Wray Ryback, Vice-Chair 
  Clarence D. Cernal 

  Isabella A. Chavez 
 

STAFF:   
 
PRESENT: Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
  Elizabeth Renteria, Chief Clinical Officer 
  Dana Barford, Director of MHSA & Ethnic Services 
  Jessica Arrellano, Administrative Assistant 

 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE JULY 11, 2023 MENTAL HEALTH 

COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
 

Commissioner Watson moved, and Commissioner Reyes seconded, to approve the Mental 
Health Commission Minutes of their Regular Meeting of July 11, 2023. The motion was carried 
by the following vote: AYES: Commissioner Watson, Commissioner Stephens, Commissioners 
Reyes, Commissioner Perry, GB Liaison Cockrell; and Chair Henderson. NOES: None. ABSTAIN: 
None. ABSENT: Commissioner Cernal, Commissioner Chavez, and Vice-Chair Ryback. 

 
 

 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Mental Health Commission Regular Meeting – Minutes 
September 12, 2023 
Page 2 of 6 
 
II. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR MONTHLY REPORT 

 
Executive Director Hundal gave an update regarding Behavioral Health Reform, also known as 
the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA). She shared that in March of 2023 Governor Newsom’s 
administration announced their plan for behavioral health reform; that the initiative, Senate Bill 
326, is known as the modernization of the Mental Health Services Act; that it is designed to 
improve how California treats mental illness, substance abuse, and the homeless; that this bill will 
lead to at least one billion every year in local assistance for housing and residential services for 
people experiencing mental illness and substance abuse disorders; that it will allow MHSA funds 
to serve people with substance abuse disorders; that it will no longer be called Mental Health 
Services Act (MHSA) but Behavioral Health Services Act (BHSA). She added that over the past 
month, the initiative has gone through several amendments and revisions, with additional 
amendments to come; that Tri-City Mental Health Authority Staff has been on calls with the State; 
that County Behavioral Health Directors Association (CBHDA) has been lobbying for TCMHA and 
recommending their amendments to the State. Executive Director Hundal explained that due to 
the expansion to cover substance abuse disorders, the bill updates the name from MHSA to 
BHSA; that if the bill passes there are going to be three buckets of funding; that 30% of the funding 
will go for housing intervention for children and families, 35% will go for full service partnerships, 
which will also help with the implementation of CARE Court, 35% of the funding will support 
behavioral health services and supports, which includes early intervention, outreach and 
engagement, Workforce Education and Training (WET), Capital Facilities and Technology Needs, 
as well as innovative pilots that they have. She shared that the initiative is scheduled to go on the 
ballot on March 5th; that if it is approved, we have enough time to make the changes; that changes 
go into effect in 2026; that until then, services will continue as is; that staff is on the calls listening 
to the most up to date information; that staff is waiting for the final draft of the bill; that TCMHA 
will continue to provide programming and services, although structure and funding allocation may 
change to meet the new requirements. She assured the Commission that they will still receive an 
annual update each year; that they are still in their three-year plan phase; that the next two years 
will be business as usual; that once the bill is passed, TCMHA will host a community forum in 
March of 2024 to provide an update regarding the changes that will take place. Executive Director 
Hundal concluded by saying that whatever changes come, staff will be ready. 
 
COMMISSION ITEMS AND REPORTS 
 
Commissioner Reyes shared about a new bill that will be placed on the ballot regarding the shift 
from restitution for the State that juveniles pay when there is a crime to the State; that it is 
Assembly Bill 1186 and it proposes an end to youth being charged restitution fines, an amount 
owed by those who are found to have committed the crime and then paid to victims of the crime; 
that if this is something that TCMHA can weigh in on. She added another item regarding mental 
health and gun violence; that the link between the mentally ill and crime is very low; that a few 
months back, there was discussion about contacting behavioral health agencies about a Public 
Service announcement that would destigmatize the link between the mentally ill and gun violence; 
that those who are mentally ill might be reluctant to seek care since it stigmatizes them further. 
 
Chair Henderson mentioned that she received information about this year’s Data Notebook and 
inquired if any other Commissioners received information about it as well. Executive Director 
Hundal responded that staff received information regarding the data notebook once the meeting 
agenda was already posted but it will be presented at next month’s Mental Health Commission 
meeting. 
 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Mental Health Commission Regular Meeting – Minutes 
September 12, 2023 
Page 3 of 6 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) 
 
Chair Henderson opened the Public Hearing for the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA). She 
referred to MHSA Projects Manager, Sarah Rodriguez, who is the facilitator for the Public Hearing. 
Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services Barford expressed her gratitude to the Commission and 
the community members for attending; that the public hearing is for a new innovation proposal; 
that the proposal is regarding the community planning process for innovations; that this was 
developed out of a need; that there was a desire to strengthen community engagement and 
stakeholder involvement which evolved into this project. 
 
MHSA Project Manager Rodriguez introduced herself and began a land acknowledgement. She 
recognized that Tri-City Mental Health Authority operates on Tonga Land; that they honor the 
Tonga ancestors; that they are thankful for the opportunity to continue to identify ways to serve 
the Tonga people, support the preservation of their culture and partner with this historically 
underrepresented people. She continued to present about the background of the Mental Health 
Services Act, also known as MHSA Act; that in 2004, California voters passed the Mental Health 
Services Act, Proposition 63; that in 2005, the new funding began, and it was a huge overhaul for 
mental health services; that back in the 1960’s a lot of the State hospitals closed down and it 
continued through the 1990’s; that MHSA is funded from the Millionaires tax, which is a one 
percent tax that comes from anyone whose personal income exceeds a million dollars. She 
continued to share that MHSA funding is robust; that the funding originally accounted for 10% of 
California community mental health budget, which has grown to 24%, almost a quarter of all 
funding in California. She explained that there are five components of MHSA: Community Service 
Supports (CSS), Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI), Innovation (INN), Capital Facilities and 
Technological Needs (CFTN), and Workforce Training and Education (WET). MHSA Project 
Manager Rodriguez shared a quote, thanked the community members in attendance, and added 
that it is essential to involve the voice and input of community members in the creation of programs 
and services. She stated that the initiative is focused on stakeholder involvement and impact; that 
a stakeholder can be anyone who has an investment, an interest, or experience with mental and 
behavioral health services in the community of Claremont, La Verne, or Pomona; that stakeholder 
input acts as one of the pillars that determines how funds are spent; that public funds cannot be 
spent without public input; that every community is unique and the diverse perspectives of various 
individuals and cultures that live in the community are necessary. She expressed that Tri-City 
Mental Health Authority desires the community to be involved in the process of building something 
for them to serve the community. 
 
Workforce Education and Training Supervisor Colt shared that she was recently promoted to a 
new position as Workforce Education and Training Supervisor; that she is still overseeing 
Innovation; that she started this project and continues to be a part of it; she introduced two new 
members on the Innovation team, Paulina, the Program Coordinator and Rachel, the Clinical 
Wellness Advocate. She continued to explain how the plan came to fruition; that it began with a 
proposed Restorative Practices for Improving Mental Health Plan, a community and stakeholder 
involved plan that was proposed in 2021; that the plan was denied at the State level by the Mental 
Health Services and Oversight Accountability Commission; that one of the reasons they did not 
approve it was because they did not believe that there was enough stakeholder involvement in 
the process. She shared that staff went back to the drawing board with work groups and held five 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Mental Health Commission Regular Meeting – Minutes 
September 12, 2023 
Page 4 of 6 
 
Innovation work groups over the course of 2020-2023; that with each meeting, attendance 
declined; that staff was led to discuss and brainstorm how to increase stakeholder involvement to 
gather community input; that the process eventually led to creating the community planning 
process for Innovation projects. She explained that the project involves taking the Innovation 
funds and putting them toward the community planning process; that the community planning 
process is implemented ever year during the creation of the annual plan or when there is a three 
year update; that there are stakeholder meetings and work groups where ideas and issues in the 
community are brought to the forefront, which then inform new plans or projects; that Tri-City 
Mental Health Authority would really like to focus on getting the community involved; that they 
would like to hold focus groups with diverse community demographics; that they would like to 
develop relationships with cultural brokers; that they want to increase peer involvement. She 
defined peers as those who know how the services are being used, those who use the services, 
and those who can provide feedback on the services. She shared that for this project, there is an 
estimated cost of 675,000 dollars over the course of three years; that the goals for the community 
planning process is to increase community participation; that they have already started by sharing 
the flyers for the public hearing and talking about it at every outreach event and meeting that staff 
attends; that a lot of effort is being put forth to increase participation in the community; that they 
would like feedback from the target populations; that they want to know their awareness of mental 
health and services that TCMHA provides, the best way to reach them, the type of resources they 
need, any areas of concern; that they also want to gain a better understanding of the issues faced 
by persons with substance abuse disorders, as well as people experiencing homelessness. 
Workforce Education and Training Supervisor Colt referred to the new legislation, SB 326, stating 
that it will benefit the program if it passes. She mentioned that they also want to increase their 
marketing and communication through marketing materials and social media, since they know a 
lot of community members are on social media; that they would like to apply all the knowledge 
that is learned through the process to develop new ideas for the Innovation plan, the three-year 
plan and the annual updates. She shared the learning questions for the project that inquire about 
the effects of peer-led focus groups, peer involvement, longevity of peer involvement, in-person 
meetings, marketing strategies and more; that they would like to focus on the target populations 
which are African American Adults and Youth, Spanish Speaking Adults and Youth, Older Adults, 
People experiencing homelessness and Substance Abuse Disorders, LGBTQ+, Transitioning 
Adolescent Youth and Adults, Family/Loved ones of persons served by Tri-City and Law 
Enforcement and First Responders. She explained a breakdown of the budget for the project; that 
over the course of three years, the budget includes direct salaries for staff; that they like to hire 
peer consultants who are local to the community; that it is someone who can help build the peer 
base; that they will also be hiring a marketing team; that they would like to provide stipends and 
meals as an incentive for those who participate in the stakeholder meetings; that supplies and 
transportation vouchers are also included in the budget, which totals out to $675,000. 
 
Workforce Education and Training Supervisor Colt concluded by sharing a roadmap of how the 
project started and where it is going; that the Restorative Practices for Mental Health was denied 
in June 2021; that workgroups were held from 2022-2023; that the plan was drafted at the 
beginning of 2023, then it was sent to the Mental Health Services Oversight Accountability 
Commission for technical support and make sure the project was on the right track; that they 
offered some input to add substance abuse disorder and homelessness to the plan; that the plan 
was sent to the TCMHA executive team for their review and input; that it is now coming to the 
Mental Health Commission for approval and it will be going to the Governing Board for approval 
the following week; that it will be going to MHSOAC in October and that it should be approved.  
 
Workforce Education and Training Supervisor Colt opened it up for public comment. 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Mental Health Commission Regular Meeting – Minutes 
September 12, 2023 
Page 5 of 6 
 
Commissioner Reyes inquired about the target populations listed, specifically about adding the 
Asian American and Native American groups. Workforce Education and Training Supervisor Colt 
responded in the affirmative, stating that she will add those groups to the list. Chair Henderson 
added that the disabled population is also missing from the list. Workforce Education and Training 
Supervisor Colt responded in the affirmative, stating that she will add them as well. 
 
Commissioner Stephens inquired about the plan that was previously denied and if this one is 
different. 
 
A member of the public made a comment stating that it is possible that the community may hear 
about events but they may not remember and might need more support. 
 
Another member of the public, Trent West, inquired about the $675,000 budget and if that is for 
the entire Innovation plan or if there are other innovation projects being funded. Director of MHSA 
and Ethnic Services Barford responded by saying that there are two projects that are ongoing; 
that they have this dollar amount for this specific project and they receive 5% on an annual basis 
of the MHSA funding that come to them for Innovation funding. Member of the public, Trent West, 
inquired about the total budget for the project, more specifically, the annual budget for innovation 
projects for Tri-City Mental Health Authority. Executive Director Hundal responded by saying that 
whatever number they get from the State, that 5% of that will always go towards Innovation, but 
it is difficult to give an exact dollar amount due to the fluctuating nature of the Millionaires tax. 
Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services Barford responded by directing Mr. West to the budget in 
the 2 year plan that is posted on the website. Mr. West gave suggestions to increase participation; 
that TCMHA should attempt to include input from caregivers; that if there is a way to reach out to 
them, it would be helpful to hear their feedback regarding programs for their loved ones that might 
need a community; that the caregivers may be more high functioning than the clients. 
 
Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services responded by sharing that TCMHA has a close relationship 
with a program called Family that is designed for caregivers; that they support the program that 
they have the opportunity to let them know what the needs are, the needs of their clients and the 
person they are working with. 
 
Mr. West inquired about where to get more information about services that are available for clients 
who need transportation assistance to get to appointments and etc. Workforce Education and 
Training Supervisor Colt responded by sharing about the Community Navigators; that there are 
flyers about the Community Navigators on the table. 
 
Commissioner Perry inquired about the peers and where they are coming from. Workforce 
Education and Training Supervisor Colt responded by stating that peers are those who are 
receiving services or who have graduated from services and know Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
well; that it is one of the reasons they would like to work with a peer support consultant in the 
area; that going through the wellness center to work with peers who have received services would 
be the people that they want involved. She then acknowledged that everyone in the room is also 
a stakeholder. 
 
Commissioner Watson moved, and Commissioner Stephens seconded, to close the Public 
Hearing. The motion was carried by the following vote: AYES: Commissioner Watson, 
Commissioner Stephens, Commissioners Reyes, Commissioner Perry, GB Liaison Cockrell; and 
Chair Henderson. NOES: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Cernal, 
Commissioner Chavez, and Vice-Chair Ryback. 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Mental Health Commission Regular Meeting – Minutes 
September 12, 2023 
Page 6 of 6 
 
Commissioner Watson moved, and Commissioner Reyes seconded, to approve the Community 
Planning Process for Innovation Projects and using the $675,000 of Mental Health Services Act 
Innovation Plan Funds. The motion was carried by the following vote: AYES: Commissioner 
Watson, Commissioner Stephens, Commissioners Reyes, Commissioner Perry, GB Liaison 
Cockrell; and Chair Henderson. NOES: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Cernal, 
Commissioner Chavez, and Vice-Chair Ryback. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 4:17 p.m., on consensus of the Mental Health Commission its meeting of September 12, 2023 
was adjourned. The next Regular Meeting of the Mental Health Commission will be held on 
Tuesday, October 10, 2023 at 3:30 p.m., in the MHSA Administrative Office, 2001 North Garey 
Avenue, Pomona, California. 
 
 
 
       
Elizabeth Renteria, Chief Clinical Officer 



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 DATE: December 20, 2023 

 
TO:  Tri-City Mental Health Authority Mental Health Commission  

    
FROM:  Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director                  
 
BY:  Dana Barford, Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services   
   
SUBJECT:    Selection of an Ad-Hoc Committee to Prepare the 2023 Data Notebook 

for Local Behavioral Health Boards and Commissions  
 
    

Summary: 
 
The Tri-City Mental Health Commission participates in the preparation of the California 
Behavioral Health Planning Council’s annual Data Notebook project. Therefore, Members 
of the Mental Health Commission customarily form an Ad-Hoc Committee to work with 
Tri-City Mental Health Authority staff to complete the 2023 Data Notebook.  
 
Background: 
 
At its Regular Meeting of July 11, 2023, the Mental Health Commission selected three 
goals for Fiscal Year 2023-24 as follows:  1) to have 100% quorum at all of the regularly 
scheduled meetings of the Mental Health Commission; 2) to participate in community 
events, programs, and advisory councils; and 3) to prepare the 2023 Data Notebook for 
Local Behavioral Health Boards and Commissions. Accordingly, the Mental Health 
Commission will create an Ad-Hoc Committee to oversee goal #3.  
 
The Data Notebook is a structured format to review information and report on each 
county’s behavioral health services. This system includes both mental health and 
substance use treatment services designed for specific age groups of adults or children 
and youth. Local behavioral health boards/commissions (local boards) are required to 
review performance outcome data for services in their county and to report their findings 
each year to the California Behavioral Health Planning Council (CBHPC). These 
responses are then analyzed by staff to create a yearly report to inform policy makers, 
stakeholders, and the public.  
 
The California Behavioral Health Planning Council (CBHPC) is under federal and state 
mandate to advocate on behalf of adults with severe mental illness and children with 
severe emotional disturbance and their families. The CBHPC is also statutorily required 
to advise the Legislature on behavioral health issues, policies, and priorities in California.  
 
 
 
 



Tri-City Mental Health Commission 
Selection of an Ad-Hoc Committee to Prepare the 2023 Data Notebook for Local Behavioral 
Health Boards and Commissions  
November 14, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends that the Mental Health Commission create an Ad-Hoc Committee to 
work with Tri-City staff to complete the Data Notebook for FY 2021-22.  
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 2-A:  CBHPC 2023 Data Notebook Survey Document 



1 
 

DATA NOTEBOOK 2023 

FOR CALIFORNIA 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 



2 
 

Prepared by California Behavioral Health Planning Council, in collaboration with:          
California Association of Local Behavioral Health Boards/Commissions 

 

 
 

 
The California Behavioral Health Planning Council (Council) is under federal and state 
mandate to advocate on behalf of adults with severe mental illness and children with 
severe emotional disturbance and their families.  The Council is also statutorily required 
to advise the Legislature on behavioral health issues, policies, and priorities in 
California. The Council advocates for an accountable system of seamless, responsive 
services that are strength-based, consumer and family member driven, recovery 
oriented, culturally, and linguistically responsive and cost effective.  Council 
recommendations promote cross-system collaboration to address the issues of access 
and effective treatment for the recovery, resilience, and wellness of Californians living 
with severe mental illness. 
 
For general information, you may contact the following email address or telephone 
number: 
DataNotebook@CBHPC.dhcs.ca.gov  
(916) 701-8211 
 
Or, you may contact us by postal mail at:  
 
Data Notebook 
California Behavioral Health Planning Council 
1501 Capitol Avenue, MS 2706 
P.O. Box 997413 Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 
 
For questions regarding the SurveyMonkey online survey, please contact Justin Boese 
at Justin.Boese@cbhpc.dhcs.ca.gov 
 

mailto:DataNotebook@CBHPC.dhcs.ca.gov
mailto:Justin.Boese@cbhpc.dhcs.ca.gov
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/CBHPC-PlanningCouncilWelcome.aspx


3 
 

 
NOTICE: 

 

This document contains a textual preview of the California Behavioral Health Planning 
Council 2023 Data Notebook survey, as well as supplemental information and 
resources. It is meant as a reference document only. Some of the survey items 
appear differently on the live survey due to the difference in formatting.  

 

 

 

DO NOT RETURN THIS DOCUMENT. 
Please use it for preparation purposes only. 

 

 

To complete your 2023 Data Notebook, please use the following 
link and fill out the survey online: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/DP8XG65 

 
 
Please note, if you are working from a PDF, scanned image or 
photocopy, you will need to Copy/Paste or type the above 
address into your browser bar. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/DP8XG65


4 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Introduction: Purpose and Goals of the 2023 Data Notebook……………….………….....5 

• Table 1-A: California Children and Youth: Access Rates for Specialty Mental 
Health Services, Fiscal Year 2021-22………………………………………………...7 

• Table 1-B: California Adults and Older Adults, Access Rates for Specialty Mental 
Health Services, Fiscal Year 2021-22.……………………………………………..…8 

Part I. Standard Yearly Data and Questions for Counties and Local Advisory Boards….9 
  

• Adult Residential Care Facilities that Serve Clients with SMI……………..…….....9 
• Homelessness: Programs and Services in California Counties………………..….11 
• Child Welfare Services: Foster Children in Certain Types of Congregate Care…13 

 
Part II. Stakeholder Engagement in the Public Mental Health System ……..…………..15 
 

• Context and Background………………………………………………………….......15 
• Challenges and Barriers ……………………………………………………..……….16 
• Key stakeholders ……...…….………………………………………..……………….17 
• Best Practices for Stakeholder Engagement ……………………………………….19 
• MHSA Community Program Planning Process …………………………………….21 
• Resources ……………………………………………………………………………...22 
• Part II Data Notebook Questions …………………………………………………….23 

Post-Survey Questionnaire …………………………………………………………………..27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

CBHPC 2023 Data Notebook: Introduction 
  
What is the Data Notebook? Purpose and Goals 
 
The Data Notebook is a structured format to review information and report on aspects of 
each county’s behavioral health services. A different part of the public behavioral health 
system is addressed each year, because the overall system is very large and complex.  
This system includes both mental health and substance use treatment services 
designed for individuals across the lifespan.  
 
Local behavioral health boards/commissions are required to review performance 
outcomes data for their county and to report their findings to the California Behavioral 
Health Planning Council (Planning Council). To provide structure for the report and to 
make the reporting easier, each year a Data Notebook is created for local behavioral 
health boards to complete and submit to the Planning Council. Discussion questions 
seek input from local boards and their departments. These responses are analyzed by 
Planning Council staff to create annual reports to inform policy makers and the public.  
 
The Data Notebook structure and questions are designed to meet important goals: 

• To help local boards meet their legal mandates1 to review and comment on their 
county’s performance outcome data, and to communicate their findings to the 
Planning Council; 

• To serve as an educational resource on behavioral health data; 
• To obtain opinion and thoughts of local board members on specific topics; 
• To identify unmet needs and make recommendations. 

 
In 2019, we developed a section (Part I) with standard questions that are addressed 
each year to help us detect any trends in critical areas affecting our most vulnerable 
populations. These include foster youth, homeless individuals, and those with serious 
mental illness (SMI) who need housing in adult residential facilities (ARFs) and some 
other settings. These questions assist in the identification of unmet needs or gaps in 
services that may occur due to changes in population, resources, or public policy. 
 
What’s New This Year? 

The topic selected for the 2023 Data Notebook is stakeholder engagement.  The 
Planning Council has long supported upholding the principles of the Mental Health 
Services Act (MHSA) and encourages consumer and family member participation in the 

 
1 W.I.C. 5604.2, regarding mandated reporting roles of MH Boards and Commissions in California. 



6 
 

stakeholder process for behavioral health services through the Community Program 
Planning (CPP) process, as well as other stakeholder engagement activities.  

 

How the Data Notebook Project Helps You 

Understanding data empowers individuals and groups in their advocacy. The Planning 
Council encourages all members of local behavioral health boards/commissions to 
participate in developing the responses for the Data Notebook. This is an opportunity for 
local boards and their county behavioral health departments to work together to identify 
important issues in their community. This work informs county and state leadership 
about local behavioral health (BH) programs, needs, and services.  Some local boards 
use their Data Notebook in their annual report to the County Board of Supervisors.   
 
In addition, the Planning Council will provide our annual ‘Overview Report’, which is a 
compilation of information from all of the local behavioral health boards/commissions 
who completed their Data Notebooks. These reports feature prominently on the 
website2 of the California Association of Local Mental Health Boards and Commissions. 
The Planning Council uses this information in their advocacy to the legislature, and to 
provide input to the state mental health block grant application to SAMHSA3.  

 
Example of Statewide Data for Specialty Mental Health and Access Rates 

Tables 1-A and 1-B on the next two pages shows typical data and demographics for 
California recipients of Specialty Mental Health Services (SMHS) for fiscal year (FY) 
2021-2022.  These are the most recent data available at the time this document was 
prepared.  SMHS are intended for adults with serious mental illness (SMI) and for 
children with serious emotional disorders (SED). The category of ‘certified eligibles’ 
means those persons (also called beneficiaries) who are eligible and approved to 
receive Medi-Cal benefits for health care. 

These metrics are from datasets developed in accordance with California Welfare and 
Institutions code § 14707.7 (added as part of Assembly Bill 470 on 10/7/17). Due to 
recent changes in how AB 470 data is presented by DHCS in the Behavioral Health 
Demographic Dashboard4, demographic metrics presented are not exact, as the 
dashboard rounds them to the nearest .1 thousand (k) or million (M).  

 
2 See the annual Overview Reports on the Data Notebook posted at the California Association of Local 
Mental Health Boards and Commissions, https://www.CALBHBC.org. 
3 SAMHSA:  Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, an agency of the Department 
of Health and Human Services in the U.S. federal government.  For reports, see www.SAMHSA.gov.                             
4 AB 470 Mental Health Services Demographics Dashboards, published by California Department of 
Health Care Services (DHCS) at:  https://behavioralhealth-data.dhcs.ca.gov/ 

http://www.samhsa.gov/
https://behavioralhealth-data.dhcs.ca.gov/


7 
 

Table 1-A.  California Children and Youth:  Access Rates for Specialty Mental 
Health Services,5 Fiscal Year 2021-22.  
 

Specialty Mental Health Services 
 

FY 21-22  
Number of 

Clients with 
MH Visits 

Certified 
Eligibles 

Rate 

Children 0-2 6.8k 740.9k 0.9% 
Children 3-5 15.9k 802.6k 2.0% 
Children 6-11 68.5k 1.7m 4.0% 
Children 12-17 119.2k 1.8m 6.7% 
Youth 18-20 35.1k 79.1k 4.4%     

Alaskan Native or American 
Indian 

1k 12.3k 5.5% 

Asian or Pacific Islander 7.4k 359.6k 2.0% 
Black 23.7k 378.7k 6.3% 
Hispanic 146.3k 3.3M 4.4% 
Other 12.8k 445.5k 2.9% 
Unknown 128.k 548.5k 2.5% 
White 40.6k 750.3k 5.4%     

Female 130.1k 2.8M 4.6% 
Male 114.4k 3M 3.9%     

Totals and Average Rates 244.5k 5.8M 4.3% 
 
Notes:  The first column presents the demographic groups of interest. Next there are 
three columns.  The first column of numbers shows the number of clients who received 
one or more services, described as Specialty Mental Health Visits. The second column 
of numbers is labeled ‘Certified Eligibles’, which is the number of clients who were 
deemed eligible and approved to received health care paid by Medi-Cal.  The third 
column of numbers represents the service penetration rates.  These penetration rates 
are taken as one measure of Access.  They are calculated by dividing the total number 

 
5 In contrast, non-specialty Mental Health Services (i.e., Managed Care (MC), Fee-for-Service (FFS), etc), 
services generally designed for people with mild-to-moderate mental health needs. 



8 
 

of Clients with MH visits by the total number of Medi-Cal Eligibles, multiply by 100 to 
express the result as a percentage; this is taken as the “Access Rate.” 
 
Table 1-B. California Adults and Older Adults, Access Rates for Specialty Mental 
Health Services, Fiscal Year 2021-22.6  

Specialty Mental Health Services  
FY 21-22  

Number of 
Clients with 

MH Visits 

Certified 
Eligibles 

Rate 

Adults 21-32 102.2k 2.8M 3.6% 
Adults 33-44 88.2k 2.3M 3.9% 
Adults 45-56 71.5k 1.7M 4.1% 
Adults 57-68 6.5k 1.6M 4.1% 
Adults 69+ 14.6k 1.1M 1.30%     

Alaskan Native or American Indian 2.1k 38.8k 5.5% 
Asian or Pacific Islander 19.4k 1.1M 1.8% 
Black 50.3k 706.3k 7.1% 
Hispanic 103.9k 4.1M 2.5% 
Other 36.9k 977.8k 3.8% 
Unknown 29.8k 684.6k 4.4% 
White 99.1k 1.9M 5.1%     

Female 177.3k 5.3M 3.3% 
Male 164.2k 4.2M 3.9%     

Totals and Access Rates 341.5k 9.5M 3.6% 
 

Notes: The data for Adults and Older Adults were calculated similarly to the data for 
Children and Youth in Figure 1-A.  For example, out of all Adult 9.5M Medi-Cal eligibles, 
a total of 341.5k individuals, i.e. 3.6% received Specialty Mental Health Services 
(SMHS).   

 
6 For comparison, the population of the state of California was 39,029,342 on April 1, 2020, according to 
the U.S. Census Bureau.   https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/CA. Of those residents,24.3% of 
Californians were adults (age 21 and above) receiving Med-Cal benefits.  Also, 14.9 % of Californians 
were children or youth < 20 who received Medi-Cal benefits.  These numbers show that 39.2 % of all 
Californians of all age groups received Medi-Cal in FY 2021-22. 

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/CA


9 
 

CBHPC 2023 Data Notebook – Part I: 

Standard Yearly Data and Questions for Counties and Local Boards 
  
In recent years, changes in data availability permit local boards and other stakeholders 
to consult some Medi-Cal data online that is provided by the Department of Health Care 
Services (DHCS). These data include populations that receive Specialty Mental Health 
Services (SMHS) and Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment.  Standard data are 
analyzed each year to evaluate the quality of county programs and those reports can be 
found at www.CalEQRO.com.  Additionally, Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) data 
are found in the ‘MHSA Transparency Tool’ presented on the Mental Health Services 
Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC) website.7   
 
The Planning Council would like to examine some county-level data that are not readily 
available online and for which there is no other public source.  Please answer these 
questions using information for fiscal year (FY) 2021-2022 or the most recent fiscal year 
for which you have data.  Not all counties will have readily available data for some of the 
questions asked below.  In that case, please enter N/A for ‘data not available.’ We 
acknowledge and appreciate the necessary time and effort provided by local boards and 
their behavioral health departments to collect and discuss these data. 
 
Adult Residential Care 

There is little public data available about who is residing in licensed facilities listed on 
the website of the Community Care Licensing Division8 at the CA Department of Social 
Services. This lack of data makes it difficult to know how many of the licensed Adult 
Residential Facilities (ARFs) operate with services to meet the needs of adults with 
chronic and/or serious mental illness (SMI), compared to other adults who have physical 
or developmental disabilities. In 2020, legislation was signed that requires collection of 
data from licensed operators about how many residents have SMI and whether these 
facilities have services to support client recovery or transition to other housing. The 
response rate from facility operators does not provide an accurate picture for our work. 
 
The Planning Council wants to understand what types of data are currently available at 
the county level regarding ARFs and Institutions for Mental Diseases (IMDs)9 available 
to serve individuals with SMI, and how many of these individuals (for whom the county 
has financial responsibility) are served in facilities such as ARFs or IMDs. ‘Bed day’ is 

 
7 www.mhsoac.ca.gov, see MHSA Transparency Tool, under ‘Data and Reports’ 
8 Link to Licensed Care directory at California Department of Social Services.  
https://www.ccld.dss.ca.gov/carefacilitysearch/ 
9 Institution for Mental Diseases (IMD) List:  https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/IMD-List.aspx 

http://www.caleqro.com/
http://www.mhsoac.ca.gov/
https://www.ccld.dss.ca.gov/carefacilitysearch/
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/IMD-List.aspx


10 
 

defined as an occupancy or treatment slot for one person for one day.  One major 
difference is that IMDs offer mental health treatment services in a psychiatric hospital or 
certain types of skilled nursing home facilities. In contrast, a non-psychiatric facility such 
as an ARF is a residential facility that may provide social support services like case 
management but not psychiatric treatment. 
 
The following is a text summary of the survey questions for Part I of the 2022 Data 
Notebook. Please note that the questions are presented here in a different format than 
the finalized SurveyMonkey online survey.  Refer to the PDF preview of the 
SurveyMonkey survey to see a more accurate presentation of the items.  
 
Questions:  
 

1) Please identify your County / Local Board or Commission.  
 

2) For how many individuals did your county behavioral health department 
pay some or all of the costs to reside in a licensed Adult Residential Care 
Facility (ARF), during the last fiscal year? (Text response) 

 
3) What is the total number of ARF bed-days paid for these individuals, during 

the last fiscal year? (Text response) 
 

4) Unmet needs:  how many individuals served by your county behavioral 
health department need this type of housing but currently are not living in 
an ARF?  (Text response) 

 
5) Does your county have any ‘Institutions for Mental Disease’ (IMD)?  

a. No 
b. Yes. If Yes, how many IMDs? (Text response) 

 
6) For how many individual clients did your county behavioral health 

department pay the costs for an IMD stay (either in or out of your county), 
during the last fiscal year?   

             In-county: (Text response)   Out-of-county: (Text response) 
 

7) What is the total number of IMD bed-days paid for these individuals by your 
county behavioral health department during the same time period?   
(Text response) 

  



11 
 

Homelessness: Programs and Services in California Counties 

The Planning Council has a long history of advocacy for individuals with SMI who are 
homeless, or who are at-risk of becoming homeless. California’s recent natural 
disasters and public health emergency have exacerbated the affordable housing crisis 
and homelessness. Federal funding was provided to states that could be used for 
temporary housing for individuals living on the streets as a method to stop the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus. Additional policy changes were made to mitigate the rate of 
evictions for persons who became unemployed as a result of the public health crisis. 

Studies indicate that only one in three individuals who are homeless also have serious 
mental illness and/or a substance use disorder. The Planning Council does not endorse 
the idea that homelessness is caused by mental illness, nor that the public BH system is 
responsible to fix homelessness, financially or otherwise. However, we do know that 
recovery happens best when an individual has a safe, stable place to live.  

The issue of homelessness is very complex and involves multiple systems and layers of 
interaction. Therefore, the Council will continue to track and report on the programs and 
supports offered by counties to assist homeless individuals who have SMI and/or SUD.  
Causes and contributory factors are complex, and thus our solutions will need to 
address numerous multidimensional and multi-systemic challenges. 

Every year, the states, counties, and many cities perform a “Point-in-Time” count10 of 
the homeless individuals in their counties, usually on a specific date in January. Such 
data are key to state and federal policy and funding decisions. The pandemic disrupted 
both the methods and the regular schedule for the count in 2021, during which there 
was no data collected for California’s unsheltered population due to Covid-19 protocols. 
Those preliminary data were taken down subsequently for further review before re-
posting. Therefore, the “percent increase” column for this table compares the 2022 
totals with the totals for 2020, for which there was complete data.   

 
10 Link to data for yearly Point-in-Time Count: 
https://files.hudexchange.info/reports/published/CoC_PopSub_NatlTerrDC_2022.pdf 

https://files.hudexchange.info/reports/published/CoC_PopSub_NatlTerrDC_2022.pdf


12 
 

 

Table 3: State of California Estimates of Homeless Individuals Point in Time11 
Count 2022 

Summary of Homeless 
individuals 

SHELTERED  UNSHELTERED TOTAL 
2022 

Percent 
Increase 
over 2022 

Persons in households 
without children 

34,545 110,888 145,433 7.7% 

Persons in households 
with children 

21,253 4,285 25,538  -0.9% 

Unaccompanied 
homeless youth 
   

2,828 6,762 9,590 -21.2% 

Veterans 3,003 7,392 10,395 -8.8% 

Chronically homeless 
individuals 

15,773 45,132 60,905 17.6% 

Total (2020) Homeless 
Persons in CA 56,030 115,491 171,521 6.2% 

Total (2020) Homeless 
Persons, USA 348,630 233,832 582,462 .3% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
11 PIT Count = yearly January Point-in-Time Count of Homeless Individuals, conducted according to the 
guidance of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (www.HUD.gov). Sheltered 
persons include those who were in homeless shelters and various types of transitional or emergency 
housing. 

http://www.hud.gov/


13 
 

 

Questions, continued: 

8) During fiscal year 2021-2022, what new programs were implemented, or 
existing programs were expanded, in your county to serve persons who are 
both homeless and have severe mental illness? (Mark all that apply.) 

a. Emergency Shelter  
b. Temporary Housing 
c. Transitional Housing 
d. Housing/Motel Vouchers 
e. Supportive Housing 
f. Safe Parking Lots 
g. Rapid Re-Housing 
h. Adult Residential Care Patch/Subsidy 
i. Other (Please specify) 

 

Child Welfare Services: Foster Children in Certain Types of Congregate Care  

In California, about 60,000 children under the age of 18 are in foster care. They were 
removed from their homes because county child welfare departments, in conjunction 
with juvenile dependency courts, determined that these children could not live safely 
with their caregiver(s). Most children are placed with a family who receive foster 
children, but a small number of the children need a higher level of care and are placed 
in a setting with more sophisticated services.  
 
California is striving to move away from facilities formerly known as long-term group 
homes, and prefers to place all youth in family settings, if possible. Regulations have 
revised the treatment facilities for children whose needs cannot be met safely in a family 
setting. The new facility type is called a Short-Term Residential Treatment Program 
(STRTP).  STRTPs are designed to provide short-term placement that includes 
intensive behavioral health services.  
 
All of California’s counties are working toward closing long-term group homes and are 
establishing licensed STRTPs.  This transition will take time and it is important for your 
board to talk with your county director about what is happening in your county for 
children in foster care who are not yet able to be placed in a family setting, or who are in 
a family setting and experience a crisis that requires short-term intensive treatment. 
  



14 
 

Some counties do not yet have STRTPs and may place children/youth in another 
county or even out-of-state.  Recent legislation (AB 1299) directs that the Medi-Cal 
eligibility of the child be transferred to the receiving county.  This means, the county 
receiving the child now becomes financially responsible for his/her Medi-Cal costs.  

 
 Examples of the foster care CDSS data for Q4, 2020, in CA:   

• Total foster youth and children: 53,180 
• Total placed in an STRTP: 2,444 (or 4.6% of foster youth) 
• Total STRTP placed out-of-county: 1174 (or 2.2% of foster youth) 
• Total STRTP placed out-of-state: 66 (or 0.12 % of foster youth) 

 
Questions (continued): 
 

9) Do you think your county is doing enough to serve the foster children and 
youth in group care?  

a. Yes 
b. No.  If No, what is your recommendation? Please list or describe briefly. 

(Text response) 
 

10)   Has your county received any children needing “group home” level of 
care from another county?   

a. No 
b. Yes. If Yes, how many? (Text response) 

 
 

11)   Has your county placed any children needing “group home” level of care 
into another county?   

a.   No 
b. Yes. If Yes, how many? (Text response) 

 

 
 
  



15 
 

CBHPC 2023 Data Notebook – Part II:  

Stakeholder Engagement in the Public Mental Health System 
Context and Background 

The topic selected for the 2023 Data Notebook is “stakeholder engagement.” 
Stakeholder engagement refers to the active involvement of individuals or groups with a 
vested interest in the mental health system. These stakeholders include consumers of 
mental health services, their families, mental health professionals, government 
agencies, community organizations, advocacy groups, and policymakers. Engaging 
these stakeholders fosters a participatory approach, giving voice to diverse perspectives 
and enabling collective decision-making. Stakeholder engagement is integral to the 
implementation of the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) in California. By involving a 
wide range of voices, the MHSA can develop and deliver programs and services that 
are responsive to community needs, ultimately improving mental health outcomes and 
well-being in California. 
 
Stakeholder engagement offers numerous benefits in the context of mental health. 
Firstly, it enhances service delivery by allowing the mental health system to address the 
specific needs and preferences of individuals with mental health conditions. Through 
collaborative decision-making, services can be designed to be more accessible, 
culturally sensitive, and person-centered, ultimately leading to improved outcomes for 
those seeking support. 
 
Secondly, stakeholder engagement empowers the community by providing 
opportunities for active participation and involvement in the development of mental 
health policies and programs. By valuing the perspectives of diverse stakeholders, the 
system becomes more responsive to the concerns, priorities, and aspirations of the 
community it serves. This active involvement fosters a sense of ownership and 
empowerment among community members, enabling them to contribute to shaping the 
mental health services available to them. 
 
Thirdly, it plays a crucial role in ensuring accountability within the mental health system. 
By involving stakeholders, a system of checks and balances is created, promoting 
transparency and holding the system accountable for its actions and outcomes. This 
involvement helps to guarantee that resources are allocated effectively and efficiently, 
maximizing their impact and addressing any potential issues or discrepancies that may 
arise. 
 
Overall, stakeholder engagement in mental health has far-reaching benefits. It leads to 
improved service delivery that is tailored to individual needs, empowers the community 



16 
 

by involving them in decision-making processes, and ensures accountability and 
transparency within the mental health system. By actively engaging stakeholders, 
mental health organizations can create a more inclusive and effective system that 
ultimately improves the well-being of individuals experiencing mental health conditions.   

 

Challenges and Barriers 

The effective engagement of stakeholders in the California public mental health system 
faces several barriers and challenges. One of the primary challenges is ensuring 
diverse representation among stakeholders. Overcoming language barriers, cultural 
differences, and limited outreach resources is crucial to capture a wide range of 
perspectives. Inadequate funding and staffing also pose significant challenges, 
hindering the capacity to hold regular meetings, conduct outreach efforts, and provide 
necessary support to stakeholders. 
 
Some other potential barriers include: 
 

• Stigma and discrimination surrounding mental health create additional obstacles 
to stakeholder engagement. Addressing stigma requires targeted educational 
campaigns, anti-stigma initiatives, and the creation of safe spaces that foster 
open dialogue and inclusivity. 

• Power imbalances among stakeholders can also impede effective engagement. 
Achieving equitable representation and providing mechanisms to address power 
differentials are essential to foster an inclusive and democratic stakeholder 
engagement process. 

• The complexity and fragmentation of the California public mental health system 
further present challenges. Effective communication strategies, standardized 
protocols, and clear channels of collaboration are necessary to engage 
stakeholders from different sectors and align their efforts. 

• Limited accessibility poses another barrier to meaningful stakeholder 
engagement. Proactive measures such as providing accommodations, utilizing 
virtual platforms for remote participation, and ensuring inclusive physical spaces 
are essential to address accessibility barriers. 

• Stakeholder engagement processes can be time-consuming and may lead to 
engagement fatigue over time. Balancing the need for sustained engagement 
with stakeholders' limited time and competing priorities requires clear goals, 
efficient processes, and recognition of stakeholders' contributions to maintain 
their interest and involvement. 

 



17 
 

Overcoming these barriers and challenges necessitates a comprehensive approach. By 
addressing these challenges, the California public mental health system can cultivate 
inclusive, responsive, and impactful mental health policies and programs. 
 

Key Stakeholders 

In the public mental health system, various stakeholders play vital roles in shaping 
policies, programs, and services. The California Code of Regulations provides the 
following definition of “stakeholders” within the public mental health system:  
  

Cal. Code Regs. Tit. 9, § 3200.270 - Stakeholders 
"Stakeholders" means individuals or entities with an interest in mental health 
services in the State of California, including but not limited to: individuals with 
serious mental illness and/or serious emotional disturbance and/or their families; 
providers of mental health and/or related services such as physical health care 
and/or social services; educators and/or representatives of education; 
representatives of law enforcement; and any other organization that represents 
the interests of individuals with serious mental illness/ and/or serious emotional 
disturbance and/or their families. 

 
Additionally, California Welfare and Institutions Code provides a list of stakeholders for 
the Community Program Planning (CPP) Process: 
 

California Code, Welfare and Institutions Code - WIC § 5848 (a) 
Each three-year program and expenditure plan and update shall be developed 
with local stakeholders, including adults and seniors with severe mental illness, 
families of children, adults, and seniors with severe mental illness, providers of 
services, law enforcement agencies, education, social services agencies, 
veterans, representatives from veterans' organizations, providers of alcohol and 
drug services, health care organizations, and other important interests. Counties 
shall demonstrate a partnership with constituents and stakeholders throughout 
the process that includes meaningful stakeholder involvement on mental health 
policy, program planning, and implementation, monitoring, quality improvement, 
evaluation, and budget allocations. 

 
Using these sources, we can identify key stakeholder groups for engagement. Here is a 
more detailed list of these key stakeholders:  
 
Adults and Seniors with severe mental illness (SMI): This group represents 
individuals who are directly impacted by mental health conditions. Their perspectives 
and experiences are essential in understanding the unique challenges they face and in 



18 
 

developing services that meet their specific needs. Engaging adults and seniors with 
SMI ensures their voices are heard and helps tailor interventions to improve their overall 
well-being and recovery. 
 
Families of children, adults, and seniors with SMI: Family members are crucial 
stakeholders as they provide support, care, and advocacy for their loved ones with 
mental illness. Their insights offer a valuable perspective on the challenges faced by 
individuals with SMI and the impact on the family unit. Involving families in decision-
making processes helps ensure that services are holistic, family-centered, and 
responsive to the needs of both the individual and their support network. 
 
Providers of Mental Health and/or Related Services: Mental health professionals, 
including psychiatrists, psychologists, counselors, and social workers, are instrumental 
in delivering quality care and support. Their expertise and frontline experience provide 
valuable input on service gaps, best practices, and areas for improvement within the 
mental health system. Engaging with mental health providers ensures that policies and 
programs are evidence-based, align with professional standards, and promote quality 
outcomes. 
 
Law Enforcement Agencies: Law enforcement agencies often come into contact with 
individuals experiencing mental health crises. Their involvement in stakeholder 
engagement facilitates collaboration between mental health services and law 
enforcement, aiming to improve crisis intervention and diversion programs. This 
partnership can enhance community safety, reduce unnecessary arrests and 
incarcerations, and facilitate appropriate referrals to mental health services. 
 
Educators and/or Representatives of Education: Educators play a significant role in 
identifying and supporting students with mental health needs. Their involvement as 
stakeholders contributes to the development of early intervention strategies, mental 
health promotion programs, and the implementation of appropriate supports within 
educational settings. Collaborating with educators helps create a nurturing environment 
that supports the academic, social, and emotional well-being of students. 
 
Social Services Agencies: Social services agencies, such as those involved in 
housing, employment, and welfare, intersect with the mental health system. Their 
participation in stakeholder engagement ensures coordination and integration of 
services, addressing the complex needs of individuals with mental health conditions 
holistically. Collaboration with social services agencies supports efforts to provide stable 
housing, employment opportunities, and social support networks to promote recovery 
and community integration. 
 
Veterans: Veterans, particularly those who have served in combat or experienced 
traumatic events, often face mental health challenges such as post-traumatic stress 



19 
 

disorder (PTSD) and depression. Engaging veterans as stakeholders enables the 
mental health system to address their unique needs and develop specialized programs 
tailored to their experiences. This collaboration ensures that mental health services for 
veterans are comprehensive, accessible, and culturally sensitive. 
 
Representatives from Veterans Organizations: Representatives from veterans’ 
organizations, such as advocacy groups or support networks, provide a platform for 
veterans' voices and perspectives to be heard. Their involvement in stakeholder 
engagement fosters collaboration and helps shape policies, programs, and services that 
meet the specific needs of veterans.  
 
Providers of Alcohol and Drug Services: Substance use disorders frequently co-
occur with mental health conditions, requiring integrated care approaches. Engaging 
providers of alcohol and drug services as stakeholders promotes collaboration between 
mental health and addiction treatment providers. This collaboration ensures a 
comprehensive approach to addressing the complex needs of individuals with co-
occurring disorders, facilitating recovery and reducing barriers to treatment. 
 
Health Care Organizations: Health care organizations, including hospitals, clinics, and 
primary care providers, are essential stakeholders in the mental health system. 
Collaboration with these organizations helps integrate mental health care into primary 
care settings, reduce stigma, and improve access to services. Involving health care 
organizations enhances the coordination of care and strengthens the overall continuum 
of mental health support. 
 
Other important Interests: The mental health system involves numerous other 
stakeholders, such as policymakers, researchers, community leaders, advocacy groups, 
and philanthropic organizations. Each brings unique perspectives, expertise, and 
resources to the table. Their involvement in stakeholder engagement ensures that 
policies and programs are informed by evidence, responsive to community needs, and 
adequately resourced.  
 
By engaging and involving these diverse stakeholders, the public mental health system 
can benefit from a comprehensive range of insights, expertise, and perspectives. This 
collaborative approach leads to more effective, inclusive, and person-centered mental 
health services that better serve the needs of individuals, families, and communities. 
 
Best Practices for Stakeholder Engagement 

There are many resources available regarding promising and best practices for 
stakeholder engagement. Some commonly identified guiding principles and best 
practices are:  



20 
 

 
1. Inclusive Approach: Ensure that the stakeholder engagement process is 

inclusive and representative of diverse perspectives. Include individuals with 
lived experience, family members, behavioral health service providers, advocacy 
groups, community organizations, and policymakers. Embrace diversity and 
strive for equity in representation. 

2. Early and Ongoing Engagement: Engage stakeholders early in the decision-
making process and maintain ongoing communication throughout the planning, 
implementation, and evaluation stages. Provide opportunities for input, 
collaboration, and feedback at various stages to ensure meaningful participation. 

3. Purposeful Communication: Foster open and transparent communication with 
stakeholders. Provide clear information about goals, processes, and timelines. 
Use plain language and avoid jargon to ensure that all stakeholders can easily 
understand and contribute to the conversation. Likewise, practice active listening 
when stakeholders are speaking. Rather than assuming what they mean, ask 
follow-up questions to ensure that their input is understood.  

4. Collaboration and Co-creation: Foster a collaborative environment that 
encourages stakeholders to actively participate in decision-making. Co-create 
solutions by involving stakeholders in the design and implementation of 
programs, policies, and services. Value their expertise and insights. 

5. Training and Education: Provide stakeholders with relevant training and 
education to enhance their understanding of behavioral health issues, policies, 
and practices. Equip them with the knowledge necessary to contribute effectively 
and make informed decisions. 

6. Flexibility and Adaptability: Recognize that stakeholders may have different 
levels of expertise, resources, and availability. Provide flexibility in engagement 
methods to accommodate diverse needs, such as offering virtual options, 
providing written materials, and conducting surveys or focus groups. 

7. Data-Informed Decision Making: Use data and evidence to inform discussions 
and decision-making processes. Share relevant data with stakeholders to foster 
informed dialogue and facilitate collaborative problem-solving. 

8. Empowerment and Shared Leadership: Empower stakeholders to actively 
contribute and take ownership of the process. Promote shared leadership by 
involving stakeholders in the development of agendas, facilitating meetings, and 
encouraging their participation in decision-making. 

9. Recognition and Appreciation: Recognize and appreciate the contributions of 
stakeholders. Acknowledge their time, effort, and expertise. Provide opportunities 
for public recognition, such as featuring success stories or highlighting 
stakeholder involvement in reports and presentations. 



21 
 

10. Evaluation and Continuous Improvement: Regularly evaluate the 
effectiveness of stakeholder engagement efforts and seek feedback from 
participants. Use this feedback to refine engagement strategies and improve 
future processes. 

These are just some of the many suggested best practices and guiding principles for 
quality stakeholder engagement. By incorporating these and other best practices, 
behavioral health systems can effectively engage stakeholders, leverage their expertise, 
and create more responsive, person-centered, and equitable services and policies. 

 

MHSA Community Program Planning Process 

One of the major ways that the MHSA includes stakeholder engagement is the MHSA 
Community Program Planning (CPP) Process. This state-mandated participatory 
process is a collaborative approach used in California to develop and refine mental 
health programs funded by the MHSA. Counties use the CPP process in the 
development of Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plans and updates. Counties 
work alongside stakeholders to analyze current community mental health needs, issues 
resulting from any lack of community services, and current system capacity, as well as 
evaluate priorities and strategies to meet the needs of the community.  
 
California Codes and Regulations dictate that the MHSA CPP process should be:  

• Based in community collaboration (CCR, 9 CA §3320 and 3200.060). 
• Culturally competent (CCR, 9 CA §3320 and 3200.100). 
• Client and family driven (CCR, 9 CA §3320, 3200.050 and 3200.120). 
• Wellness, recovery and resilience-focused (CA WIC § 5813.5(d)). 
• Focused on providing an integrated service experience for clients and their 

families (CCR, 9 CA §3320 and 3200.190). 
 
MHSA CPP Processes must include the following regarding stakeholder participants: 

• Stakeholders (as previously defined/discussed based on WIC, § 5848a). 
• Underserved populations. Representatives from unserved and/or underserved 

populations and family members of unserved/underserved populations (CCR, 9 
CA § 3300). 

• Diversity. Participants that “reflect the diversity of the demographics of the 
County, including but not limited to, geographic location, age, gender, and 
race/ethnicity” (CCR, 9 CA § 3300). 

 
Additionally, the CPP process should, at a minimum include the following things: 

• Staffing for positions and/or units to facilitate the CPP process. 



22 
 

• Training for stakeholders and county staff. 
• Outreach to consumers with SMI and their family members to ensure the 

opportunity to participate. 
• A local review process that includes a 30-day public comment period prior to 

submitting the Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plans or Annual Updates.  
 
The MHSA currently allows counties to use up to 5% of their total Community 
Services and Support (CSS) funds to facilitate a robust planning process. This 
includes using funding to accommodate stakeholder participation in the CPP process. 
All counties are required to use the CPP process and document the Three-Year 
Program and Expenditure Plans and Annual Updates. This includes descriptions of the 
methods used to collect stakeholder input, documentation that a public hearing was 
held, summary and analysis and a description of changes made based on community 
input. 
 
The local MH/BH boards and commissions have the following responsibilities in this 
process: 

• Review and approve the procedures used to ensure stakeholder involvement in 
all stages of the planning process.  

• Review the adopted plan or update and make recommendations.  
• Conduct MHSA public hearings at the close of the 30-day public comment 

periods. 
 
Overall, the MHSA Community Program Planning Process fosters a participatory and 
community-driven approach to mental health program development. By engaging 
stakeholders and leveraging their expertise and insights, the CPP Process aims to 
create programs that are responsive, culturally sensitive, and tailored to the unique 
needs of the community. This collaborative effort ultimately leads to the implementation 
of effective and impactful mental health services in California communities. 
 
While the MHSA CPP process is an important (and legally required) example of 
stakeholder engagement, the principles and practices of stakeholder engagement can 
be applied to many different programs and processes. This includes but is not limited to 
mental/behavioral health board/commission meetings, EQRO focus groups, and 
SAMHSA funded programs.  
 

 

 

 



23 
 

Resources 

The following resources all pertain to stakeholder engagement in mental health, 
including the CPP process. We encourage counties to utilize these resources to learn 
more about responsive and effective engagement practices.  
 

• CALBHBC: MHSA CPP One-Pager 
• CALBHBC: Community Engagement PowerPoint 
• MHSOAC: CPP Processes - Report of Other Public Community Planning 

Processes 
• MHSOAC: Promising CPP Practices 
• SAMHSA: Community Engagement – An Essential Component of an Effective 

and Equitable Substance Use Prevention Program 
 

 

Part II: Data Notebook Questions 

Please respond by means of the Survey Monkey link provided with this Data Notebook. 

12.  For each of the following categories, please choose the option from the 
dropdown menu that best describes how often your county organizes 
stakeholder engagement meetings or events.  

o Dropdown menu options: 
 Less than once a year 
 Annually (once a year) 
 Every 6 months 
 Quarterly (four times a year) 
 Monthly 
 More than once a month  

o Categories: 
 MHSA Community Planning Process (CPP) 
 MHSA 3-year plan updates 
 EQRO focus groups 
 SAMHSA-funded programs 
 Mental/Behavioral Health Board/Commission Meetings 
 County Behavioral Health co-sponsoring/partnering with other 

departments or agencies  
 Other (please specify): 

 
 

13.  Estimate the number of people who participated in your stakeholder 
processes in fiscal year 2021/2022. (Numerical response) 

 

https://www.calbhbc.org/uploads/5/8/5/3/58536227/community_program_planning_cpp.pdf
https://www.calbhbc.org/uploads/5/8/5/3/58536227/community_engagement_2022.pdf
https://mhsoac.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2016-04/Eval_Deliv_4_APPROVED%5b1%5d.pdf
https://mhsoac.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2016-04/Eval_Deliv_4_APPROVED%5b1%5d.pdf
https://mhsoac.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2016-04/OAC_093014_9A_RDAReport_D6%5B1%5D.pdf
https://store.samhsa.gov/sites/default/files/pep22-06-01-005.pdf
https://store.samhsa.gov/sites/default/files/pep22-06-01-005.pdf


24 
 

14.  Approximately what percentage of stakeholder engagement events or 
efforts in your county were in-person only, virtual only, a combination of 
both in-person and virtual, or written communications (please answer with a 
whole number for each, such that the total of the four amounts to 100) 

• In-person only: 
• Virtual only: 
• Combination of both in-person and virtual: 
• Written communications (such as online surveys or email questionnaires):  

 
15.  Which of the following languages did your county use to conduct 

stakeholder meetings or outreach during fiscal year 2021/2022, with or 
without the use of interpreters? (Check all that apply) 

• Arabic 
• Armenian 
• Cambodian 
• Chinese 
• English 
• Farsi 
• Hindi 
• Hmong 
• Japanese 
• Korean 
• Laotian 
• Mien 
• Punjabi 
• Russian 
• Spanish 
• Tagalog 
• Thai 
• American Sign Language (ASL) 
• Other languages (please specify)  

This list of languages reflects the threshold and concentration languages for 
all counties as of July 2021 from the following DHCS document: Threshold and 
Concentration Languages (ca.gov)  
 
16.  Which of the following stakeholder groups have you collected and 

implemented input from within the last year? (Check all that apply) 
• Adults with severe mental illness (SMI) 
• Older adults / Seniors with SMI 
• Families of children, adults and seniors with SMI 
• Individuals with developmental disabilities and/or their representatives 
• Providers of mental health and/or related services 
• Representatives of managed care plans 
• Law enforcement agencies 

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/MMCDAPLsandPolicyLetters/APL2021/Threshold-Concentration-Languages.pdf#:%7E:text=Threshold%20Standard%20Languages%20%28Y%29%20%3E3%2C000%20per%20language%20or,two%20contiguous%20%E2%80%93%20Hmong%20in%20Merced%20County%2C%20Tagalog
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/MMCDAPLsandPolicyLetters/APL2021/Threshold-Concentration-Languages.pdf#:%7E:text=Threshold%20Standard%20Languages%20%28Y%29%20%3E3%2C000%20per%20language%20or,two%20contiguous%20%E2%80%93%20Hmong%20in%20Merced%20County%2C%20Tagalog


25 
 

• Educators and/or representatives of education 
• Social services agencies 
• Veterans 
• Representative from veterans’ organizations 
• Providers of alcohol and drug services 
• Health care organizations 
• Hearing impaired individuals 
• LGBTQ+ individuals 
• Youth  
• Other important interests (please specify)  
• Specific racial/Ethnic groups (please specify) 

 
17.  Please describe how stakeholder input is communicated to the behavioral 

health director, the mental/behavioral health board/commission, and any 
other agencies or groups for informing policy. (Text response) 

 
18.  Please describe how your county implements collected stakeholder input 

to actively inform policy and programs. Include how the county decides 
what ideas to implement or actions to take. (Text response) 

 
19.  Does your county have a Community Program Planning (CPP) plan in 

place?  
• Yes (If yes, describe how you directly involve stakeholders in the 

development and implementation of this plan)  
• No 

 
20.  Is your county supporting the CPP process in any of the following ways? 

(Please select all that apply) 
a) Reimbursement of travel costs for stakeholders participating in in-person 

meetings or events.  
b) Providing refreshments or food for stakeholder participants  
c) Dedicated staff assistance to facilitate stakeholder meetings and events.  
d) Providing information and training for stakeholders on MHSA programs, 

regulations, and procedures.  
e) Holding meetings in physically/geographically accessible locations around 

the county.  
f) Utilizing language interpreting services.  
g) Holding meetings at times convenient to community stakeholders’ 

schedules. 
h) Providing technical assistance for stakeholders participating in webinars or 

teleconferences.  
i) Other (please specify) 
j) None of the above 

 



26 
 

21.  Does your county provide training for staff on cultural awareness, 
community outreach, and stakeholder engagement? If yes, how? If no, why 
not?  

• Yes (with comment) 
• No (with comment) 

 
22.  Which of the following barriers does your county face regarding achieving 

meaningful and impactful engagement of stakeholders (specifically, mental 
health consumers and family members)? (Check all that apply) 

a. General difficulty with reaching stakeholders.  
b. Difficulty conducting community outreach to racial/ethnic communities or 

other specific communities of interest.  
c. Difficulty reaching stakeholders with disabilities.  
d. Lack of funding or resources for stakeholder engagement efforts. 
e. Shortage of properly trained staff to support and facilitate stakeholder 

engagement. 
f. Difficulty adapting to virtual meetings/communications. 
g. Difficulty providing accommodations to stakeholders. 
h. Difficulty incorporating stakeholder input in the early stages of 

programming. 
i. Lack of “buy-in” from decision makers when it comes to implementing 

stakeholder input.  
j. Other (please specify) 

 
23.  Are your behavioral health board/commission members involved in your 

county’s stakeholder engagement and/or CPP processes? If yes, describe 
how. 

a. Yes (with text comment) 
b. No  

Note: California WIC 5892 allocates Mental Health Services Funds for county mental 
health programs to pay for the expenses of mental health board members to perform 
their duties, and to pay for the costs of consumers, family members, and other 
stakeholders to participate in the planning process. This includes 5% of total CSS funds 
to support a robust CPP process with community stakeholders. 

 
24. Has the COVID-19 pandemic increased or decreased the level of 

stakeholder engagement and input in your county? 
a. Increased 
b. Decreased 
c. No change  

 
25.  Is there a fear or perception in your county that spending time, money, or 

other resources on stakeholder engagement conflicts with the need to 
provide direct services? (Yes/No) 

 



27 
 

26.  What is one change or improvement regarding stakeholder engagement 
that your county would like to make within the next fiscal year? (Written 
response) 

 
27.  Do you have any other thoughts or comments regarding stakeholder 

engagement in your county or statewide? (Written response) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Post-Survey Questionnaire  
 
Completion of your Data Notebook helps fulfill the board's requirements for reporting to 
the California Behavioral Health Planning Council. Questions below ask about 
operations of mental health boards, and behavioral health boards or commissions, etc. 
 

28.  What process was used to complete this Data Notebook? (Please select all that 
apply) 

a. MH board reviewed WIC 5604.2 regarding the reporting roles of mental 
health boards and commissions. 

b. MH board completed majority of the Data Notebook. 
c. Data Notebook placed on agenda and discussed at board meeting. 
d. MH board work group or temporary ad hoc committee worked on it. 
e. MH board partnered with county staff or director. 
f. MH board submitted a copy of the Data Notebook to the County Board of 

Supervisors or other designated body as part of their reporting function. 
g. Other (please specify) 

 
29.  Does your board have designated staff to support your activities? 

a. Yes (if yes, please provide their job classification) 
b. No 

 
30.  Please provide contact information for this staff member or board liaison.  

 
31.  Please provide contact information for your board’s presiding officer (chair, etc.) 

 
32.  Do you have any feedback or recommendations to improve the Data Notebook 

for next year?  



 
 

MINUTES 
 ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 

AUGUST 9, 2023 – 5:00 P.M.   

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 
 
 
 

The Governing Board Adjourned Meeting was held on Wednesday, August 9, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 
in the MHSA Office located at 2001 North Garey Avenue, Pomona, California. 
 
CALL TO ORDER Vice-Chair Nolte called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL   Roll call was taken by Administrative Assistant Musa. 
 
 GOVERNING BOARD  
 

PRESENT: John Nolte, City of Pomona, Vice-Chair  
  Wendy Lau, City of La Verne, Board Member 
  Ronald T. Vera, City of Claremont, Board Member    
  Jamie Earl, City of Claremont, Alternate Board Member 
 
ABSENT: Jed Leano, City of Claremont, Chair 
  Carolyn Cockrell, City of La Verne, Board Member  
  Paula Lantz, City of Pomona, Board Member  
  Elizabeth Ontiveros-Cole, City of Pomona, Board Member 
    
STAFF  
 
PRESENT: Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
  Steven Flower, General Counsel  
  Diana Acosta, Chief Financial Officer 
  Elizabeth Renteria, Chief Clinical Officer 
  Seeyam Teimoori, Medical Director 
  Dana Barford, Director of MHSA & Ethnic Services 
  Natalie Majors-Stewart, Chief Compliance Officer 
  Sophia Musa, Administrative Assistant, JPA Administrator/Clerk Office 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Chair Leano opened the meeting for public comment; and there was no public comment. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
 
8. CONTINUATION OF RESOLUTION NO 719. ADOPTING THE AUTHORITY’S 

PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET & CASH FLOW BUDGET FOR FY 2023-24 
 

Chief Financial Officer Acosta started her presentation regarding the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
Operating Budget. She briefly walked the Board through the structure of the budget; that at the 
beginning, there is a general narrative and history about TCMHA; that behind the total agency 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Adjourned Regular Meeting – Minutes 
August 9, 2023 
Page 2 of 8 
 
tab, there is all the information she will be going over; that it will all be on consolidated basis. She 
added that the main schedules are right behind the total agency account because everything else 
is focused on the details. She explained that TCMHA has two funds; that TCMHA is not a 
traditional government therefore, there is no fund accounting for a full accrual government; that 
they basically have two funds. She mentioned that MHSA dollars are completely segregated, so 
MHSA is referred to as one fund and everything else is considered the general fund; that the 
General Fund is what captures realignment and everything else that is non-MHSA related.  She 
continued by highlighting a few significant changes from the past year; that the biggest changes 
are due to Cal AIM and payment reform; that they have been expecting the implementation of Cal 
AIM and payment reform, which means they are going from a cost reimbursement model to a 
fixed fee for service model. She added that they are continuing to gather more information about 
Cal AIM and payment reform and that staff will keep the Board updated; that a lot of the 
information on the budget is based on preliminary projections and information they had at the 
time. 

 
Board Member Vera inquired about the fee for service model regarding Medi-Cal clients, clarifying 
that the budget is based on assumptions. Controller Bogle responded in the affirmative stating 
that they are still gathering information from the Department of Mental Health regarding the 
mechanics; that without that information, they only have rates and projected units. Board Member 
Vera inquired about the formula and if staff knows how much TCMHA will receive in return. 
Controller Bogle responded that the Department of Health Care Services, over the past 18 
months, has developed rates by the practitioner type; that it is no longer function; that the rates 
have been provided to all the counties and the counties have provided the fixed rates by 
practitioner type to the providers.  
 
Discussion ensued and it was concluded that the assumptions are based on the known rates and 
what is expected to be produced as far as direct units of service; that the State has indicated that 
the lost time is made up for with the rates; that the rates produced are conservative.  
 
Chief Financial Officer Acosta explained the consolidated finances; that everything behind the 
tabs is rolled up into the main schedules; that the schedule is the consolidated 18 schedules; that 
it is split into MHSA and Realignment. She shared that there are expected deficits in this next first 
year; that the $3.1 million shown on her report is all realignment or general fund related; that on 
the MHSA side, there is $4.7 million. She explained that some of the deficit is planned; that 
TCMHA has funds they have received previously that are not shown in the revenue section; that 
the budget does not show the revenue that corresponds to some of the expenses that have 
already been preplanned; that it is an accrual accounting. She clarified that it is the practice of 
previously recognizing revenue in order to plan a deficit, hence the inability to see it on the 
schedule. She mentioned that the revenue seen at the top of the schedule in her report is revenue 
that is being recognized this fiscal year; that the $3.1 million on the realignment side and the $2.1 
million of the $4.7 million from MHSA are specifically related to payment reform and Cal AIM. She 
assured the Board that they have plans in place to adjust and make modifications in order to 
maximize the efficiencies and implement what is needed to better navigate and maximize the Cal 
AIM rates; that they are in a year of implementation. 
 
Board Member Vera inquired about a specific page on Chief Financial Officer Acosta’s report. He 
noted that some of the figures do not add up. Chief Financial Officer Acosta responded by 
directing Board Member Vera to the second page of the report; that the first page shows the 
revenue and then the salaries; that salaries make up approximately 80% of the total expenses; 
that with the first and second page, it does total up to the $37 million indicated on the budget. 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Adjourned Regular Meeting – Minutes 
August 9, 2023 
Page 3 of 8 
 
Board Member Vera inquired about the model in place that is backfilling for the deficit and if that 
will cause further losses in the next few years. Chief Financial Officer Acosta stated that it can, 
but they have plans and progress in place to avoid that; that the budget is very conservative. She 
added that they have begun plans several months ago to modernize and improve upon operations 
at the clinic. 

 
She continued by explaining the second statement. Vice Chair Nolte inquired about the $2.1 
million contained in the $4.7 million and where it shows up. Chief Financial Officer Acosta referred 
to the physical copy of the budget and responded by stating that the $2.1 million has to do with 
Full-Service Partnership programs under the Community Support Services Plan; that the four FSP 
programs are illustrated in four different columns; that if the deficit for those four programs are 
added up, it adds up to $2.1 million. 

 
Executive Director Hundal responded to Board Member Vera’s inquiry regarding the deficit. She 
shared that they have plans in place to combat the deficit; that the numbers shown are 
conservative; that last year they implemented a new electronic medical record; that the numbers 
are improving and billing will continue to improve as well; that they are also looking at a centralized 
scheduling system model for TCMHA to improve the billing process. She assured the Governing 
Board that staff will keep them updated. Chief Financial Officer Acosta added that there is still 
information pending from the Department of Mental Health. Executive Director Hundal shared that 
the Department of Health Care Services has given certain rates to counties, but those are not the 
rates that are being passed down to providers for Medi-Cal; that for Medi-Cal, TCMHA is a 
provider for Los Angeles County; that they are still taking time to figure out the details. She added 
that the budget shows a very conservative projection, and it was created for the Governing Board 
to see what could be but they area going to turn it around. 

 
Board Member Vera expressed his concern with approving the budget showing a deficit that is 
planned to be covered by reserves, especially with the MHSA reform initiative.  Executive Director 
Hundal responded in agreement, stating that the executive team is meeting next week to discuss 
MHSA reform and what the plan is if it passes and what that will mean for Tri-City Mental Health 
Authority; that it is something outside of the agency’s control. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Acosta began to present more information about the cash flow schedule. 
She shared that everything in the operating budget flows into the cash flow schedule; that they 
start with beginning cash and despite the deficits, they project there will be an increase in cash. 
She explained that the deficit she is showing in the previous pages would be using up equity but 
in terms of cash, she still projects that they will be positive. 

 
Governing Board Vera expressed that he did not understand. Chief Financial Officer Acosta 
mentioned that the previous two years are on a current year basis; that it shows current revenues 
coming in and the current expenditures; that the other schedule she was previously referring to 
accounts for the collection of previous accounts receivable; that in the last few months they were 
also expecting an influx of dollars, which is why she highlighted the $24 million that they are 
expecting to collect. She clarified the fact that they will be collecting on these most recent years 
ending receivables and the previous years’ receivables as well, which will help maintain cash over 
the next year. She added that they still project on the realignment side and increase to cash; that 
although it is presented as $8 million or $7.9 million deficit, that some of those are planned with 
regard to MHSA programs in order to avoid reversion. Controller Bogle added that the expense 
side also includes significant vacancies; that there is about $4.7 million tied up in salaries and 
benefits from a budgetary perspective; that there are inherent savings there as well.  



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Adjourned Regular Meeting – Minutes 
August 9, 2023 
Page 4 of 8 
 
Board Member Vera asked if the assumption is that TCMHA will not cover. Executive Director 
Hundal responded by stating that she is certain they will; that it is on a case-by-case basis. 
Controller Bogle explained that there are grant funded positions that they are able to start because 
those dollars are dedicated to that and are not part of the operating deficit; that they are committed 
to spending the MHSA dollars. Chief Financial Officer Acosta added that they are being very 
strategic about which positions they will be temporarily freezing versus the ones that are 
absolutely necessary, specifically in providing support to the clinic. She opened it up to any 
questions. 
 
Board Member Vera inquired about the June 30th cash on hand. Chief Financial Officer Acosta 
responded by stating that what is shown on the statement is pretty close to actual since they 
finalized the definitive the first week of July; that it is close to actual that they had on hand on June 
30th, which is the $38.9 million. Board Member Vera inquired about the amount of cash on hand 
that is allocated to MHSA programs that must be spent. Chief Financial Officer Acosta referred to 
the chart on her PowerPoint, specifically the consolidating cash flow; that the whole right side is 
MHSA; that they began the year with roughly $30 million and they expect to have an increase. 
 
Executive Director Hundal added that if MHSA reform does pass in March, implementation is not 
required until 2026; that they will have time to adjust spending, programs with stakeholder input 
and more.  
 
Vice-Chair Nolte inquired if it was possible to receive a projection of the funds after 2026 to show 
the potential impact of MHSA reform. 
 
Controller Bogle responded in the affirmative, stating that the County Behavioral Health Directors 
Association (CBHDA) has provided all counties and the two authorities with modeling tools; that 
the executive team will be using the modeling tools in their upcoming discussion regarding MHSA 
reform; that CBHDA has requested the information from the modeling tools in order to advocate 
for TCMHA and other counties and authorities. 
 
Executive Director Hundal reiterated that CBHDA is collecting the data from all the counties and 
they will use it to lobby; that they will also be writing letters to Senator Eggman; that TCMHA will 
be sharing with stakeholders and the Board the details of the impact SB 326 will have on TCMHA 
if it passes. 
 
Vice-Chair Nolte inquired about the possibility of advocating for the Authorities and their unique 
roles in comparison with the counties. Executive Director Hundal responded by stating that she 
is not sure if they can do that, but staff is hoping that SB 326 does not make it on the ballot. 
 
Discussion ensued and it was concluded that the legislative proposal for SB 326 has not been 
voted on; that it will be voted on next week in Sacramento; that there will be many behavioral 
health organizations and associations speaking on behalf of TCMHA. 

 
Board Member Vera requested clarification regarding the budget, specifically the $4.7 million that 
will be used to operate as a deficit for mental health services money; if it is accurate that there is 
carryover money in the past three years that is going to be used.  Chief Financial Officer Acosta 
responded in the affirmative. 
 
 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Adjourned Regular Meeting – Minutes 
August 9, 2023 
Page 5 of 8 
 
Board Member Vera continued by asking that if, under the MHSA formula, the monies are still 
siloed so that TCMHA can only apply to specific programs like Community Support Systems 
(CSS) and Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI).  Executive Director Hundal responded in the 
affirmative, stating that they have plans to spend it in those already approved by the Governing 
Board. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Acosta added they also have the cycle of needing to spend the money 
within a three-year period except for Capital Technology Funds and other funds. 
 
Controller Bogle explained that because of the timing and the rules, there will be a problem when 
there is an MHSA delay and tax filings, which will become a challenge in two years; that the tactics 
that are being used to protect that by transferring the funds into Workforce Education and Training 
(WET) and CFTN are also the things that CBHDA is helping to lobby under MHSA reform. 
 
Board Member Vera inquired about the fact that there cannot be a line item in revenue as 
sustained; that the monies include from prior years so that it does not show as a deficit.  Chief 
Financial Officer Acosta responded that in the future, they will create a line item that displays the 
existing funds so that it does not show a deficit, in order to improve the budget presentation. 
 
Alternate Board Member Earl inquired about the $7-million-dollar deficit, asking if it will be fully 
covered by carryovers or if some will be coming from reserves.  
 
Chief Financial Officer Acosta explained that in TCMHA’s set up, one hundred percent of the 
MHSA side is being covered by existing funds; that MHSA is the opposite of the general fund; 
that they have plenty of funds; that the overflow of funds will be an added challenge due to the 
coupling of delays in taxes in the previous year. She continued by saying that on top of that, there 
was a one-time adjustment of MHSA dollars; that the average used to be between 9 and 10 million 
dollars, whereas this year they are expected to receive up to 24 million dollars; that a hundred 
percent of the deficits will be covered by projected existing funds and projected inflow and 
collection of outstanding receivables. 
 
Controller Bogle added that on the MHSA side, they have prudent reserves referring to the $2.3 
million that will not be touched; that there are prescribed methods of how to touch that if that data 
comes. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Acosta mentioned that in terms of maximums and minimums, they are not 
purposefully deviated a low $2 million; that it cannot be increased based on the formula. 
 
Executive Director Hundal shared that the clinical staff is working very hard to increase their 
billables; that they are showing a lot of resilience and tenacity towards the work; that it all comes 
down to client care; that they will not fail in client care, and it shows in the clinical department. 

 
Board Member Vera inquired about what information to share with their respective cities regarding 
the budget. Executive Director Hundal suggested hearing what they say at the stakeholder 
meetings; that there is an upcoming public hearing for the Innovation plan; that after they receive 
the MHSA language they will schedule a stakeholder meeting to present the information to 
stakeholders. 

 
 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Adjourned Regular Meeting – Minutes 
August 9, 2023 
Page 6 of 8 
 
Board Member Vera inquired about the date of the next stakeholder meeting. Executive Director 
Hundal shared that they do not have the exact date yet. Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services 
Barford mentioned that there will be one in October although they do not have an exact date yet; 
that they hope to do it in-person or hybrid as well a morning and evening session. 

 
Board Member Vera asked how many stakeholders meetings they are planning to host in the fall. 
Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services Barford responded by stating that it depends on the need; 
that they typically have an orientation and then the first stakeholder meeting in the fall; that within 
a year they have one mid-year, then the public hearing; that there have been times when the 
money is moved around and there is special funding; that if anything comes up with MHSA reform 
or anything else, they will be able to set stakeholder meetings based on that. Executive Director 
Hundal added that they can do small focus groups to review all the paperwork and then bring that 
to the larger stakeholder meeting. Board Member Vera responded in the affirmative stating that it 
would be helpful to know in terms of the importance both stakeholders for setting into motion 
projected programs that TCMHA could be adopting and how much money is in play. Director of 
MHSA and Ethnic Services Barford commented that they are also considering the potential impact 
of MHSA reform; that they do not want to get a program approved and then be unable to fund it 
by 2026; that in the meantime, until anything passes they are functioning under their current plan 
and continuing with that. 

 
Executive Director Hundal added that staff is attending State meetings to stay updated with 
everything that is happening and how other counties are planning to spend the money and how 
they are planning to inform the stakeholders, so that it is a consistent message being shared from 
the County to stakeholders and the community at large. 
 
Board Member Vera asked if it was possible to hire part-time staff to get the word out about the 
importance of coming to the stakeholder meetings and to provide background information about 
how the money will be used; that in his opinion, they are poorly attended. 
 
Executive Director Hundal responded by acknowledging that attendance has declined over the 
years; that Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services Barford is working on the innovation project, 
which will focus on increasing stakeholder participation in Board meetings as well as Commission 
meetings.  
 
Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services Barford added that they will try different strategies including 
hosting meetings where there is already foot traffic and community activities happening. 
 
Board Member Vera suggested that it might be a good idea to get the students from University of 
La Verne School of Community Health to attend the community meetings as part of their classes. 
Executive Director Hundal responded that there are specific classes that do require that of their 
students. 
 
Board Member Lau inquired about the communication that is happening through City forums. She 
proposed TCMHA attending or presenting at already existing community meetings; that it is hard 
for community members to care about things they do not know about; that it would be good to 
have TCMHA come to the city meetings where they can present about who TCMHA is, how they 
are funded and how they get things done; that it is important to go where the people are. 
 
 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Adjourned Regular Meeting – Minutes 
August 9, 2023 
Page 7 of 8 
 
Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services Barford responded in the affirmative. Executive Director 
Hundal responded in the affirmative and stated that they normally go during public comment, 
make public comments and announce the information about the meetings; that it would be a good 
idea to get on the agenda and present; that they will reaching out to the Board members. 
 
Vice-Chair Nolte commented that it is generally hard to get community participation; that he is 
skeptical about the process; that he believes those who should participate in the decision-making 
are those who use the services; that marketing the services that TCMHA offers seems the most 
beneficial rather than reaching out to stakeholders for the purpose of following procedures; that 
the best way to market TCMHA is to provide the best possible service. He explained that he would 
rather use the money towards providing better services and reaching the people who need mental 
health services who have not heard of TCMHA or who are not covered by TCMHA, to possibly fill 
those gaps. 
 
Executive Director Hundal mentioned that typically the people who attend the meetings are 
familiar with TCMHA but staff plans to reach our to those who do not know about TCMHA; that 
she agrees that it is a good idea to go to the City Council meetings to present; that they have 
done outreach with law enforcement in the past and inform them of the services they offer; that 
they are open to suggestions; that they would like to penetrate into the communities that have not 
heard of TCMHA. 
 
Discussion ensued and it was concluded that TCMHA staff try to attend as many community 
events as they can; that outside of the City Council meetings, they attend presentations and bring 
resources to community events to spread the word about TCMHA. Director of MHSA and Ethnic 
Services Barford added that stakeholder meetings are more formal; that in comparison with the 
past meetings, there is not as much funding for stakeholder meetings; that now, post-COVID, it 
is a different dynamic.  
 
Board Member Lau mentioned that if TCMHA is not already connected with the City Managers of 
each City, there are always events to attend; that a lot of the things they hear in City Council 
meetings do relate to stigma and it is important to share that there is an organization that they 
can reach out to, that is TCMHA. 
 
There being no further comment. Board Member Vera moved, Board Member Lau seconded to 
adopt Resolution No. 719 adopting the Authority’s proposed Operating Budget & Cash Flow 
Budget for FY 2023-24. The motion was carried by the following vote, AYES: Alternate Board 
Member Earl; Board Members Lau and Vera; and Vice-Chair Nolte. NOES: None. ABSTAIN: 
None. ABSENT: Board Members Cockrell, Lantz, and Ontiveros Cole; and Chair Leano. 
 
GOVERNING BOARD COMMENT 
 
Vice-Chair Nolte shared that Tri-City Mental Health Authority was mentioned during a 
presentation regarding homelessness, specifically the work done at Hope for Home; that the work 
is appreciated and has had a tremendous impact. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Vice-Chair Nolte opened the meeting for public comment. There was no public comment. 
 
 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Adjourned Regular Meeting – Minutes 
August 9, 2023 
Page 8 of 8 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 5:56 p.m., on consensus of the Governing Board its meeting of August 9, 2023 was adjourned. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Governing Board will be held on Wednesday, September 20, 
2023 at 5:00 p.m., in the MHSA Administrative Office, 2001 North Garey Avenue, Pomona, 
California. 
 
 
       
Sophia Musa, Administrative Assistant 
JPA Administrator/Clerk Office 



 
 

MINUTES 
 REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD 

NOVEMBER 15, 2023 – 5:00 P.M.   

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 
 
 
 
 

The Governing Board Meeting was held on Wednesday, November 15, 2023 at 5:01 p.m. in the 
MHSA Office located at 2001 North Garey Avenue, Pomona, California. 
 
CALL TO ORDER Vice-Chair Nolte called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL   Roll call was taken by JPA Administrator/Clerk Olmos. 
 
 GOVERNING BOARD  
 

PRESENT: John Nolte, City of Pomona, Vice-Chair 
  Carolyn Cockrell, City of La Verne, Board Member (arrived at 5:04 p.m.) 
  Paula Lantz, City of Pomona, Board Member  
  Wendy Lau, City of La Verne, Board Member 
  Elizabeth Ontiveros-Cole, City of Pomona, Board Member 
  Ronald T. Vera, City of Claremont, Board Member  
  Jamie Earl, City of Claremont, Alternate Board Member 
      
ABSENT: Jed Leano, City of Claremont, Chair 
    
STAFF   
 
PRESENT: Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
  Steven Flower, General Counsel  
  Diana Acosta, Chief Financial Officer 
  Elizabeth Renteria, Chief Clinical Officer 
  Dana Barford, Director of MHSA & Ethnic Services 

Natalie Majors-Stewart, Chief Compliance Officer 
  Mica Olmos, JPA Administrator/Clerk 

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Vice-Chair Nolte opened the meeting for public comment. There was no public comment. 
 
There being no comment, Board Member Vera moved, and Board Member Lau seconded, to 
approve the Minutes from the July 19, 2023 Governing Board Meeting. The motion was carried 
by the following vote, AYES: Alternate Board Member Earl; Board Members Lantz, Lau, 
Ontiveros-Cole, and Vera; and Vice-Chair Nolte. NOES: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Board 
Member Cockrell; and Chair Leano. 
 
 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Regular Meeting – Minutes 
November 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 6 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE JULY 19, 2023 GOVERNING BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING  

Recommendation: “A motion to approve the Minutes of the Governing Board Regular 
Meeting of July 19, 2023.” 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 20, 2023 GOVERNING BOARD  
REGULAR MEETING  

 
Recommendation:  “A motion to approve the Minutes of the Governing Board Regular 
Meeting of September 20, 2023.” 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE OCTOBER 18, 2023 GOVERNING BOARD  
REGULAR MEETING  

 
Recommendation:  “A motion to approve the Minutes of the Governing Board Regular 
Meeting of October 18, 2023.” 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
4. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 726 AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE DISPOSITION AND 
DEVELOPMENT (DDA) AGREEMENT WITH RESTORE NEIGHBORHOODS, LA, INC. 
(RNLA) FOR THE CLAREMONT GARDENS SENIOR HOUSING PROJECT AT 956 W 
BASELINE ROAD IN CLAREMONT, CALIFORNIA 

 
At 5:04 p.m., Board Member Carolyn Cockrell arrived at the meeting. 

 
Executive Director Hundal reported that on February 19, 2020, the Tri-City Mental Health 
Authority Governing Board adopted Resolution No. 520 designating its No Place Like Home 
(NPLH) Non-Competitive Allocation Funds in the amount of $1,140,736 to develop a 15-unit 
construction of combined affordable housing and permanent supportive senior housing project, 
known as Claremont Gardens, in partnership with the City of Claremont, Genesis LA, and Restore 
Neighborhoods, LA, Inc. (RNLA); and that on February 17, 2021, the Governing Board adopted 
Resolution No. 574 authorizing the Executive Director to enter into, and execute, a Disposition 
and Development Agreement with RNLA for the development, financing, and operation of the 
Claremont Gardens at TCMHA’s property located at 956 W Baseline Road in Claremont, 
California, with a closing date in December 2022.  However, there were some delays in closing 
escrow due to RNLA working in obtaining final prevailing wage pricing for contractors, finalizing 
multiple performance bonds for the project, and producing the final documents for the funding 
from the County of Los Angeles; therefore, on December 21, 2022, the Governing Board 
authorized an Amendment to the DDA to close escrow on March 31, 2023; nevertheless, delays 
continued and RNLA would like to extend the close of escrow to February 15, 2024; and that the 
fiscal impact continues to be transferring the property located at 596 West Baseline Road in 
Claremont, providing supportive services to residents at the future Claremont Gardens 15-unit 
housing development for 20 years, and providing 15 years of additional annual funding as a 
Capital Operating Subsidy Reserve (COSR) in the amount of $24,000 with 3.5 % annual increase 
for Tri-City Mental Health Authority’s eight permanent supportive housing units. 

 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Regular Meeting – Minutes 
November 15, 2023 
Page 3 of 6 
 
Vice-Chair Nolte opened the meeting for public comment. There was no public comment. 

 
Board Member Vera inquired about the timing of the adoption of the Third Amendment to the DDA 
before the closing date. Legal Counsel Flower replied in the affirmative, noting that it would have 
been ideal to adopt the Third Amendment before the closing deadline expired; nevertheless, the 
Governing Board was good to proceed. 

 
There being no further comment, Board Member Vera moved, Vice Chair Nolte seconded, to 
adopt Resolution No. 726 authorizing the Executive Director to execute the Third Amendment to 
the Disposition and Development (DDA) Agreement with Restore Neighborhoods, LA, Inc. 
(RNLA) for the Claremont Gardens Senior Housing Project at 956 W Baseline Road in Claremont, 
California. The motion was carried by the following vote, AYES: Alternate Board Member Earl; 
Board Members Cockrell, Lantz, Lau, Ontiveros-Cole, and Vera; and Vice-Chair Nolte. NOES: 
None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: Chair Leano. 
 
MONTHLY STAFF REPORTS 
 
5. RIMMI HUNDAL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

 
Executive Director Hundal reported that the Information Technology Department is currently 
working on refreshing the public-facing hardware for the Wellness Center, the core space for 
looking for jobs, printing for college students, mock interviews online, and more, noting that they 
will have a brand new computer lab soon. She then provided a staffing update. 
 
6. DIANA ACOSTA, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER REPORT 

 
Chief Financial Officer Acosta reported that the Finance Department is still in the middle of an 
audit; and that they anticipate to present the audited Financial Statements to the Governing Board 
by January of 2024, noting that the implementation of the new GASB 96 has caused delays. She 
added that the Authority is meeting the target numbers and staying clear of any risk of reversion 
of MHSA funds. 

 
Board Member Vera referred to page 2 of the report and sought clarification about the additional 
amount of $1.8 million dollars received on November 8, 2023. Chief Financial Officer Acosta 
stated that the information is correct and explained that the Authority receives payments from the 
Los Angeles County sporadically and not on a consistent monthly basis; that typically after the 
close of the fiscal year, it still takes time for LA County to send money, and this is the reason for 
which sometimes Tri-City receives large lump sum payments, such as the $1.8 million that was 
recently received, noting that it was for outstanding receivables from the previous fiscal year; and 
that they are Medi-Cal dollars, which includes Realignment. 

 
Board Member Vera inquired about the $1.4 million shown in the report. Chief Financial Officer 
Acosta shared that the funds were for SB 90, a receivable that had been on the books for many 
years dating back to 1999 and finally the Authority had received the funds. Controller Bogle added 
that they are mandated costs that the State imposes to the Counties; that for a long period of time 
counties were not collecting and they would remove receivables from tens of millions of dollars 
from County cappers; and that those payments started slowly rolling in around 2015-2016.  Board 
Member Vera inquired if those are generally unrestricted monies that are now available. Chief 
Financial Officer Acosta responded in the affirmative, stating that those are pre-MHSA dollars. 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Regular Meeting – Minutes 
November 15, 2023 
Page 4 of 6 
 
Board Member Lantz inquired about the progress of the community garden. Chief Financial 
Officer Acosta shared that it is mostly completed, but that they are still waiting on the actual 
structure which had been tied up with final approval of the plans from the City of Pomona; that 
there is also a six-month delay for the gazebo structure, but mostly everything else is completed 
and on schedule. 
 
7. LIZ RENTERIA, CHIEF CLINICAL OFFICER REPORT 

 
Chief Clinical Officer Renteria reported that CARE Court in Los Angeles County is slated to start 
on December 1st; that the Los Angeles Department of Mental Health will be the entity processing 
the referrals from the court; and that Tri-City clinical leadership have developed scripts for staff to 
explain what CARE Court is when they interact with the public; that information will be posted on 
Tri-City’s website to help answer questions, including any other resources. She added that the 
rest of her report touches on where CARE court is now, the criteria, and the efforts taken internally 
to move the initiative forward. 

 
Board Member Vera inquired about what to tell Claremont City officials about the implementation 
of CARE Court. Chief Clinical Officer Renteria stated that the main thing to know is to file the 
petition with the court; that the local petition for TCMHA’s catchment area would be the Pomona 
Courthouse, noting that a petition cannot be filed at Tri-City Mental Health Authority; and that one 
of the criteria is that they have to be engaged in services. She explained that Tri-City’s role in the 
whole process is to receive referrals after the Los Angeles County and the courts have processed 
them. She also indicated that it would be good to share with the community the resources that LA 
County has created for making CARE Court petitions; and that staff can do a presentation on that 
at a Council meeting for Claremont.  

 
Board Member Lantz inquired about the role of the Pomona Courthouse. Chief Clinical Officer 
Renteria stated that the court cases will be heard in Norwalk, but the Pomona Courthouse will 
help community members file the petitions. 
 
8. SEEYAM TEIMOORI, MEDICAL DIRECTOR REPORT 

 
Executive Director Hundal announced that Medical Director Teimoori was absent and she would 
answer questions on his behalf.  There were not questions. 
 
9. DANA BARFORD, DIRECTOR OF MHSA AND ETHNIC SERVICES REPORT 

 
Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services Barford talked about the Community Planning Process, 
noting that Tri-City had the first in-person stakeholder meeting, as well as the virtual meeting; that 
the number of people engaged last year is estimated to be around 100, which is low and partially 
due to COVID, and that staff set that number as their original goal. She then reported that by the 
end of November there will be 102 persons engaged as a result of the various micro-stakeholder 
meetings, which will continue until February.  She shared about one micro-stakeholder meeting 
held at Scripps College, during which staff answered questions from students regarding 
individuals who experience sexual trauma, Project Sister, and 5150’s; and that staff was able to 
share Tri-City’s relationship with Cities of Claremont, La Verne and Pomona, the PACT team and 
all the efforts that law enforcement is making. She then asked the Board to email names of 
organizations or individuals who would be interested in presentations, noting that staff are hoping 
to book presentations as soon as possible. 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Regular Meeting – Minutes 
November 15, 2023 
Page 5 of 6 
 
Board Member Vera inquired about the process of reaching out to community members and 
organizations and if the end purpose is to engage more stakeholders, get them more involved in 
the planning of new programs and guidance on existing programs. Director of MHSA and Ethnic 
Services Barford responded that staff want to share about Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
services, collaboration, Innovation, and SB 326, which will become effective March 5th. She 
added that she had distributed a survey to the Governing Board and would love to hear their 
feedback. Lastly, she announced that WET Supervisor Colt was in attendance; that she 
supervises the Innovation team; and that she will keep the Governing Board updated of the 
timeline of the various benchmarks with Innovations. 
 
10. NATALIE MAJORS-STEWART, CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER REPORT 
 
Chief Compliance Officer Majors-Stewart introduced a new project that the Best Practices staff 
will be launching as the Centralized Scheduling project is ending, and indicated that scheduling 
post-COVID, is very different; that staff would like to take a deeper dive to analyze and to make 
sure that staff are putting their best effort in the right places regarding scheduling, to get the best 
results for client care, staffing workflow, and revenue. She added that a report with more 
information will be presented to the Governing Board soon, which will include a lot of infrastructure 
and workflow changes, noting that Best Practices staff will be working very closely with the Clinical 
department. 

 
Board Member Cockrell inquired if the number of cancellations have increased.  Chief Compliance 
Officer Majors-Stewart replied in the affirmative, stating that no-shows are on the rise nationally; 
that clients are preferring different types of services and methodologies; and that Tri-City staff will 
look at how to increase engagement. 

 
GOVERNING BOARD COMMENT 
 
Board Member Vera inquired about how Commissioners become a Commissioner. JPA 
Clerk/Administrator Olmos indicated that there is currently a recruitment; that there are two 
openings but the Board can appoint a total of six new Commissioners.  Executive Director Hundal 
added that they need someone who is a veteran, from ages 18 to 25, somehow connected to 
mental health either through work or lived experience; that once all the applications are accepted, 
the Governing Board interview applicants and selects who can become a member of the Mental 
Health Commission.  JPA Clerk/Administrator Olmos affirmed that the Board would have to create 
an Ad-Hoc Committee to interview applicants and then make a recommendation to the rest of the 
Board. 
 
Board Member Ontiveros-Cole inquired if Tri-City Mental Health Authority’s community planning 
process also includes private organizations. Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services replied in the 
affirmative, stating that Tri-City would like to increase its professional affiliations, and that staff 
just need the organization names to connect with them. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
 
 



Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Governing Board Regular Meeting – Minutes 
November 15, 2023 
Page 6 of 6 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 5:31 p.m., on consensus of the Governing Board its meeting of November 15, 2023 was 
adjourned.  The Governing Board will meet next in a Regular Joint Meeting with the Mental Health 
Commission to be held on Wednesday, December 20, 2023 at 5:00 p.m., in the MHSA 
Administrative Office, 2001 North Garey Avenue, Pomona, California. 
 
 
       
Micaela P. Olmos, JPA Administrator/Clerk 



 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
  

DATE: December 20, 2023 
 
TO:  Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority  

    
FROM:  Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director                  
 
BY:  Mica Olmos, JPA Administrator/Clerk            

 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 727 Adopting the 2024 Meeting 

Schedule of the Tri-City Mental Health Authority Governing Board and 
Mental Health Commission  

 

 
Summary: 
 
The Joint Powers Agreement between the Cities of Claremont, La Verne, and Pomona, 
requires that the Governing Board provide the date, hour, and place of its regular 
meetings and it shall be fixed by resolution of the Governing Board.   
 
Background: 
 
It is convenient and useful to Tri-City Mental Health Authority’s clients and partners, 
Governing Board, and staff to fix the dates of the Regular Meetings, and other significant 
meetings, of the Governing Board and the Mental Health Commission through the 
adoption of an annual schedule. 
 
The Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority currently conducts its Regular 
Meetings, and its Joint Meetings with the Mental Health Commission, at 5:00 p.m. on the 
third Wednesday of the month, except during the month of August when meetings are not 
held, in the MHSA Office located at 2001 North Garey Avenue in Pomona, California.   
 
Funding:  
 
None required. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Governing Board adopt Resolution No. 727 establishing the 
dates, time, and place where the Governing Board and the Mental Health Commission 
Meetings are held.   
 
Attachment: 
 
Attachment 5-A: Resolution No. 727, Adopting the 2024 GB & MHC Meeting Schedule 



 

ATTACHMENT 5-A 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 727 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE TRI-CITY 
MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY ADOPTING ITS 2024 MEETING 
SCHEDULE  

 
The Governing Board of the Tri-City Mental Health Authority does resolve as follows: 
 
1. Findings. The Governing Board hereby finds and declares the following:  

 
A. Tri-City Mental Health Authority (“TCMHA” or “Authority”) conducts its Regular 

Meetings, and its Joint Meetings with the Mental Health Commission, at 5:00 p.m. on the third 
Wednesday of the month, in the MHSA Office located at 2001 North Garey Avenue in Pomona, 
California.   

 
B. The Joint Powers Agreement between the Cities of Claremont, La Verne, and 

Pomona, requires that the Governing Board provide the date, hour, and place of its regular 
meetings and shall be fixed by resolution of the Governing Board. 
 

C. It is convenient and useful to TCMHA’s clients and partners, Governing Board, 
and staff to fix the dates of the Regular Meetings of the Governing Board and the Mental Health 
Commission, and of other significant meetings, through the adoption of an annual schedule. 

 
2. Action 
 
The Governing Board adopts the Authority’s 2024 Meeting Schedule attached herein as “Exhibit 
A”. 
 
3. Adoption   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Joint Meeting of the Governing Board and the Mental 
Health Commission held on December 20, 2024, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:     
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
STEVEN L. FLOWER, GENERAL COUNSEL 
 
 
By:  

   
JED LEANO, CHAIR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
MICAELA P. OLMOS, RECORDING SECRETARY 
 
 
By:  

 



Administrative Office  
1717 North Indian Hill  
Boulevard, Suite B 
Claremont, CA 91711 
Phone (909) 623-6131 
Fax (909) 623-4073 

Clinical Office / Adult  
2008 North Garey Avenue 
Pomona, CA 91767 
Phone (909) 623-6131 
Fax (909) 865-9281 

Clinical Office / Child & Family 
1900 Royalty Drive, Suite 180 
Pomona, CA 91767 
Phone (909) 766-7340 
Fax (909) 865-0730 

MHSA Administrative Office 
2001 North Garey Avenue 
Pomona, CA 91767 
Phone (909) 623-6131 
Fax (909) 326-4690 

Wellness Center 
1403 North Garey Avenue  
Pomona, CA 91767 
Phone (909) 242-7600 
Fax (909) 242-7691 

 
 
 

 

HOPE. WELLNESS. COMMUNITY. 
Let’s find it together. 

Founded in 1960  
by the residents 
of Pomona, 
Claremont and La 
Verne. 

 
www.tricitymhs.org  

 

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

 
2024 MEETING SCHEDULE 

Effective January 1, 2024 
 

 
Governing Board Regular Meetings 

Held the 3rd Wednesday of the Month*; except in August when no meetings are held 

Mental Health Commission Regular Meetings 
Held the 2nd Tuesday of the Month*; except in August when no meetings are held 

*Joint Regular Meetings of the Governing Board and Mental Health Commission are 
held twice annually on the 3rd Wednesday of the months of May and December. 

 
Meeting Location 

MHSA Office, 2001 N. Garey Avenue, Pomona, CA  91767 

 

  Governing Board  Mental Health Commission  
January  17 5:00 p.m.  9 3:30 p.m. 

February  21 5:00 p.m.  13 3:30 p.m. 

March  20 5:00 p.m.  12 3:30 p.m. 

April  17 5:00 p.m.  9 3:30 p.m. 

May  15* 5:00 p.m.  15* 5:00 p.m. 

June  19 5:00 p.m.  11 3:30 p.m. 

July  17 5:00 p.m.  9 3:30 p.m. 

August  DARK  DARK 

September  18 5:00 p.m.  10 3:30 p.m. 

October  16 5:00 p.m.  8 3:30 p.m. 

 November  20 5:00 p.m.  12 3:30 p.m. 

December  18* 5:00 p.m.   18* 5:00 p.m. 

http://www.tricitymhs.org/


 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 DATE: December 20, 2023 

 
TO:  Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority  

  
FROM:  Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
   
BY:  Diana Acosta, CPA, Chief Financial Officer                                

 
SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution No. 728 Adopting Tri-City Mental Health 

Authority’s Published Rates Effective Beginning Fiscal Year 2022-23 
 

    

Summary 
 
In order to conform to the Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health’s cost 
reporting process, staff is requesting the Governing Board to approve an increase of Tri-
City’s current Published Rates to be effective beginning Fiscal Year 2022-23.   
 
Background 
 
In accordance with LA County Department of Mental Health cost reporting process, it is 
required that Tri-City’s Published Rates be approved by the Governing Board.  Based on 
Tri-City’s best estimate of the total direct cost and allowed administrative cost (15% of 
direct costs) to provide services to all outpatient and FSP clients in fiscal 2022-23, it is 
estimated that the actual unit costs will exceed Tri-City’s current Published Rates.  The 
current Published Rates were last updated in November of 2022 and made effective for 
fiscal year 2021-22.  Therefore, the Published Rates listed below are recommended to 
be approved effective beginning Fiscal Year 2022-23.  The rates represent the charge 
per minute of service. 
 

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY PUBLISHED RATES 

OUTPATIENT SERVICES SFC CURRENT 
RATES 

RECOMMENDED   
RATES BEGINNING 

FY 2022-23 
Targeted Case  Management 15/01-09 $ 3.78 $ 3.92 
Collateral 15/10-19 $ 4.86 $ 5.03 
Mental Health Services 15/30-59 $ 4.86 $ 5.03 
Medical Support 15/60-69 $ 8.97 $ 9.29 
Crisis Intervention 15/70-79 $ 7.21 $ 7.46 

 
 
 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority  
Approval of Resolution No. 728 Adopting Tri-City Mental Health Authority’s Published 
Rates for FY 2022-23 
December 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The rate at which Tri-City is reimbursed is based on actual costs.  Those rates should not 
exceed published rates; therefore, the increase to the Published Rates allows for Tri-City 
to recapture actual costs.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Governing Board adopt Resolution No. 728 establishing Tri-
City Mental Health Authority’s Published Rates effective Fiscal Year 2022-23 as 
presented. 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment 6-A:  Resolution No. 728 - DRAFT  
 
 
 



 

ATTACHMENT 6-A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 628 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE TRI-CITY 
MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY ADOPTING THE AUTHORITY’S 
PUBLISHED RATES EFFECTIVE BEGINNING FISCAL YEAR 
2022-23 
 
 

The Governing Board of the Tri-City Mental Health Authority does resolve as 
follows: 
 
1. Findings. The Governing Board hereby finds and declares the following: 

 
A. Tri-City Mental Health Authority (“Authority” or “TCMHA”) desires to conform 

to the Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health’s cost reporting process. 
 

B. It is estimated that the unit costs to provide services to all outpatient and 
Full Service Partnership (FSP) clients in Fiscal Year 2022-23 will exceed the existing 
TCMHA’s Published Rates established and effective beginning in Fiscal Year 2021-22.   

 
2. Action   
 
The Governing Board approves the following charge per minute of service Published 
Rates listed below to be effective July 1st in Fiscal Year 2022-23.   
 
 

TRI-CITY  MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY PUBLISHED RATES 

Outpatient Services SFC Current 
Rates 

Recommended 
Rates Beginning  

Fiscal Year 2022-23 
Targeted Case  Management 15/01-09 $ 3.78 $ 3.92 
Collateral 15/10-19 $ 4.86 $ 5.03 
Mental Health Services 15/30-59 $ 4.86 $ 5.03 
Medical Support 15/60-69 $ 8.97 $ 9.29 
Crisis Intervention 15/70-79 $ 7.21 $ 7.46 

 
 
[Continued on Page 2] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 728 
GOVERNING BOARD OF THE TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
PAGE 2 

 
 

3. Adoption   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Joint Meeting of the Governing Board and the 
Mental Health Commission held on December 20, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:   
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:   
  

 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
STEVEN L. FLOWER, GENERAL COUNSEL 
 
 
By:  

   
JED LEANO, CHAIR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
MICAELA P. OLMOS, RECORDING SECRETARY 
 
 
By:  

 



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 DATE: December 20, 2023 

 
TO:  Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
    
FROM:  Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director      
 
BY:  Diana Acosta, CPA, Chief Financial Officer  
  Mica Olmos, JPA Administrator/Clerk            
                                    
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 729 Authorizing the Executive 

Director to Execute a New Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement 
with Restore Neighborhoods, LA, Inc., and the Lenders of the 
Claremont Gardens Senior Housing Project at 956 W Baseline Road in 
Claremont, California  

 

 
Summary: 

 
Staff seeks Governing Board approval of a New Subordination and Intercreditor 
Agreement with Restore Neighborhoods LA, Inc. (RNLA), Genesis LA Economic Growth 
Corporation, City of Claremont, the County of Los Angeles, and the San Gabriel Valley 
Regional Housing Trust for the Claremont Gardens Senior Housing Project, which is 
required by the Developer of the project described in the Agreement.   
 
Background: 
 
On February 19, 2020, TCMHA Governing Board adopted Resolution No. 520 
designating its No Place Like Home (NPLH) Non-Competitive Allocation Funds in the 
amount of $1,140,736 to develop a 15-unit construction/rehabilitation combined 
affordable housing and permanent supportive senior housing project, known as 
Claremont Gardens, in partnership with the City of Claremont, Genesis LA Economic 
Growth Corporation, and Restore Neighborhoods, LA, Inc. (RNLA).   
 
On February 17, 2021 the Governing Board adopted Resolution No. 574 authorizing the 
Executive Director to enter into, and execute, a Disposition and Development Agreement 
(DDA) with RNLA for the development, financing, and operation of the Claremont 
Gardens at TCMHA’s property located at 956 W Baseline Road in Claremont, California.  
The DDA specified a closing date of, on or before June 30, 2021.  
 
The California Department for Housing and Community Development (CDHDC) did not 
award TCMHA' NPLH non-competitive funds, until August 29, 2022; and on September 
21, 2022, the Governing Board adopted Resolution No. 671 authorizing the acceptance 
of the Authority’s non-competitive allocation award in the amount of $1,140,000 under the 
NPLH program (Round 4) for the Claremont Gardens Project.  Accordingly, TCMHA and 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority  
Consideration of Resolution No. 729 Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute the New 
Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement with Restore Neighborhoods LA, Inc, and the 
Lenders of the Claremont Gardens Senior Housing Project at 956 W Baseline Road in 
Claremont, California 
December 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 
RNLA amended the DDA on October 19, 2022, in order to extend the closing deadline to 
December 31, 2022; and approve a “Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement” required 
by other lenders for the project described in the Agreement.  
 
Unfortunately, there were some delays in closing escrow at the end of December 2022 
due to RNLA working on obtaining final prevailing-wage pricing for small subcontractors; 
finalizing multiple performance bonds for the project; and producing the final documents 
for the funding from the County of Los Angeles. Therefore, on December 21, 2022 the 
Governing Board adopted Resolution No. 689 authorizing the Second Amendment to the 
DDA to extend the close of escrow to March 31, 2023.  However, delays continued and 
again the project did not close escrow on the established deadline by the Agreement. 
 
Most recently, on November 15, 2023, the TCMHA Governing Board adopted Resolution 
No. 726 Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute a Third Amendment to the DDA 
and extend the close of escrow deadline to February 15, 2024. At this time a new 
Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement is required to update and incorporate changes 
in funding by two lenders Genesis LA and the San Gabriel Valley Regional Housing Trust.  
No amounts relating to TCMHA or the rest of the lenders have changed. 
 
A Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement is an agreement among lenders, or classes 
of lenders, describing their respective rights and obligations with respect to the borrower 
and its assets and addresses the security interest priority, the rights to various remedies 
and rights in bankruptcy. The agreement establishes the creditors’ relative rights to 
receive payments from the borrower and to enforce security interests in the borrower's 
collateral.   
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The Subordination and Intercreditor agreement documents, in order of priority, the 
security interests in and liens against the property located at 956 W. Baseline Road in 
Claremont. The Disposition and Development Agreement established TCMHA’s 
commitment: 1) to transfer its property located at 956 W. Baseline Road in Claremont for 
the Claremont Gardens Senior Housing Project; 2) to provide supportive services to 
residents at the future Claremont Gardens, 15-unit housing development for 20 years; 
and 3) to provide for 15 years additional annual funding as a Capital Operating Reserve 
Subsidy (COSR) in the amount of $24,000, with 3.5% annual increase, for Tri-City’s eight 
(8) permanent supportive housing units at Claremont Gardens.  
 
 
 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority  
Consideration of Resolution No. 729 Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute the New 
Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement with Restore Neighborhoods LA, Inc, and the 
Lenders of the Claremont Gardens Senior Housing Project at 956 W Baseline Road in 
Claremont, California 
December 20, 2023 
Page 3 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Tri-City staff recommends that the Governing Board adopt Resolution No. 729 authorizing 
the Executive Director to execute the New Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement 
with Restore Neighborhoods LA, Inc. (RNLA), Genesis LA Economic Growth Corporation, 
City of Claremont, the County of Los Angeles, and the San Gabriel Valley Regional 
Housing Trust, in connection with the Claremont Gardens Senior Housing Project located 
at 956 W. Baseline Road in Claremont, California.  
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment 7-A:  Resolution No. 729 - DRAFT 
 
Attachment 7-B:  Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement - DRAFT 
  



 

ATTACHMENT 7-A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 729 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE TRI-CITY 
MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A NEW SUBORDINATION AND 
INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT WITH RESTORE NEIGHBORHOODS, 
LA, INC. FOR THE CLAREMONT GARDENS SENIOR HOUSING 
PROJECT AT 956 W BASELINE ROAD IN CLAREMONT, CALIFORNIA  

 
 

The Governing Board of the Tri-City Mental Health Authority does resolve as 
follows: 
 
1. Findings. The Governing Board hereby finds and declares the following:  

 
A. Tri-City Mental Health Authority (“TCMHA or Authority”) adopted Resolution 

No. 574 on February 17, 2022, authorizing to enter into, and execute, a Disposition and 
Development Agreement (DDA) with Restore Neighborhoods, LA, Inc. (RNLA) for the 
development, construction, financing, and operation of fifteen (15) units for seniors of 
combined affordable and permanent supportive housing project, known as the Claremont 
Gardens, at 956 W. Baseline Road, Claremont, California 91711.  

 
B. On October 19, 2022, the Authority adopted Resolution No. 676 amending 

the DDA to extend the escrow closing deadline to December 31, 2022; and approving a 
“Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement” with all the lenders of the Claremont 
Gardens project.  

 
C. On December 21, 2022, the Authority adopted Resolution No. 689 

approving the Second Amendment to the DDA to extend the closing deadline to March 
31, 2023; and on November 15, 2023, adopted Resolution No. 726, approving the Third 
Amendment to the DDA extending the escrow closing deadline to February 15, 2024.  

 
D. The Authority desires to approve a new “Subordination and Intercreditor 

Agreement” with RNLA and the lenders of the project described in the Agreement.  
 
2. Action 
 
The Authority’s Executive Director is authorized to enter into, and execute, the new 
Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement, with RNLA and the lenders for the Claremont 
Gardens housing project located at 956 W. Baseline Road in Claremont, California, 
effective December 20, 2023, replacing and superseding all previous versions. 
 
[Continued on Page 2] 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 729 
GOVERNING BOARD OF THE TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
PAGE 2 

 
 

3. Adoption   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Joint Meeting of the Governing Board and the 
Mental Health Commission held on December 20, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:   
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:   
  

 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
STEVEN L. FLOWER, GENERAL COUNSEL 
 
 
By:  

   
JED LEANO, CHAIR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
MICAELA P. OLMOS, RECORDING SECRETARY 
 
 
By:  

 



 1 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL 
DOCUMENT TO: 
Genesis LA Economic Growth Corporation 
801 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 775 
Los Angeles, CA  90017 
Attn: Jessica Waybright 

 
(Above Space for Recorder's Use Only) 

NOTICE: THIS SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT RESULTS IN YOUR SECURITY INTEREST 
IN THE PROPERTY BECOMING SUBJECT TO AND OF LOWER PRIORITY THAN THE LIEN 
OF SOME OTHER OR LATER SECURITY INSTRUMENT. 

 
SUBORDINATION AND INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT 

THIS SUBORDINATION AND INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 
entered into as of December 20, 2023, by and among (i) GENESIS LA ECONOMIC GROWTH 
CORPORATION, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, with offices at 801 S. Grand 
Avenue, Suite 775, Los Angeles, CA  90017 (“Genesis”), (ii) CITY OF CLAREMONT, a 
municipal corporation (“Claremont”), (iii) TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY, a public 
agency (“TCMHA”), (iv) COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, a California county government 
(“County”), (v) THE SAN GABRIEL VALLEY REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST, a joint powers 
authority formed by statute of the State of California (“SGVRHT”), and consented and agreed to 
by (vi) RESTORE NEIGHBORHOODS, LA, INC., a California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation (“Borrower”)  

RECITALS:  

A. Borrower is obtaining ownership of the real property located at 956 Baseline 
Road in the City of Claremont which is more particularly described in the legal description 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and fully incorporated herein by reference (the “Property”) 
pursuant to the terms of that certain Disposition and Development Agreement (“DDA”) by and 
between Borrower and TCMHA and as evidenced by the Grant Deed from TCMHA to be 
recorded immediately preceding this Agreement in the Official Records of Los Angeles County 
California (the “Official Records”) and in connection with the transfer of the Property TCMHA is 
providing a loan in the amount of $446,373.90 (the “TCMHA Loan”) pursuant to the Promissory 
Note (the “TCMHA Note”), and secured by a Deed of Trust with Assignment of Rents (Short 
Form) executed by Borrower in favor of TCMHA (the “TCMHA Security Instrument”) and to be 
recorded substantially concurrently herewith in the Official Records. Also in connection with the 
transfer of the Property, TCMHA requires that the Property have a regulatory agreement 
(“TCMHA Regulatory Agreement”); and   

B. Genesis is making a loan to Borrower in the amount of $1,751,105 (the “Genesis 
Loan”), pursuant to a Loan Agreement (the “Genesis Loan Agreement”), and Promissory Note 
(the “Genesis Note”), and secured by a Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents and Security 
Agreement executed by Borrower in favor of Genesis (the “Genesis Security Instrument”) and 
to be recorded substantially concurrently herewith in the Official Records. Genesis is also 



 2 

requiring that a Declaration of Restrictive Covenant (“Genesis Restrictive Covenant”) be 
recorded substantially concurrently herewith in the Official Records; and  

C. Claremont is making a loan to Borrower in the amount of $1,750,000 (the 
“Claremont Loan”) pursuant to that certain Affordable Housing Agreement (RNLA Permanent 
Supportive Housing Project) dated July 1, 2020 (“Claremont AHA Agreement”), and 
Promissory Note (“Claremont Note”), and secured by a Deed of Trust executed by Borrower in 
favor of Claremont (the “Claremont Security Instrument”) and to be recorded substantially 
concurrently herewith in the Official Records. Claremont is also requiring that a Regulatory 
Agreement (“Claremont Regulatory Agreement”) and Notice of Affordability Restrictions on 
Transfer of Property (“Claremont Affordability Restrictions”) be recorded substantially 
concurrently herewith in the Official Records; and  

D. County is providing Borrower with a $750,000 grant pursuant to the terms of a 
Disbursement Agreement (“Disbursement Agreement”) and is requiring the Declaration of 
Restrictive Covenants (for the Development and Operation of Interim Supportive Housing) (the 
“County Use Restriction”) be recorded substantially concurrently herewith in the Official 
Records; and  

E. SGVHTF is making a loan to Borrower in the amount of $1,000,223 (the 
“SGVRHT Loan” and together with the Claremont Loan and TCMHA Loan, the “Subordinate 
Loans”) pursuant to a Development Loan Agreement (“SGVRHT Loan Agreement”) and the 
Development Loan Promissory Note Secured by Deed of Trust (“SGVRHT Note”) secured by a 
Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing With Assignment of Leases and Rents 
(“SGVRHT Security Instrument” and together with the Genesis Security Instrument, TCMHA 
Security Instrument, and Claremont Security Instrument the “Security Instruments”) to be 
recorded substantially concurrently herewith in the Official Records. SGVRHT is also requiring a 
Regulatory Agreement (“SGVRHT Regulatory Agreement”) be recorded substantially 
concurrently herewith in the Official Records; and  

F. It is the intention of Claremont, TCMHA, County and SGVRHT (collectively the 
“Subordinate Lenders”) and Genesis (and together with the Subordinate Lenders each, a 
“Lender”) that the liens against the Property restricting the use of the Property to affordable 
housing (DDA, Genesis Restrictive Covenant, Claremont Regulatory Agreement, Claremont 
Affordability Restrictions, County Use Restriction, SGVRHT Regulatory Agreement collectively 
the “Use Restrictions”) be recorded against the Property prior to the Security Instruments and 
in the priority positions set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement, notwithstanding the different 
times of recording and/or perfection of such liens;  

G. It is the intention of the Lenders that the security interests in and liens against the 
Collateral (as defined below) by the Lenders be in the priority positions set forth in Section 2 of 
this Agreement, notwithstanding the different times of recording and/or perfection of security 
interests; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, Lenders hereby agree as follows: 

1. Priority of Use Restrictions.  Notwithstanding the order of, or date of recording 
and/or perfection thereof, the Use Restrictions shall rank in the order of priority set forth below, 
provided however, in the event of a conflict, the most stringent or restrictive standard or 



 3 

requirement applicable to the use of the Property shall control. The Use Restrictions shall all be 
senior to the Security Instruments described in Section 2 below.    

 (a) TCMHA Regulatory Agreement; 

 (b)  County Use Restriction; 

 (c) Claremont Regulatory Agreement; 

 (d) Claremont Affordability Restrictions; 

 (e) SGVRHT Regulatory Agreement; 

 (f) Genesis Restrictive Covenant.  

2. Priority of Security Instruments. Notwithstanding the order of, or date of recording 
and/or perfection thereof, the Security Instruments in or against the Collateral shall rank in the 
following order of priority after the Use Restrictions as set forth in Section 1 above:   

 (a) Genesis Security Instrument shall rank in the first priority position and the 
right of reversion in the DDA is hereby subordinated to the Genesis deed of trust;  

 (b) Claremont Security Instrument shall be subordinate to the Genesis 
Security Instrument;  

 (c) TCMHA Security Agreement shall be subordinate to the Genesis Security 
Instrument and the Claremont Security Instrument; 

 (d) SGVRHT Security Instrument shall be subordinate to the Genesis 
Security Instrument, the Claremont Security Instrument and TCMHA Security Instrument.  

The term “Loan Documents” means all documents, fully executed by the applicable parties, in 
the form prescribed by the Lender, together with any additional documents, items and funds as 
such Lender may require in connection with such Lender’s loan, provided that such additional 
document, items and funds shall not modify or otherwise affect the rights of Subordinate 
Lenders. 

  Any real or personal property serving as collateral under any of the Genesis Loan 
Documents, the Claremont Loan Documents, TCMHA Loan Documents or SGVRHT Loan 
Documents is referred to herein as the “Collateral”.    

(e) Lenders agree that the subordination set forth in Section 2(a)-(d) above shall 
apply to all payments, whether obligatory or voluntary, plus all interest, fees, charges, costs and 
expenses due or to become due under each Lenders Loan Documents.  

3. Payments Before Event of Default.  Prior to the receipt by any Lender of an 
Enforcement Notice (as defined below) from another Lender who is party to this Agreement, 
such Lender may accept payments made by or on behalf of Borrower pursuant to the terms of 
the Lender’s Loan Documents.  “Enforcement Notice” means a written notice delivered by any 
Lender to the other Lenders notifying the other Lenders that the sender is commencing an 



 4 

Enforcement (as defined below) and specifying the event of default and the actions proposed to 
be taken by the sender. 

4. Enforcement Action.  Each Lender hereto agrees not to commence any 
Enforcement prior to its delivery to the other Lenders of an Enforcement Notice.  “Enforcement” 
means any demand for accelerated payment from a Lender made pursuant to such Lender’s 
Loan Documents and/or the enforcement of any of such Lender’s rights and/or remedies 
thereunder or permitted by law.  Until the Genesis Loan is satisfied or the Collateral is released 
by Genesis, the Subordinate Lenders shall not, without the prior written consent of Genesis, 
commence any Enforcement until the date which is one hundred twenty (120) days following the 
delivery by any Subordinate Lender to Genesis of an Enforcement Notice (“Enforcement Notice 
Period”); provided however, that such limitation on the remedies of any Subordinate Lender 
shall not derogate or otherwise limit the Subordinate Lender’s rights, following an event of 
default under such Lender’s Loan Documents to (a) compute interest on all amounts due and 
payable under such Subordinate Loan at the default rate described in the Loan Documents, and 
(b) compute late charges.  Except as to the priority rights described in Sections 1 and 2 hereof, 
each Lender further agrees that it shall not interfere with any exercise by or on behalf of the 
other Lender(s) of its rights in respect of its security interest in and lien against the Collateral. 
During the Enforcement Notice Period, each Lender agrees to act in good faith to attempt to 
structure a commercially reasonable workout or other arrangement to avoid any Lender taking 
possession of Collateral or exercising remedies, to the reasonable satisfaction of the Lenders. 

5. Cure Default.  Subordinate Lenders shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
cure any Genesis Loan default; provided, if such Subordinate Lender shall elect to cure such 
default, it shall so notify Genesis and shall commence and complete such curing within ten (10) 
days with respect to any default that may be cured by the payment of money or thirty (30) days 
for all other defaults; provided however, if such curing Subordinate Lender is diligently 
prosecuting the cure of a non-monetary default, Genesis may grant an additional period of up to 
thirty (30) days to complete the cure of such default. Genesis acknowledges that amounts 
advanced or expended by any Subordinate Lender to cure a Genesis Loan default may be 
added to and become part of the curing Subordinate Lender’s Loan. 

6. Distribution of Proceeds.  All proceeds received by any Lender (i) upon its 
foreclosure or other disposition of any of the Collateral, (ii) under any insurance policy, from any 
condemning authority, or from any other sources, as a result of any condemnation or casualty, 
or (iii) by voluntary payment of Borrower after a Lender delivers an Enforcement Notice to 
Borrower and/or other Lender, shall be provided to Genesis to  pay the outstanding obligations 
of the Genesis Loan, after deduction for all costs and expenses incurred by such Lender and 
permitted by law.  After the satisfaction of the Genesis Loan in full, Genesis shall distribute any 
remaining proceeds to Subordinate Lenders according to each Subordinate Lender’s lien 
position as set forth in Section 7 below 

7. Excess Payments.  If Genesis receives  payments in excess of the amount 
necessary to satisfy the Genesis Loan, Genesis shall  distribute such excess payments as 
follows: 

 a) first, to Claremont in the amount necessary to satisfy the Claremont Loan. Any 
excess funds thereafter remaining shall be paid, 

 b) second to TCMHA in the amount necessary to satisfy the TCMHA Loan. Any 
excess funds thereafter remaining shall be paid, 



 5 

 c) third, to SGVRHT in the amount necessary to satisfy the SGVRHT Loan.  

8. Bankruptcy Proceeding. “Bankruptcy Proceedings” shall mean any bankruptcy, 
reorganization, insolvency, composition, restructuring, dissolution, liquidation, receivership, 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or custodianship action or proceeding under any federal 
or state law with respect to Borrower.”   In the event of any Bankruptcy Proceeding relating to 
Borrower or the Property or, in the event of any Bankruptcy Proceeding relating to any other 
person or entity into which the assets or interests of Borrower are consolidated, then in either 
event, the Genesis Loan and the Subordinate Loans shall each be paid in full in order of priority. 
Subordinate Lenders agree that (i) Genesis and the Subordinate Lenders shall each receive all 
payments and distributions of every kind or character which Genesis and Subordinate Lenders 
would otherwise be entitled, until Genesis and Subordinate Lenders are each repaid in full,  and 
(ii) the subordination of the Subordinate Loans shall not be affected in any way by Genesis 
and/or any of the Subordinate Lenders electing, under Section 1111(b) of the federal bankruptcy 
code, to have their respective claim treated as being a fully secured claim.  In addition, 
Subordinate Lenders hereby covenant and agree that, in connection with a Bankruptcy 
Proceeding involving Borrower, neither Subordinate Lenders nor any of their affiliates shall (i) 
make or participate in a loan facility to or for the benefit of Borrower on a basis that is senior to 
or pari passu with the liens and interests held by Genesis or any Subordinate Lender holding 
priority position pursuant to the applicable loan documents, and (ii) not contest the continued 
accrual of interest on the Genesis Loan, in accordance with and at the rates specified in the 
Genesis Loan Documents, both for periods before and for periods after the commencement of 
such Bankruptcy Proceedings. 

9. Limitation on Transfer. No Lender shall assign, pledge or otherwise transfer, or 
permit or suffer to be assigned, pledged or otherwise transferred, or execute any power of 
attorney with respect to, the their respective Loan Documents, or any other instrument, 
document or agreement evidencing or securing any Loan set forth herein, unless the assignee, 
pledgee, or other transferee agrees in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  

10. Mutual Agreements.  Without the prior written consent of the other Lenders in 
each instance, no Lender shall (i) amend, modify, waive, extend, renew or replace any provision 
of any of its Loan Documents; or (ii) pledge, assign, transfer, convey, or sell any interest in its 
Loan or any of the Loan Documents; or (iii) accept any payment on account of the Loan other 
than a regularly scheduled payment of interest or principal; or (iv) take any action which has the 
effect of increasing such Lender’s Loan; or (v) take any action concerning environmental 
matters affecting the Property. Without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other Lenders, 
no Lender shall appear in, defend or bring any action in connection with the Collateral. 

11. Priority Governed By This Agreement.  The priorities specified herein are 
applicable, irrespective of the time or order of attachment or perfection of the liens and security 
interests of the parties hereto or of the time or order of recording of the deeds of trust or other 
security instruments of the parties hereto. 

12. Cross-Default.  Each Lender hereby agrees that a default under any other 
Lender’s Loan Documents, as defined therein, shall also constitute a default under that Lender’s 
Loan Documents notwithstanding the fact that no default has otherwise occurred under that 
Lender’s Loan Documents.  



 6 

13. Indemnification.  Each Lender (in this Section, “Lender A”) will indemnify and 
hold harmless each other Lender (in this Section, “Lender B”) from and against any and all 
liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or 
disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) which 
may be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against Lender A by a third party when Lender A is 
acting pursuant hereto or in any way relating to or arising out of this Agreement, provided, 
however, that Lender A shall not be liable under this Section for any such liabilities, obligations, 
losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements 
resulting from such other Lender B’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

14. Other Security/Waiver of Marshalling.  Nothing contained in this Agreement is 
intended to affect or limit the security interest that any Lender has or may have in Borrower’s 
real property or any third parties’ assets or obligations as security for its loan or loans made 
pursuant to the Loan Documents.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, each Lender waives 
any rights it may have, whether at law or in equity, to require any other Lender to marshall its 
collateral or any portion thereof, or otherwise to seek satisfaction from any particular or other 
assets of Borrower or from any third parties prior to enforcement action by the other Lender 
against the Collateral.  

15. Independent Credit Investigations.  No Lender, nor any of its respective directors, 
officers, agents or employees, shall be responsible to any other Lender or to any other person, 
firm or corporation, for the Borrower’s solvency, financial condition or otherwise, or for any 
statements of Borrower, oral or written, or for the validity, sufficiency or enforceability of any 
liens or security interests granted by Borrower to such other Lender.  Each Lender has entered 
into its respective agreements with Borrower based upon its own independent investigation, and 
makes no warranty or representation to any other Lender nor does it rely upon any 
representation of any other Lender with respect to matters identified or referred to in this 
Agreement. 

16. Limitation of Liability of Lenders to Each Other.  Except as provided in this 
Agreement, no Lender shall have any liability to any other Lender except for gross negligence or 
willful misconduct, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. 

17. Amendments to this Agreement.  All modifications or amendments of this 
Agreement must be in writing and duly executed by all Lenders.  

18. Default.  Borrower acknowledges that in the event any party fails to comply with 
its obligations hereunder the other parties shall have all rights available at law and in equity, 
including the right to obtain specific performance of the obligations of such defaulting party and 
injunctive relief.  No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power 
or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of 
any such right, power or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of 
any other right, power or remedy hereunder.   

19. Request for Information.  Lenders shall each, within ten (10) business days 
following a request from any other Lender, provide the requesting party with a written statement 
setting forth the then current outstanding principal balance of the subject loan, the aggregate 
accrued and unpaid interest under the subject loan, and stating whether, to the knowledge of 
such party, any default or event of default exists under the subject loan, and containing such 
other information with respect to the subject loan as the requesting party may reasonably 
request.  Upon notice from any Lender from time to time, a Lender shall execute and deliver 



 7 

such additional instruments and documents, and shall take such actions, as are required by 
such requesting Lender in order to further evidence or effectuate the provisions and intent of 
this Agreement.   

20. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the respective successors and assigns of each of the parties hereto.  The terms and 
provisions of this Agreement shall be for the sole benefit of the parties hereto and their 
respective successors and assigns, and no other person, firm, entity or corporation shall have 
any right, benefit, priority, or interest under, or because of this Agreement. 

21. Severability.  In case any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, such provision shall be severable from the rest of this Agreement and the 
validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or 
impaired thereby. 

22. Headings.  Headings of the Sections of this Agreement are inserted for 
convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute a part hereof.  

23. Applicable Law.  This Agreement is and shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

24. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute but one and 
the same instrument. 

25. Notices.  All notices, demands or other communications required or permitted to 
be given pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be considered 
as properly given if delivered personally or sent by first class United States Postal Service mail, 
postage prepaid, except that notice of Default may be sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or by Overnight Express Mail or by overnight commercial courier service, charges 
prepaid.  Notices so sent shall be effective three (3) days after mailing, if mailed by first class 
mail, and otherwise upon receipt at the address set forth below; provided, however, that non-
receipt of any communication as the result of any change of address of which the sending party 
was not notified or as the result of a refusal to accept delivery shall be deemed receipt of such 
communication.  For purposes of notice, the address of the parties shall be: 

Lenders:  
(i) Genesis LA Economic Growth Corporation 
 801 S. Grand Avenue 
 Suite 775 
 Los Angeles, California 90017 
 Attn: Thomas De Simone 

Facsimile No.: 213-533-8907 



 8 

(ii) City of Claremont 
207 Harvard Avenue 
Claremont, California 91711 
Attention: City Manager  

 Facsimile No.: (909) 399-5492  
 

(iii) Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
1717 N. Indian Hill Blvd., Suite B 
Claremont, CA 91711 
Attn: Executive Director 
 

(iv) Los Angeles County Department of Health Services 
313 N. Figueroa Street 
6th Floor East 
Los Angeles, California 90012 
Attn: Contracts and Grants Division 
 

(v) San Gabriel Valley Regional Housing Trust 
1333 S. Mayflower Avenue Unit 360 
Monrovia, CA 91016 
Attn: Executive Director 

Any party shall have the right to change its address for notice hereunder to any other 
location within the continental United States by the giving of thirty (30) days notice to the other 
parties in the manner set forth hereinabove. 

26. Recordation.  This Agreement shall be recorded in the official public records of 
Los Angeles County, California.  

27. Borrower Execution.  Borrower is executing this Agreement to evidence its 
agreement and consent to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, but this Agreement is not 
intended and shall not be construed to confer any additional rights upon Borrower other than 
those rights contained in the instruments, documents, and agreements evidencing or securing 
the Loans.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it is understood and agreed that any 
terms and provisions of this Agreement may be modified or amended by the Lenders without 
the consent of or notice to Borrower.  

 

[signatures follow on next page] 



 Signature Page 
RNLA - Claremont – Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement 

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lenders have executed this Agreement as of the date 
appearing on the first page of this Agreement. 

GENESIS: 
GENESIS LA ECONOMIC GROWTH  
CORPORATION,  
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 
 
 
 
By:    
Name:  Thomas De Simone 
Its:  President and CEO 

 
 
CLAREMONT: 
CITY OF CLAREMONT 
a municipal corporation 
 
 
By:       
 Adam Pirrie 
 City Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

      
 

      
Thomas P. Clark 
Counsel 
 
TCMHA: 
TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
a California joint powers authority 
 
 
By:        

 Rimmi Hundal 
  Executive Director 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
RICHARDS, WATSON & GERSHON, 
 
      
      
Bruce Galloway 
Special Counsel 
 
 



 Signature Page 
RNLA - Claremont – Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement 

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lenders have executed this Agreement as of the date 
appearing on the first page of this Agreement. 
 
 
COUNTY: 
ACKNOWLEGED BY: 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

 
 
By:       
Name:       
Its:       

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Mary C. Wickham 
County Counsel 
 
 
 
By:      
 Deputy County Counsel 
 
 
SGVRHT: 
SAN GABRIEL VALLEY REGIONAL  
HOUSING TRUST, 
 a joint powers authority 
 
 
 
By:       

Marisa Creter 
Executive Director 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
      
 

      
David De Berry 
General Counsel 

 



 Acknowledgement 
RNLA - Claremont – Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement 

  

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
     )§ 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) 
 
On      , before me,       
 , personally appeared         , who 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 
in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument 
the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the persons acted, executed the instrument.  

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct.  

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
       
 
Signature _________________________________  (Seal) 



 Consent 
RNLA - Claremont – Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement 

  

Consent 
 
 The undersigned consents to and accepts the terms and provisions of this Intercreditor 
and Subordination Agreement, and agrees to perform and observe those provisions of this 
Agreement to be performed and observed by Borrower. 
 
 

BORROWER: 

RESTORE NEIGHBORHOODS LA, INC. 
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 
 
 
 
By:        
 John Perfitt 
Its: Executive Director 

 



 Legal Description 
RNLA - Claremont – Intercreditor and Subordination Agreement 

  

DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 
All that certain real property situated in the County of Los Angeles, State of California, described 
as follows: 
 
THE NORTHERLY 333.00 FEET OF THE EAST HALF OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 1 
SOUTH, RANGE 8 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO BASE AND MERIDIAN, IN THE CITY OF 
CLAREMONT, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE 
OFFICIAL PLAT OF THE SURVEY OF SAID LAND. 
 
EXCEPT THEREFROM THE WESTERLY 200 FEET THEREOF AND THE NORTH 33 FEET 
CONVEYED FOR ROAD PURPOSES. 
 
ALSO EXCEPT THE SOUTHERLY 10 FEET OF THE NORTH 333 FEET OF THE EAST HALF 
OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 8 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO BASE AND 
MERIDIAN. 
 
ALSO EXCEPT THEREFROM, THE SOUTHERLY 13.50 FEET OF THE NORTHERLY 46.50 
FEET THEREOF, AS CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF CLAREMONT, A MUNICIPAL 
CORPORATION BY VIRTUE OF A DEED RECORDED JULY 25, 1996 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 
96-1196226 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS. 
 
ALSO EXCEPT THEREFROM AN UNDIVIDED ONE-HALF INTEREST IN AND TO ALL OIL, 
ASPHALTUM, GAS OR OTHER HYDRO-CARBON SUBSTANCES IN SAID LAND WITH FULL 
AND FREE RIGHT TO ENTER SAID LAND TO TAKE, DIG DRILL OR MINE FOR SAME, AS 
RESERVED BY JESSE L. MORAIN AND ADELHEIDE MORAIN, BY DEED RECORDED IN 
BOOK 9814 PAGE 59 OFFICIAL RECORDS. 

APN: 8669-019-905 



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

DATE: December 20, 2023 
 
TO:  Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority  
 
FROM:  Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director                  
 
BY:  Liz Renteria, LCSW, Chief of Clinical Services                  
                                       
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 730 Approving the Subcontractor 

Agreement for the HUD Continuum of Care Program with the Los 
Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA); and Authorizing the 
Executive Director to Execute the Agreement 

 
    

Summary: 
 
Staff is seeking approval to authorize Tri-City Mental Health Authority (TCMHA) to renew 
the Agreement with the Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) to act as 
subcontractor for the HUD Continuum of Care Program.  This agreement will allow 
TCMHA to provide supportive services for 13 very-low or extremely- low income, hard-to-
serve homeless persons with disabilities to obtain and maintain stable housing through 
vouchers provided by LACDA.  
 
Background: 
 
LACDA has allocated 13 Continuum of Care (CoC) certificates for low income households 
that are experiencing homelessness and whose head of household has a disability, to be 
overseen by TCMHA. The certificates provide rental assistance to the participants for use 
in privately-owned rental units where the participant pays 30% of their income and LACDA 
covers the balance. The proposed agreement tasks TCMHA to refer eligible applicants 
and provide the supportive services to those that are approved by LACDA. The support 
begins during the application process for the certificate, continues with housing search 
assistance and with all the steps to secure a unit. TCMHA then maintains regular contact 
with the participants to provide additional resources, help troubleshoot concerns that arise 
with their housing, and successfully complete their annual recertification with LACDA. 
 
As part of the agreement, TCMHA commits to provide 25% match of the total funding 
awarded in supportive services. TCMHA compiles a report that breaks down the cost of 
services participants receive through TCMHA along with additional services such as 
medical prescriptions, support groups, medical procedures, food banks, and any other 
supportive services that assist the participant in obtaining and maintaining housing.  
 
 
 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Consideration of Resolution No. 730 Approving the Subcontractor Agreement for the 
HUD Continuum of Care Program with the Los Angeles County Development Authority 
(LACDA); and Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute the Agreement 
December 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 
TCMHA currently is assisting 12 participants. The current participants have successfully 
maintained their certificate and housing for 16 years (4 participants), 13 years (1 
participant), 11 years (1 participant), 10 years (1 participant), 6 years (4 participants), and 
5 years (1 participant). The 13th participant no longer required supportive services to 
maintain their housing and transferred their certificate to a Housing Choice Voucher 
through the county. TCMHA will be able to refer one new participant to join the other 12 
successful participants in securing permanent housing.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The Housing Division already has staff assigned to provide the supportive services and 
are included in the Fiscal Year 2023-24 MHSA budget.  
  
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Governing Board adopt Resolution No 670 authorizing the 
Subcontractor Amendment with the Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) 
for the HUD Continuum of Care Program; and authorizing the Executive Director to 
execute the Agreement.  
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment 8-A: Resolution No. 730 - DRAFT 
 
Attachment 8-B:  HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) Program Subcontractor Agreement, 

Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program, with the Los Angeles 
County Development Authority (LACDA); Grant Number: 
CA0800L9D002113 

  
 



 

ATTACHMENT 8-A 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 730 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE TRI-CITY 
MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY APPROVING THE HUD CONTINUUM OF 
CARE PROGRAM (CoC) SUBCONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, TENANT 
BASED RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, WITH THE LOS ANGELES 
COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (LACDA); AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 

 
The Governing Board of the Tri-City Mental Health Authority does resolve as follows: 
 
1. Findings.  The Governing Board hereby finds and declares the following: 

 
A. Tri-City Mental Health Authority (“Authority or TCMHA”) desires to renew its 

Subcontractor Agreement with the Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) for the 
provision of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care 
(CoC) Program to link Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) to supportive services for very-
low or extremely- low income, hard-to-serve homeless persons with disabilities to obtain and 
maintain stable housing through vouchers provided by LACDA.  

 
B.  The Authority affirms that LACDA was designated by HUD as the agency 

responsible for administering the Continuum of Care ("CoC") Program in the County of Los 
Angeles pursuant to the provisions of Title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 

 
2. Action  
 
The Governing Board authorizes the Subcontractor Agreement No CA0800L9D002214 with 
LACDA for the HUD CoC Program and authorizes the Executive Director to execute said 
Agreement, and any amendments or extensions of such Subcontractor Agreement thereafter.  
 
3. Adoption   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Joint Meeting of the Governing Board and the Mental 
Health Commission held on December 20, 2023 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:   
  
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
STEVEN L. FLOWER, GENERAL COUNSEL 
 
 
By:  

   
JED LEANO, CHAIR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
MICAELA P. OLMOS, RECORDING SECRETARY 
 
 
By:  

  



 
 

 1 
 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

AND 
TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

HUD CONTINUUM OF CARE PROGRAM SUBCONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
TENANT BASED RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

Grant Number:  CA0800L9D002214 
 

This Subcontractor Agreement for the HUD Continuum of Care Program (herein 
referred to as "Agreement") is made and entered into in duplicate original this ___ day of 
_______ 2023, by and between the Los Angeles County Development Authority, 
hereinafter referred to as “LACDA”, and Tri-City Mental Health Authority, hereinafter 
referred to as “TCMH”. 
 

WHEREAS, the LACDA recognizes the need for and desires to link tenant based 
rental assistance to supportive services for very-low or extremely-low income, hard-to-
serve homeless persons with disabilities (primarily those who are seriously mentally ill; 
have chronic substance abuse problems; or Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome 
(AIDS) or related diseases) and their families; 
 

WHEREAS, the LACDA was designated by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development ("HUD") as the agency responsible for administering Continuum of 
Care ("CoC") rental assistance in the County of Los Angeles pursuant to the provisions 
of Title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act;  
 

WHEREAS, the LACDA was awarded Tenant Based Rental Assistance funding 
under the CoC Program Grant Agreement # CA0800L9D002214 between HUD and the 
LACDA; 
 

WHEREAS, the LACDA in accordance with the CoC Program will provide training 
to TCMH, who shall be or work with a local service provider that has the training, 
experience, and qualifications to facilitate the transition of homeless persons with 
disabilities and their families into a stable housing environment and provide supportive 
services at least equal in value to 25% of the total grant amount funded by HUD; and 
 

WHEREAS, the LACDA will make rental assistance payments to private landlords 
for units occupied by eligible persons in accordance with the terms and conditions 
described in the CoC Housing Assistance Payments Contract.  

 



 
 

 2 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, the 
LACDA and TCMH agree as follows: 

 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 
 A.  “APR” refers to the Annual Performance Report.  
 
 B.  “Continuum of Care Program” or “CoC Program” refers to the HUD program 
designed to promote communitywide commitment to the goal of ending homelessness 
and provide funding for efforts by homeless service providers.  
 
 C.  “Draw Down” refers to the HUD primary grant disbursement system called 
the Line of Credit Control System ("LOCCS").  
 
 D.  “HUD” refers to the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development.  
 
 E.  “Participant(s)” refers to individuals who utilize supportive housing services, 
including referral services or individuals who are eligible for the CoC Program.  
 
 F. “Project” refers to housing and/or supportive services for facilitating the 
movement of homeless individuals through the Continuum of Care into independent 
permanent housing.  
 
 G.  “Subcontract” refers to any contract, purchase order, or other purchase 
agreement, including modifications and change orders to the foregoing, entered into by 
TCMH with a contractor to furnish supplies, materials, equipment, and services for the 
performance of any of the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. 
 
2. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES AND DUTIES  
 
 A. TCMH shall provide the services described in this section and as set forth 
in Attachment I, Scope of Services, Attachment II – LACDA Administrative Handbook for 
HUD Continuum of Care Funded Programs.  
 
 B.  TCMH shall provide the following supportive services for at least Thirteen 
(13) Participants.   
 
   (1) TCMH is required to submit referrals until the allocation requirement 

is met. 
 



 
 

 3 
 
 

   (2)  TCMH shall submit eligible referrals resulting in 50% of the total 
allocations within six (6) months of execution of this Agreement and 100% of the 
allocation within 12 months from execution of this Agreement, or be subject to de-
obligation of funds by HUD as stipulated in 24 CFR § 578.85. 

 
   (3)  TCMH shall, under the guidance of the LACDA, provide: outreach 

and intake services, including disseminating CoC Program information to Participants; 
assist individuals in preparing CoC Program application packages including required 
documentation; and submit applications of eligible individuals to the LACDA for review 
and final approval, resulting in Participants obtaining and/or maintaining suitable 
housing. 

 
   (4)  TCMH shall conduct an annual assessment of the service needs 

required by the CoC Program Eligible Participants, including supportive services 
designed to assist Eligible Participants in remaining housed and maintaining CoC 
Program compliance. 

 
   (5)  TCMH shall provide supportive services or service referrals and 

ensure that Eligible Participants receive appropriate services. Pursuant to this 
Agreement and regulations in 24 CFR § 578.53, appropriate supportive services 
include, but are not limited to the following: services that address the special needs of 
the Participants; the costs of the day-to-day operation of the supportive service facility, 
including maintenance, repair, building security, furniture, utilities, and equipment; and 
provision of supportive services to households of disabled homeless persons within the 
LACDA's jurisdiction which results in obtaining and maintaining stable subsidized 
housing in a residential neighborhood of the their choice, as listed in Attachment II of 
this Agreement. 

 
   (6)  TCMH shall locate a care provider who can appropriately provide 

services for special populations such as: unaccompanied homeless youth; persons 
living with HIV/AIDS (Acquired Immunodeficiency Disease Syndrome or a related 
disease); and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking 
who require more intensive care that can be provided through this Tenant Based Rental 
Assistance Program, and refer the individual to the care provider. 

 
  (7) TCMH shall reference Attachment II, LACDA Administrative 
Handbook for HUD Continuum of Care Funded Programs ("CoC Program Handbook"), in 
order to ensure compliance with CoC Program regulations, policies, and timely 
submission of all required forms as is necessary in order to successfully co-administer 
this CoC Program. 
 



 
 

 4 
 
 

 C.  The LACDA shall provide the services set forth in Attachment I of this 
Agreement. 
 
3. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE  
 
 This Agreement shall be effective January 1, 2024 ("Effective Date") and shall 
continue through December 31, 2024, unless terminated earlier.  TCMH shall commence 
performance upon the Effective Date and shall diligently and continuously perform 
thereafter.  
 
4. COMPENSATION:  No compensation for administrative costs or supportive 
services will be provided with CoC Program Grant Agreement # CA0800L9D002214. 
 
5. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS/NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 
 
 A. The United States of America, through HUD, may in the future place 
programmatic or fiscal limitation(s) on funds not presently anticipated (i.e. limitations 
imposed by sequestration). Accordingly, the LACDA reserves the right to cease all 
leasing/programmatic activities and/or revise this Agreement as necessary in order to 
take into account actions affecting HUD program funding. The LACDA’S obligation is 
payable only and solely from funds appropriated through HUD and for the purposes of 
this Agreement. 
 
 B. In the event this Agreement extends into succeeding contract years, and 
funds have not been appropriated, compensation for this Agreement will automatically 
terminate as of the end of the term of this Agreement. The LACDA will endeavor to notify 
TCMH in writing within ten (10) days of receipt of non-appropriation notice. 
 
6. SERVICES COORDINATION 
 
 TCMH shall provide to the CoC Program a participant housing specialist/case 
manager to work with Participants to develop an individualized housing and service plan, 
appropriate to the Participant’s needs (Plan).  This Plan may include, but is not limited to 
focusing on: sobriety, alcohol and drug-free housing, receiving supportive services, 
accessing mainstream benefits, and addressing legal concerns. 
 
 TCMH shall require that the participants meet with their housing specialist/case 
manager at least once annually to discuss the progress in their Plan to determine what 
adjustments are needed in order to maintain independent living and self-sufficiency. 
 
 



 
 

 5 
 
 

7.  NOTICES:  All notices and correspondence shall be delivered or mailed with 
postage prepaid to the following address: 
 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 
 
Medina D. Johnson-Jennings, Director, Housing Assistance Division 
Attn: Sander Schmidt 
700 W. Main Street 
Alhambra, CA 91801 
 
TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
1717 N. Indian Hill Blvd., Suite B 
Claremont, CA 91711 

 
8. FORMS AND REPORTS 
 
 A. Annual Needs Assessment:  TCMH shall submit an Annual Needs 
Assessment form to the LACDA no more than 30 days after the end of the operating year.  
The Annual Needs Assessment form will serve to document the needs assessments and 
supportive services required in Section 2, Services and Duties. The Annual Needs 
Assessment form is provided by the LACDA to TCMH via CoC Program Handbook. 
 
 B. Quarterly Match Funds Tracking Report:  TCMH shall submit individual 
Quarterly Match Funds Tracking Reports to the LACDA by the 15th of the month following 
the APR quarterly reporting period. This form will assist in tracking the supportive services 
required in Section 2, Service and Duties, of this Agreement. The Quarterly Match Funds 
Tracking Report is provided by the LACDA to TCMH via the CoC Program Handbook. 
 
 C. Annual Performance Report: TCMH is obligated to complete the APR. 
TCMH must submit the APR to the LACDA 30 days after the end of the operating year.  
HUD may terminate the renewal of any grant and require the recipient to repay the 
renewal grant if: (1) The recipient fails to timely submit a HUD APR for the grant year 
immediately prior to renewal; or (2) The recipient submits an APR that HUD deems 
unacceptable or shows noncompliance with the requirements of the grant and this part.  
The APR is subject to change due to HUD updates.  
 
9. MONITORING AND RECORDS 
 
TCMH will make available all its records pursuant to this Agreement with the LACDA upon 
request. All records will be retained during the term of the Agreement and for a five (5) 



 
 

 6 
 
 

year period thereafter. Monitoring will be conducted at least annually. CoC Program 
“Participant Master Files” must contain all documentation as it pertains to eligibility, 
supportive/case management services, referrals, and documentation of homelessness. 
The Participant Master File must be in compliance with the CoC Program and the CoC 
Program Handbook.  Forms for the Participant Master File are provided by the LACDA in 
Attachment II, the CoC Program Handbook. 
 
10.  CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
 A. TCMH shall keep confidential all reports, information and data received, 
prepared or assembled pursuant to performance hereunder.  Such information shall not 
be made available to any person, firm, corporation or entity without the prior written 
consent of the LACDA, except as required under the California Public Records Act, the 
Federal Freedom of Information Act, or other applicable law, or pursuant to court order. 
 
 B. TCMH shall comply with Welfare and Institutions Code Section ("WIC") 
10850.  
 
 C. TCMH shall take special precautions, including, but not limited to, sufficient 
training of TCMH'S staff before they begin work, to protect such confidential information 
from loss or unauthorized use, access, disclosure, modification or destruction.  
 
 D.  TCMH shall ensure case records or personal information is kept confidential 
when it identifies an individual by name, address, or other specific information.  
 
11. COMPLIANCE WITH RULES, REGULATIONS, AND DIRECTIVES 
 
 TCMH shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws as well as all 
rules, regulations, requirements, and directives of applicable federal or state agencies 
and funding sources which impose duties and regulations upon LACDA as though made 
with TCMH directly. In the event there is a conflict between the various laws or regulations 
that may apply, TCMH shall comply with the more restrictive law or regulation. 
 
12.  AMENDMENTS 
 
 A. No representative of either of the Parties is authorized to make changes to 
any of the terms, obligations or conditions of this Agreement, except through procedures 
set forth in this Section 12. 
 
 B. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, for any change requested 
by either party which affects any term or condition included in this Agreement, a 



 
 

 7 
 
 

negotiated written Amendment to the Agreement shall be prepared and executed by each 
Parties authorized representative. 
 
 C. Such amendments shall be authorized subject to the approval of County 
Counsel as to form. 
 
13. TERMINATION  
 
 A.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party for the convenience of 
that party.  This Agreement may also be terminated by either party as a result of default 
by the other party of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
 B. Notice of termination shall be given, in writing, at least sixty (60) days in 
advance and shall be complete when delivered to either party. 
 
 C. In the event of termination, TCMH will provide a detailed report of 
expenditures and the balance of the unexpended amount will be returned to the LACDA 
within thirty (30) days of termination. 
 
14. NON-DISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS 
 
 TCMH shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, which 
provides that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under 
any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance or funded in whole or in part 
with funds made available under this title. 
 
15.  EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 
 
 A. TCMH shall comply with all federal and state statutes and regulations in the 
hiring of its employees.  
  
 B.  TCMH shall not discriminate in its recruiting, hiring, promoting, demoting, or 
terminating practices on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, 
physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex in the performance of 
this Agreement and, if applicable, with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing 
Act (FEHA) and the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P. L. 88-352).  
  
 C.  By signing this Agreement or accepting funds under this Agreement, TCMH 
shall comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled “Equal 
Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR 
Chapter 60) 



 
 

 8 
 
 

16. LOBBYING 
 
 A. TCMH shall ensure no federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.  
 
 B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 
a member of Congress in connection with such federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, TCMH shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, 
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.  
 
 C.  TCMH shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award document for sub-awards at all tiers, including Subcontracts, sub-grants, contracts 
under grants, loans, cooperative agreements, and all sub-recipients shall certify and 
disclose accordingly. 
 
17. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

TCMH shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the LACDA, County of Los 
Angeles, and their officials, officers, employees, and agents (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as “Public Entities”) from and against any and all liability, demands, damages, 
claims, causes of action, expenses, and fees (including reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert 
witness fees, and legal costs) including, but not limited to, claims for bodily injury, property 
damage, and death (hereinafter collectively referred to as “liabilities”), arising from or 
connected with TCMH’s acts, errors, and/or omissions under this Agreement or the 
services to be provided by TCMH hereunder. TCMH shall not be required to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the Public Entities from any liabilities that are caused by the 
sole negligence or willful misconduct of the LACDA or its officials, officers, employees, or 
agents. This indemnification provision shall remain in full force and effect and survive the 
termination and/or expiration of this Agreement. TCMH agrees to require any and all 
entities with which it contracts to agree to and abide by the above-mentioned 
indemnification requirements in favor of the Public Entities, as applicable to each of them. 
 
18.  SEVERABILITY 
 
 In the event that any provision herein contained is held to be invalid, void, or illegal 
by any court of competent jurisdiction, the same shall be deemed severable from the 



 
 

 9 
 
 

remainder of this Agreement and shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate any other 
provision contained herein. If any such provision shall be deemed invalid due to its scope 
or breadth, such provision shall be deemed valid to the extent of the scope of breadth 
permitted by law. 
 
19  INTERPRETATION 
 
 No provision of this Agreement is to be interpreted for or against either party 
because that party or that party’s legal representative drafted such provision, but this 
Agreement is to be construed as if drafted by both parties hereto. 
 
20.  WAIVER 
 
 No breach of any provision hereof can be waived unless in writing. Waiver of any 
one breach of any provision shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any breach of the same 
or any other provision hereof. 
 
21.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement with attachments supersedes any and all other agreements and 
constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties. This Agreement 
includes the Statement of Work. 
  



10 

SIGNATURES 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, TCMH and the LACDA have executed this Agreement through 
their duly authorized officers. 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

By ________________________________ Date: ___________________ 
  Emilio Salas 
 Executive Director 

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

By _______________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 Rimmi Hundal 

  Executive Director 

APPROVED AS TO PROGRAM: 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
HOUSING ASSISTANCE DIVISION 

By _____________________________ Date: ___________________ 
  Medina D. Johnson-Jennings 
  Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Dawyn R. Harrison 
County Counsel 

By ______________________________ Date: ___________________ 
  Elizabeth Pennington 
  Deputy County Counsel 

12/7/23



 
 

 11 
 
 

ATTACHMENT I 
 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
  



 
 

 12 
 
 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
CONTINUUM OF CARE TBRA PROGRAM 

 
NAME OF ORGANIZATION: TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 
 
MAILING ADDRESS:   1717 N. INDIAN HILL BLVD., SUITE B 
      CLAREMONT, CA 91711 
 
CONTACT PERSON:   RIMMI HUNDAL 
      EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
TARGET POPULATION: HARD-TO-SERVE LOW-INCOME HOMELESS 

INDIVIDUALS OR FAMILIES WITH A 
DISABILITY 

 
NUMBER OF FAMILIES SERVED: THIRTEEN (13)  
 
DURATION OF PROJECT:  ONE (1) YEAR 
 
PROGRAM OBJECTIVES:  To provide a subsidy to pre-qualified Families to enable them 
to lease housing of their choice in which the Family lives independently in permanent, 
low-cost housing in residential neighborhoods. 
 
In accepting a referral for a Participation Agreement from TCMH, the LACDA expects that 
the family/individual meets certain readiness criteria, and that TCMH provide on-going 
supportive services for a period of time not less than the duration of this agreement. 
 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY TCMH 
 
A. Client Eligibility 
1) TCMH shall ensure that of the total persons served, one hundred percent (100%) are 

of low income. 
 
2) TCMH shall ensure that of the population served, it outreaches to the chronically 

homeless as per regulations set at 24 CFR 578.53(e)(13) and that it is adequately 
documented for the Annual Progress Report. 

 
3) TCMH shall ensure that of the population served, persons to be served under this 

Agreement shall include hard-to-serve homeless families with disabilities, as per 
Program Regulations at 24 CFR 578.53(c) and adequately verify homelessness.  Hard-



 
 

 13 
 
 

to-serve homeless families primarily include those who are seriously mentally ill, have 
chronic problems with alcohol, drugs, or both, or have Acquired Immune Deficiency 
Syndrome (AIDS) and related diseases. The Program provides rental assistance for 
permanent housing for homeless persons with disabilities. 

 
4) TCMH shall ensure that the target population of the persons to be served under this 

Agreement is individuals and families with members who are disabled, including the 
seriously mentally ill. 

 
5) TCMH shall, in its client intake or admission criteria, require documents applicable to 

each Family for verifying client eligibility regarding Family status, disability, residency 
(i.e. homelessness) and income. 

 
6) TCMH shall ensure that the total, original verified information packet be forwarded to 

the LACDA’S Continuum of Care Program staff for review, approval, and acceptance 
into the Continuum of Care Program.  Failure to submit all applicable verifications will 
delay the eligibility process and the issuance of the Participation Agreement. 

 
7) TCMH shall maintain a file with copies of all verified information therein, along with 

case management documentation, and make it available for examination. 
 
B. Services and Duties of TCMH 
 
1) TCMH shall ensure that Thirteen (13) homeless participants with disabilities (primarily 

those who are seriously mentally ill; have chronic problems with alcohol, drugs or both; 
or have HIV/AIDS or related diseases) and their families are placed in and/or assisted 
to remain in qualified housing.  TCMH shall refer eligible persons every month to the 
LACDA following the effective date of this Agreement until the Program has achieved 
full participation. 

 
2) TCMH shall ensure that each participant who signs the Program’s Participant 

Agreement and is placed in housing will receive supportive services.   Participants will 
pay no more than 30% of their adjusted monthly income towards the rent. 

 
3) TCMH shall ensure that the Continuum of Care Program targets homeless families 

who have chronic alcohol and/or other drug abuse disabilities, mental illness and/or 
HIV/AIDS. 

 
4) TCMH shall make best efforts to assist persons with dual diagnosis of both serious 

mental illness and chronic substance abuse problems. 
 



 
 

 14 
 
 

5) TCMH shall submit to the LACDA pre-applications from persons eligible to be served 
in a Continuum of Care funded project. 

 
6) TCMH agrees to provide an unconditional commitment (contingent only upon award of 

the grant) via cash or in-kind match of not less than 25 percent of the total funding 
awarded, in compliance with Program regulations set forth in 24 CFR 578.73 and 
applicable cost sharing and match requirements for nonprofits found at 24 CFR 84.23, 
and as specified below: 
• A match in the amount of at least $65,552 has been committed by TCMH during the 

term of this grant; 
• A fee schedule, listing the supportive services; the profession of each provider; and 

the hourly cost of the services to be provided, is made part of this Agreement. 
 
TCMH will be required to report on matching funds expended in their Annual Progress 
Report at the end of each grant’s operating year. All match must be used for eligible 
activities as required in the CoC Program Interim Rule, 24 CFR 578, subpart D. Matching 
funds are subject to monitoring by the LACDA and/or HUD; they should be well 
documented throughout the operating year and must be tied to specific clients. TCMH 
must keep and make available for inspection, records documenting the match 
contribution. 
 
7) TCMH shall provide participants with eligible and appropriate services, as per Program 

regulations set forth in 24 CFR 578.53 that address the special needs of the program 
participants, ensuring that: 

I. Supportive services assist program participants in obtaining and maintaining 
housing; 

II. An annual assessment of the service needs of program participants is conducted 
and services are adjusted accordingly; 

III. Supportive services are provided to the residents throughout the duration of their 
residence in the project; 

IV. Eligible supportive services are: 
 

a. Annual assessment of service needs. The costs of the assessment required by 
§578.53(a)(2) are eligible costs. 

 
b. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs (security 

deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of rent) are eligible and include 
truck rental and hiring a moving company. 

 
c. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and 

monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the 



 
 

 15 
 
 

program participant(s) are eligible costs. Component services and activities 
consist of: 

1) Counseling; 
2) Developing, securing, and coordinating services; 
3) Using the centralized or coordinated assessment system as required under 

§578.23(c)(9). 
4) Obtaining federal, state, and local benefits; 
5) Monitoring and evaluating program participant progress; 
6) Providing information and referrals to other providers; 
7) Providing ongoing risk assessment and safety planning with victims of domestic 

violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking; and 
8) Developing an individualized housing and service plan, including planning a 

path to permanent housing stability. 
 
d. Child care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-

care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness, including 
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental 
activities, are eligible. 

1) The children must be under the age of 13, unless they are disabled children. 
2) Disabled children must be under the age of 18. 
3) The child-care center must be licensed by the jurisdiction in which it operates in 

order for its costs to be eligible. 
 
e. Education services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational 

skills are eligible. 
1) Services include instruction or training in consumer education, health education, 

substance abuse prevention, literacy, English as a Second Language, and 
General Educational Development (GED). 

2) Component services or activities are screening, assessment and testing; 
individual or group instruction; tutoring; provision of books, supplies, and 
instructional material; counseling; and referral to community resources. 

 
f. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating 

employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including 
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services 
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or 
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to 
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also 
an eligible cost. 

1) Learning skills include those skills that can be used to secure and retain a job, 
including the acquisition of vocational licenses and/or certificates. 

2) Services that assist individuals in securing employment consist of: 



 
 

 16 
 
 

a. Employment screening, assessment, or testing; 
b. Structured job skills and job-seeking skills; 
c. Special training and tutoring, including literacy training and pre-vocational 

training; 
d. Books and instructional materials; 
e. Counseling or job coaching; and 
f. Referral to community resources. 

 
g. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is an 

eligible cost. 
 
h. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program 

participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible costs. 
1) Component services or activities are tenant counseling, assisting individuals 

and families to understand leases, securing utilities, and making moving 
arrangements. 

2) Other eligible costs are: 
a. Mediation with property owners and landlords on behalf of eligible program 

participants; 
b. Credit counseling, accessing a free personal credit report, and resolving 

personal credit issues; and 
c. The payment of rental application fees. 

 
i. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by 

persons under supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and representation in 
matters that interfere with the homeless individual or family‘s ability to obtain and 
retain housing. 

1) Eligible subject matters are child support; guardianship; paternity; emancipation; 
legal separation; orders of protection and other civil remedies for victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking; appeal of 
veterans and public benefits claim denials; landlord-tenant disputes; and the 
resolution of outstanding criminal warrants. 

2) Component services or activities may include receiving and preparing cases for 
trial, provision of legal advice, representation at hearings, and counseling. 

3) Fees based on the actual service performed (i.e. fee for service) are also 
eligible, but only if the cost would be less than the cost of hourly fees. Filing fees 
and other necessary court costs are also eligible. If the subcontractor is a legal 
services provider and performs the services itself, the eligible costs are the 
subcontractor employees’ salaries and other costs necessary to perform the 
services. 



 
 

 17 
 
 

4) Legal services for immigration and citizenship matters, and issues related to 
mortgages and homeownership are ineligible. Retainer fee arrangements and 
contingency fee arrangements are ineligible. 

 
j. Life skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may 

never have been learned or have been lost during the course of physical or mental 
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible. 
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function 
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting 
of resources and money management, household management, conflict 
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of 
public transportation, and parent training. 

 
k. Mental health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental 

health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component 
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy 
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the 
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic 
approaches to address multiple problems. 

 
l. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of 

medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals, including: 
1) Providing an analysis or assessment of an individual‘s health problems and the 

development of a treatment plan; 
2) Assisting individuals to understand their health needs; 
3) Providing directly or assisting individuals to obtain and utilize appropriate 

medical treatment; 
4) Preventive medical care and health maintenance services, including in-home 

health services and emergency medical services; 
5) Provision of appropriate medication; 
6) Providing follow-up services; and 
7) Preventive and non-cosmetic dental care. 

 
m. Outreach services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of 

providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential 
program participants, are eligible. 

1) Eligible costs include the outreach worker‘s transportation costs and a mobile 
phone to be used by the individual performing the outreach. 

2) Component activities and services consist of: initial assessment; crisis 
counseling; addressing urgent physical needs, such as providing meals, 
blankets, clothes, or toiletries; actively connecting and providing people with 
information and referrals to homeless and mainstream programs; and 



 
 

 18 
 
 

publicizing the availability of the housing and/or services provided within the 
geographic area covered by the Continuum of Care. 

 
n. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and 

assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug 
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol 
treatment are ineligible. 

 
o. Transportation. Eligible costs are: 

1) The costs of program participants’ travel on public transportation or in a vehicle 
provided by TCMH or subcontractor to and from medical care, employment, 
child care, or other services; 

2) Mileage allowance for service workers to visit program participants and to carry 
out housing quality inspections; 

3) The costs of purchasing or leasing a vehicle in which staff transports program 
participants and/or staff serving program participants; 

4) The costs of gas, insurance, taxes, and maintenance for the vehicle; 
5) The costs of recipient or TCMH staff to accompany or assist program 

participants to utilize public transportation; and 
6) If public transportation options are not sufficient within the area, TCMH may 

make a one-time payment on behalf of a program participant needing car repairs 
or maintenance required to operate a personal vehicle, subject to the following: 
a. Payments for car repairs or maintenance on behalf of the program participant 

may not exceed 10 percent of the Blue Book value of the vehicle (Blue Book 
refers to the guidebook that compiles and quotes prices for new and used 
automobiles and other vehicles of all makes, models, and types); 

b. Payments for car repairs or maintenance must be paid by the recipient or 
TCMH directly to the third party that repairs or maintains the car; and 

c. TCMH may require program participants to share in the cost of car repairs or 
maintenance as a condition of receiving assistance with car repairs or 
maintenance. 

 
p. Utility deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits. Utility 

deposits must be a one-time fee, paid to utility companies. 
 
q. Direct provision of services. If the services described in this chapter are being 

directly provided by TCMH, eligible costs for those services also include: 
1) The costs of labor, or supplies and materials incurred by TCMH or subcontractor 

in directly providing supportive services to program participants; and 
2) The salary and benefit packages of TCMH staff who directly deliver the services. 

 
r. TCMH agrees: 



 
 

 19 
 
 

1) To ensure the operation of the project(s) in accordance with the provisions of 
the McKinney-Vento Act and all requirements under 24 CFR part 578; 

2) To monitor and report the progress of the project(s) to the LACDA and HUD; 
3) To ensure, to the maximum extent practicable, that individuals and families 

experiencing homelessness are involved through employment, provision of 
volunteer services, or otherwise, in constructing, rehabilitating, maintaining, and 
operating facilities for the project and in providing supportive services for the 
project; 

4) To obtain certifications from sub-contractors with respect to: 
a. Confidentiality of records, specifically for those records pertaining to any 

individual or family that was provided family violence prevention or treatment 
services through the project; 

b. Confidentiality of the address or location of any family violence project 
assisted under this part; whereas records will not be made public, except with 
written authorization of the person responsible for the operation of such 
project; 

c. Establishment of policies and practices that enable program participants to 
exercise rights afforded to them under subtitle B of title VII of the Act, and 
other laws relating to the provision of educational and related services to 
individuals and families experiencing homelessness; 

d. Designation of staff in family projects to ensure that children of program 
participants are enrolled in school and connected to appropriate services in 
the community, including early childhood programs such as Head Start, part 
C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, and other appropriate 
services or programs authorized under subtitle B of title VII of the Act; 

e. Status of the sub-contractor, its officers, and employees regarding debarment 
or suspension of business with the Federal Government; and 

f. Agreement to provide information such as data and reports, as required by 
LACDA; and 

5) To monitor the required match and report on match to the LACDA; 
6) To take the educational needs of children into account when families are placed 

in housing and will, to the maximum extent practicable, place families with 
children as close as possible to their school of origin so as not to disrupt such 
children’s education; 

7) To monitoring requirements at least annually; 
8) To use the centralized or coordinated assessment system established by the 

Continuum of Care as set forth in §578.7(a)(8). A victim service provider may 
choose not to use the Continuum of Care’s centralized or coordinated 
assessment system, provided that victim service providers in the area use a 
centralized or coordinated assessment system that meets HUD’s minimum 
requirements and the victim service provider uses that system instead; 



 
 

 20 
 
 

9) To follow the written standards for providing Continuum of Care assistance 
developed by the Continuum of Care, including the minimum requirements set 
forth in §578.7(a)(9); 

10) Enter into sub-contractor agreements requiring sub-contractors to operate the 
project in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement and all requirements 
under 24 CFR part 578 and conditions specified in the applicable CoC Program 
Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA). 

11) To consistently participate in the local Homeless Management Information 
System (HMIS) that has the capacity to collect unduplicated counts of 
individuals and families experiencing homelessness (unless a recipient is a 
domestic violence provider, in which case it must use a comparable database 
and provide de-identified information) in compliance with 24 CFR §578.7(b)(4). 

 
s. TCMH agrees to maintain compliance with adequate Accounting Procedures to 

ensure the proper disbursal of, and accounting for, CoC Program administrative 
cost grant funds and all financial transactions are conducted, and that records are 
maintained and/or submitted to the LACDA in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. Records of all payment requests are made in compliance 
with 24 CFR §84 and §85. 

 
C. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY THE LACDA 
 
The LACDA will provide the following: 
1) The appropriate rental assistance services detailed in 24 CFR, Part §578.51 for eligible 

participants; 
2) Training for TCMH staff and notification to TCMH staff of any changes in regulation, 

policy, or rules; 
3) Sufficient copies of all forms necessary for processing clients; and 
4) A staff liaison to facilitate application and eligibility procedures. 
 
The LACDA assumes no responsibility to pay for salaries or any other expenses of TCMH. 
It is understood by both parties that the LACDA makes no commitment to provide rental 
assistance for this project beyond the term of this Agreement. 
  



 
 

 21 
 
 

ATTACHMENT II 
 

COC PROGRAM HANDBOOK 
 
 





3!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

!

Eqpvkpwwo!qh!Ectg!Jcpfdqqm!hqt!

ECUG!OCPCIGTU!

CPF!

JQWUKPI!NKCKUQPU!

Yqtmkpi!ykvj!vjg!!
Nqu!Cpigngu!Eqwpv{!Fgxgnqrogpv!Cwvjqtkv{!

Jqwukpi!Cuukuvcpeg!Fkxkukqp!
!

Iwkfgnkpgu!cpf!Tgeqoogpfcvkqpu!
Ucorng!Fqewogpvu!

Jgnrhwn!Vqqnu!cpf!Vkru!

!

Ghhgevkxg!3133!
!
!
!
!
!



4!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

!
VJG!RWTRQUG!QH!VJKU!JCPFDQQM!
!
Cu!c!ecug!ocpcigt!qt!jqwukpi!nkckuqp-!{qw!ectt{!ocp{!tgurqpukdknkvkgu/!
!
Cu!c!nkckuqp!dgvyggp!vjg!wpjqwugf!rqrwncvkqp!cpf!c!u{uvgo!vjcv!ecp!rtqxkfg!vjgo!ykvj!
rgtocpgpv!jqwukpi-!{qw!owuv!dtkfig!vjg!pggfu!qh!vjg!enkgpv!ykvj!vjg!tgswktgogpvu!qh!c!
rtqitco!vjcv!owuv!dg!hqnnqygf!rtgekugn{/!
!
Vjku! jcpfdqqm! ku! fgukipgf! vq! jgnr! {qw! wpfgtuvcpf! vjg! Eqpvkpwwo! qh! Ectg! )EqE*!
Rtqitco�u!tgswktgogpvu!uq!{qw!ecp!dguv!oggv!vjg!pggfu!qh!{qwt!enkgpvu!cpf!uweeguuhwnn{!
tghgt!crrnkecpvu!vq!vjg!Nqu!Cpigngu!Eqwpv{!Fgxgnqrogpv!Cwvjqtkv{!)NCEFC*/!
!

QXGTXKGY<! RTQXKFKPI! RGTOCPGPV! UWRRQTVKXG!
JQWUKPI!WPFGT!VJG!EqE!RTQITCO!
Vjg!EqE!ku!c!rtqitco!fgukipgf!vq!rtqxkfg!tgpvcn!cuukuvcpeg!wpfgt!c!tcpig!qh!ujqtv.vgto-!
hqt!vjtgg!oqpvju=!ogfkwo.vgto-!vjtgg!vq!35!oqpvju=!qt!nqpi.vgto-!oqtg!vjcp!35!oqpvju/!!
Vjg!Rgtocpgpv!Uwrrqtvkxg!Jqwukpi!)RUJ*!eqorqpgpv!qh!vjku!Rtqitco!cnnqyu!hqt!Vgpcpv.
Dcugf!Tgpvcn!Cuukuvcpeg!)VDTC*-!Rtqlgev.Dcugf!Tgpvcn!Cuukuvcpeg!)RDTC*-!qt!Urqpuqt.
Dcugf!Tgpvcn!Cuukuvcpeg!)UDTC*!vq!dg!rtqxkfgf!vq!kpfkxkfwcnu!qt!hcoknkgu!ykvj!fkucdknkvkgu!
qp!c!nqpi.vgto!dcuku=!kp!yjkej!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!fgukipgf!vq!oggv!vjg!pggfu!qh!rtqitco!
rctvkekrcpvu!owuv!dg!ocfg!cxckncdng!kp!qtfgt!vq!jgnr!vjgo!nkxg!kpfgrgpfgpvn{/!Vjg!RUJ!
eqorqpgpv!cnnqyu! hqt!c!xctkgv{!qh!jqwukpi!ejqkegu!cpf!c! tcpig!qh!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!
hwpfgf!d{!qvjgt!uqwtegu!vq!cfftguu!vjg!kpfkxkfwcn!pggfu!qh!vjku!jqognguu!rqrwncvkqp!ykvj!
fkucdknkvkgu/!
!
FGFKECVGFRNWU!
Kp!3129-!vjg!Nqu!Cpigngu!Jqognguu!Ugtxkegu!Cwvjqtkv{!)NCJUC*-!ngcf!cigpe{!kp!vjg!NC!
EqE-! ejqug! vq! eqpxgtv! cnn! EqE! itcpvu! ykvjkp! vjgkt! tgikqp! vq! FgfkecvgfRNWU! itcpvu/!
Ceeqtfkpi!vq!NCJUC-!vjg!rwtrqug!qh!FgfkecvgfRNWU!ku!vq!jgnr!ugtxg!rgtuqpu!ykvj!vjg!
jkijguv!pggfu!cpf!nqpiguv!jkuvqtkgu!qh!jqognguupguu!d{!cnnqykpi!oqtg!hngzkdknkv{!vjcp!ku!
rgtokuukdng!wpfgt!vjg!Fgfkecvgf!RUJ!fgukipcvkqp!kp!vgtou!qh!yjq!ecp!dg!ugtxgf/!
!
Ykvj!vjcv!iqcn!kp!eqpukfgtcvkqp-!kv!ycu!fgvgtokpgf!vjcv!ykvjkp!vjg!NC!EqE-!kv!yqwnf!dg!oquv!
cfxcpvcigqwu! vq! eqpxgtv! vjg! fgukipcvkqp! qh! cnn! Fgfkecvgf! cpf! pqp.Fgfkecvgf! RUJ�
kpenwfkpi!pgy!cpf!gzkuvkpi!tgpgycn!RUJ�vq!FgfkecvgfRNWU/!Vjku!yqwnf!cnnqy!vjg!NC!
EqE! vq! eqpvkpwg! vq! vctigv! vjg! jkijguv! pggfu! jqwugjqnfu! hqt! RUJ! cpf! yqwnf! tgfweg!
tgeqtfmggrkpi!tgswktgogpvu!cuuqekcvgf!ykvj!Fgfkecvgf!RUJ!vjcv!ecp!ngcf!vq!ejtqpkecnn{!
jqognguu!rgtuqpu!pqv!oggvkpi!gnkikdknkv{/!Jcxkpi! vjku! hngzkdknkv{!ycu! vjqwijv! vq!tguwnv! kp!
kpetgcugf!jqwukpi!rncegogpvu!cu!ygnn!cu!cp!qxgtcnn!tgfwevkqp!kp!vjg!cxgtcig!ngpivj!qh!
vkog!rgtuqpu!ctg!jqognguu/!
!
Kp!cp!ghhqtv!vq!uvtgconkpg!crrnkecvkqpu!uwdokvvgf!ykvjkp!vjg!NCJUC!EqE!vq!cfftguu!qwt!
tgikqp�u! qxgtyjgnokpi! pggf! vq! jqwug! vjg! jqognguu-! vjg! NCEFC! cpf! vjg! Jqwukpi!



5!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

Cwvjqtkv{!qh!vjg!Ekv{!qh!Nqu!Cpigngu!)JCENC*!citggf!vq!eqnncdqtcvg!ykvj!NCJUC!vq!etgcvg!
c!ugtkgu!qh!FgfkecvgfRNWU!wpkxgtucn!gnkikdknkv{!xgtkhkecvkqp!hqtou!hqt!jqognguupguu!cpf!
fkucdnkpi!eqpfkvkqpu/!Ghhgevkxg!Hgdtwct{!2-!312;-!vjg!NCEFC�u!Jqognguu!Xgtkhkecvkqp!cpf!
Egtvkhkecvg! qh! Fkucdknkv{! hqtou! dgecog! qduqngvg! cpf! NCJUC�u! pgy! FgfkecvgfRNWU!
wpkxgtucn!gnkikdknkv{!hqtou!ygtg!korngogpvgf/!Cnqpi!ykvj!vjgug!NCJUC!hqto!tgrncegogpvu-!
vjg!FgfkecvgfRNWU!itcpv!cfqrvkqp!dtqwijv!c!eqwrng!qh!ejcpigu!ykvj!tgictfu!vq!gnkikdknkv{!
tgswktgogpvu-!yjkej!yknn!dg!qwvnkpgf!kp!vjg!ugrctcvg!Jqognguu!cpf!Fkucdknkv{!uwdugevkqpu!
vq!hqnnqy/!
!
Vjg!iqcnu!qh!vjg!RUJ.EqE!ykvj!FgfkecvgfRNWU!ctg!vq<!

"! Rtqoqvg!eqoowpkv{ykfg!eqookvogpv!vq!vjg!iqcn!qh!gpfkpi!jqognguupguu/!

"! Ugtxg!rgtuqpu!ykvj!vjg!jkijguv!pggfu!cpf!gzvgpukxg!jkuvqtkgu!qh!jqognguupguu-!
kpenwfkpi!vjqug!gzrgtkgpekpi!ejtqpke!jqognguupguu!vjtqwij!hwtvjgt!hngzkdknkv{!wpfgt!
FgfkecvgfRNWU!tgswktgogpvu/!

"! Swkemn{!tgjqwug!jqognguu!kpfkxkfwcnu!cpf!hcoknkgu-!yjkng!okpkok|kpi!vjg!vtcwoc!
cpf! fkunqecvkqp! ecwugf! vq! jqognguu! kpfkxkfwcnu-! hcoknkgu-! cpf! eqoowpkvkgu! d{!
jqognguupguu/!!

"! Rtqoqvg!ceeguu!vq!cpf!ghhgevkxg!wvknk|cvkqp!qh!ockpuvtgco!rtqitcou!d{!jqognguu!
kpfkxkfwcnu!cpf!hcoknkgu/!

"! Wug!c!Jqwukpi!Hktuv!crrtqcej!vq!jqwug!vjg!pggfkguv!qh!vjg!jqognguu!rqrwncvkqp-!
uwej! cu! vjg! ejtqpkecnn{! jqognguu-! jqognguu! xgvgtcpu-! jqognguu! hcoknkgu! ykvj!
ejknftgp-!cpf!jqognguu!wpceeqorcpkgf!{qwvj/!

"! Kpetgcug!rctvkekrcpvu�!umknnu!cpf0qt!kpeqog/!

"! Gpcdng!rctvkekrcpvu!vq!cejkgxg!itgcvgt!ugnh.fgvgtokpcvkqp/!
!

Ugevkqpu!ykvjkp!vjku!jcpfdqqm!kpenwfg<!
K/! Rtgrctkpi!Crrnkecvkqpu!hqt!Uwdokuukqp!
KK/! Uwdokuukqp!qh!vjg!Crrnkecvkqp!

KKK/! Qdvckpkpi!cpf!Ockpvckpkpi!Jqwukpi!
KX/! Kpurgevkqpu!
X/! Tgrqtvkpi!Tgswktgogpvu!

!



6!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

UGEVKQP!K<!!RTGRCTKPI!CRRNKECVKQPU!HQT!UWDOKUUKQP!

Kfgpvkh{kpi!Enkgpvu!
Ceeqtfkpi! vq! vjg! W/U/! Fgrctvogpv! qh! Jqwukpi! cpf! Wtdcp! Fgxgnqrogpv�u! )JWF*!
tgiwncvkqpu-! rtqurgevkxg! enkgpvu! hqt! vjg! EqE.RUJ! Rtqitco! owuv! oggv! vjtgg! )4*! dcuke!
tgswktgogpvu!vq!swcnkh{!hqt!cfokuukqp!kpvq!vjg!rtqitco/!
!
Vjg{!owuv<!

"! Oggv!vjg!JWF!cpf!FgfkecvgfRNWU�u!fghkpkvkqpu!qh!jqognguupguu=!

"! Oggv!FgfkecvgfRNWU!fkucdknkv{!tgswktgogpvu=!cpf!

"! Oggv!kpeqog!gnkikdknkv{/!
!
Vjku! ugevkqp! qwvnkpgu! crrnkecdng! tgswktgogpvu! cpf! rtqxkfgu! vkru! qp! eqorngvkpi! vjg!
crrnkecvkqp!vjcv!oc{!jgnr!cxqkf!fgnc{u!qt!qxgteqokpi!ejcnngpigu!vjtqwijqwv!vjg!rtqeguu/!
!
Oggvkpi!FgfkecvgfRNWU!Gnkikdknkv{!
C!FgfkecvgfRNWU!rtqlgev!ku!c!RUJ!rtqlgev!yjgtg!vjg!gpvktg!rtqlgev!yknn!ugtxg!kpfkxkfwcnu!
cpf!hcoknkgu!vjcv!oggv!qpg!qh!vjg!hqnnqykpi!etkvgtkc!cv!rtqlgev!gpvt{<!

2/! Gzrgtkgpekpi! ejtqpke! jqognguupguu! cu! fghkpgf! kp! 35! EHT! 689/4=!
!!

3/! Tgukfkpi! kp!c! vtcpukvkqpcn!jqwukpi!rtqlgev! vjcv!yknn! dg!gnkokpcvgf!cpf!oggvu! vjg!
fghkpkvkqp!qh!ejtqpkecnn{!jqognguu! kp!ghhgev!cv! vjg! vkog! kp!yjkej! vjg! kpfkxkfwcn!qt!
hcokn{! gpvgtgf! vjg! vtcpukvkqpcn! jqwukpi! rtqlgev=
!!

4/! Tgukfkpi!kp!c!rnceg!pqv!ogcpv!hqt!jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp-!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt-!qt!uchg!
jcxgp=! dwv! vjg! kpfkxkfwcnu! qt! hcoknkgu! gzrgtkgpekpi! ejtqpke! jqognguupguu! cu!
fghkpgf!cv!35!EHT!689/4!jcf!dggp!cfokvvgf!cpf!gptqnngf!kp!c!rgtocpgpv!jqwukpi!
rtqlgev! ykvjkp! vjg! ncuv! {gct! cpf! ygtg! wpcdng! vq! ockpvckp! c! jqwukpi! rncegogpv=!
!!

5/! Tgukfkpi!kp!vtcpukvkqpcn!jqwukpi!hwpfgf!d{!c!Lqkpv!Vtcpukvkqpcn!Jqwukpi!)LVJ*!cpf!
Tcrkf! Tg.Jqwukpi! )RJ.TTJ*! eqorqpgpv! rtqlgev! cpf! yjq! ygtg! gzrgtkgpekpi!
ejtqpke!jqognguupguu!cu!fghkpgf!cv!35!EHT!689/4!rtkqt! vq!gpvgtkpi!vjg!rtqlgev=
!!

6/! Tgukfkpi!cpf!jcu!tgukfgf!kp!c!rnceg!pqv!ogcpv!hqt!jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp-!c!uchg!jcxgp-!
qt!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt!hqt!cv!ngcuv!23!oqpvju!kp!vjg!ncuv!vjtgg!)4*!{gctu-!dwv!jcu!pqv!
fqpg!uq!qp!hqwt!)5*!ugrctcvg!qeecukqpu=!qt!
!!

7/! Tgegkxkpi! cuukuvcpeg! vjtqwij! c! Fgrctvogpv! qh! Xgvgtcpu! Chhcktu! )XC*! hwpfgf!
jqognguu!cuukuvcpeg!rtqitco!cpf!ogv!qpg!qh!vjg!cdqxg!etkvgtkc!cv!kpkvkcn!kpvcmg!vq!
vjg!XC(u!jqognguu!cuukuvcpeg!u{uvgo/!

!
!
!
!
Fghkpkpi!Ejtqpkecnn{!Jqognguu!)Hkpcn!Twng*!



7!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

)2*!Cp!kpfkxkfwcn!yjq<!!
)k*!Ku!jqognguu-!cu!fghkpgf!kp!ugevkqp!214!qh!vjg!Jqognguu!Gogtigpe{!Cuukuvcpeg!cpf!
Tcrkf!Vtcpukvkqp!vq!Jqwukpi!)JGCTVJ*!Cev!qh!311;-!cpf!nkxgu!kp!c!rnceg!pqv!ogcpv!hqt!
jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp!)g/i/-!uvtggv-!ukfgycnm!ect-!rctm-!cdcpfqpgf!dwknfkpi-!dwu!uvcvkqp-!
cktrqtv-!qt!ecor!itqwpf*-!c!uchg!jcxgp-!qt!kp!cp!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt=!cpf!

!
)kk*!!Jcu!dggp!jqognguu!cpf!nkxkpi!qt!tgukfkpi!kp!c!rnceg!pqv!ogcpv!hqt!jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp-!
c!uchg!jcxgp-!qt!kp!cp!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt!eqpvkpwqwun{!hqt!cv!ngcuv!qpg!)2*!{gct!qt!qp!
cv!ngcuv!hqwt!)5*!ugrctcvg!qeecukqpu!kp!vjg!ncuv!vjtgg!)4*!{gctu-!yjgtg!vjg!ewowncvkxg!
vqvcn!qh!vjg!hqwt!)5*!qeecukqpu!ku!cv!ngcuv!qpg!)2*!{gct/!Uvc{u!kp!kpuvkvwvkqpu!qh!;1!fc{u!
qt! nguu! yknn! pqv! eqpuvkvwvg! cu! c! dtgcm! kp! jqognguupguu-! dwv! tcvjgt! uwej! uvc{u! ctg!
kpenwfgf!kp!vjg!ewowncvkxg!vqvcn=!cpf!

!
)kkk*!Ecp!dg!fkcipqugf!ykvj!qpg!)2*!qt!oqtg!qh!vjg!hqnnqykpi!fkucdnkpi!eqpfkvkqpu!vjcv!ku!
gzrgevgf! vq! dg! nqpi.eqpvkpwkpi! qt! qh! kpfghkpkvg! fwtcvkqp<! Uwduvcpeg! wug! fkuqtfgt-!
ugtkqwu! ogpvcn! knnpguu-! fgxgnqrogpvcn! fkucdknkv{! )cu! fghkpgf! kp! ugevkqp! 213! qh! vjg!
Fgxgnqrogpvcn!Fkucdknkvkgu!Cuukuvcpeg!Dknn!qh!Tkijvu!Cev!qh!3111!)53!W/U/E/!26113**-!
rquvvtcwocvke! uvtguu! fkuqtfgt-! eqipkvkxg! korcktogpvu! tguwnvkpi! htqo! dtckp! kplwt{-! qt!
ejtqpke!rj{ukecn!knnpguu!qt!fkucdknkv{/!
!!!

)3*! Cp! kpfkxkfwcn! yjq! jcu! dggp! tgukfkpi! kp! cp! kpuvkvwvkqpcn! ectg! hceknkv{-! kpenwfkpi! lckn-!
uwduvcpeg!cdwug!qt!ogpvcn!jgcnvj!vtgcvogpv!hceknkv{-!jqurkvcn-!qt!qvjgt!ukoknct!hceknkv{-!hqt!
hgygt!vjcp!;1!fc{u!cpf!ogv!cnn!qh!vjg!etkvgtkc!kp!rctcitcrj!)2*!qh!vjku!fghkpkvkqp-!dghqtg!
gpvgtkpi!vjcv!hceknkv{=!qt!
!
)4*!C!hcokn{!ykvj!c!Jgcf!qh!Jqwugjqnf!yjq!oggvu!cnn!vjg!etkvgtkc!kp!rctcitcrj!)2*!qh!vjku!
fghkpkvkqp-! kpenwfkpi! c! hcokn{! yjqug! eqorqukvkqp! jcu! hnwevwcvgf! yjkng! vjg! Jgcf! qh!
Jqwugjqnf!jcu!dggp!jqognguu/!
!
Vjg!ewowncvkxg!vqvcn!qh!vjg!ngpivj!qh!jqognguupguu!urgpv!nkxkpi!kp!c!rnceg!pqv!ogcpv!hqt!
jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp-!c!uchg!jcxgp-!qt!kp!cp!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt!owuv!dg!cv!ngcuv!23!oqpvju/!
Vjg!hkpcn!twng!rtqxkfgu!vjcv!c!rgtuqp!owuv!jcxg!dggp!jqognguu!cpf!nkxkpi!kp!c!rnceg!pqv!
ogcpv!hqt!jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp-!c!uchg!jcxgp-!qt!kp!cp!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt!hqt!c!rgtkqf!qh!cv!
ngcuv!23!oqpvju!cu!qrrqugf!vq! ��qpg!)2*!{gct/��!Vjku! kpenwfgu!c!rtqxkukqp! vjcv!yjgtg!c!
rgtuqp!jcu!gzrgtkgpegf!cv!ngcuv!hqwt!)5*!qeecukqpu!qh!jqognguupguu!nkxkpi!kp!c!rnceg!pqv!
ogcpv!hqt!jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp-!c!uchg!jcxgp-!qt!kp!cp!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt!qxgt!c!rgtkqf!qh!
vjtgg!)4*!{gctu-! vjg!ewowncvkxg!vqvcn!qh! vjg!qeecukqpu!owuv! vqvcn!cv! ngcuv!23!oqpvju!cu!
qrrqugf!vq!��qpg!)2*!{gct/��!
!
Vjg!hkpcn!twng!rtqxkfgu!vjcv!c!dtgcm!kp!jqognguupguu!urgpv!nkxkpi!kp!c!rnceg!pqv!ogcpv!hqt!
jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp-!c!uchg!jcxgp-!qt!kp!cp!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt!ku!eqpukfgtgf!vq!dg!cp{!rgtkqf!
qh!ugxgp!qt!oqtg!eqpugewvkxg!pkijvu!yjgtg!cp!kpfkxkfwcn!qt!hcokn{!ku!pqv!nkxkpi!qt!tgukfkpi!
kp!uwej!c!rnceg/!Uvc{u! kp!cp! kpuvkvwvkqpcn!ectg! hceknkv{! )g/i/-!c! lckn-! uwduvcpeg!cdwug-!qt!
ogpvcn!jgcnvj!vtgcvogpv!hceknkv{-!jqurkvcn-!qt!qvjgt!ukoknct!hceknkv{*!hqt!hgygt!vjcp!;1!fc{u!
cpf! yjgtg! vjg! kpfkxkfwcn! qt! hcokn{! jcf! dggp! nkxkpi! kp! c! rnceg! pqv! ogcpv! hqt! jwocp!



8!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

jcdkvcvkqp-! c! uchg! jcxgp-! qt! kp!cp!gogtigpe{! ujgnvgt! koogfkcvgn{! dghqtg! gpvgtkpi! vjg!
kpuvkvwvkqpcn!ectg!hceknkv{!yknn!pqv!eqpuvkvwvg!cu!c!dtgcm/!

$! Pqvg<!Vjg!NCEFC!ecppqv!gpvgt!kpvq!c!Jqwukpi!Cuukuvcpeg!Rc{ogpv!)JCR*!eqpvtcev!
ykvj!pqp.gocpekrcvgf!okpqtu!yjq!fq!pqv!jcxg!vjg!ngicn!ecrcekv{!vq!gpvgt!kpvq!c!ngcug!
wpfgt!Uvcvg0nqecn!ncy/!!

!
!
Oggvkpi!JWF�u!Fghkpkvkqp!qh!Jqognguu!
JWF!tgswktgogpvu!ctg!urgekhke!cpf!owuv!dg!ogv!hqt!c!enkgpv!vq!swcnkh{!wpfgt!vjg!EqE�u!
FgfkecvgfRNWU!Rtqitco/!
!
2/!Ecvgiqt{!Qpg!.!Nkvgtcnn{!Jqognguu<!Cp!kpfkxkfwcn!qt!hcokn{!yjq!ncemu!c!hkzgf-!tgiwnct-!
cpf!cfgswcvg!pkijvvkog!tgukfgpeg-!ogcpkpi<!!

"! Jcu!c!rtkoct{!pkijvvkog!tgukfgpeg!vjcv!ku!c!rwdnke!qt!rtkxcvg!rnceg!pqv!ogcpv!hqt!
jwocp!jcdkvcvkqp! )k/g/!dwu!qt! vtckp!uvcvkqpu-!cktrqtvu-!qt!ecorkpi!itqwpfu-!ectu-!
cdcpfqpgf!dwknfkpiu-!rctmu-!ukfgycnmu-!gve/*!

"! Ku!nkxkpi!kp!c!rwdnken{!qt!rtkxcvgn{!qrgtcvgf!ujgnvgt!fgukipcvgf!vq!rtqxkfg!vgorqtct{!
nkxkpi! cttcpigogpvu! )kpenwfkpi! gogtigpe{! ujgnvgtu-! vtcpukvkqpcn! jqwukpi-! cpf!
jqvgnu0oqvgnu! rckf! hqt! d{! ejctkvcdng! qticpk|cvkqpu! qt! Hgfgtcn0Uvcvg0nqecn!
iqxgtpogpv! rtqitcou! hqt! nqy.kpeqog! kpfkxkfwcnu=! hqt! jqognguu! rgtuqpu! yjq!
qtkikpcnn{!ecog!htqo!vjg!uvtggvu/!!

"! Cp!kpfkxkfwcn!yjq!ku!gzkvkpi!cp!kpuvkvwvkqp!yjgtg!jg0ujg!tgukfgf!;1!fc{u!qt!nguu!cpf!
yjq! tgukfgf! kp! cp! gogtigpe{! ujgnvgt! qt!rnceg! pqv!ogcpv! hqt! jwocp! jcdkvcvkqp!
koogfkcvgn{!dghqtg!gpvgtkpi!vjcv!kpuvkvwvkqp/!
!

$! RUJ! rtqlgevu! jcxg! vjg! hqnnqykpi! cffkvkqpcn! Pqvkeg! qh! Hwpfkpi! Cxckncdknkv{!
nkokvcvkqpu!qp!gnkikdknkv{!ykvjkp!Ecvgiqt{!Qpg<!

!

"! Kpfkxkfwcnu!cpf!Hcoknkgu!eqokpi!htqo!LVJ!owuv!jcxg!qtkikpcnn{!eqog!htqo!
vjg!uvtggvu!qt!gogtigpe{!ujgnvgt/!
!

"! Vjg!Jgcf!qh!Jqwug!owuv!dg!cp!kpfkxkfwcn!ykvj!c!fkucdknkv{/!
!

"! Fgfkecvgf! ejtqpkecnn{! jqognguu! rtqlgevu-! kpenwfkpi! vjqug! vjcv! ygtg!
qtkikpcnn{!hwpfgf!cu!Ucoctkvcp!Dqpwu!Kpkvkcvkxg!Rtqlgevu-!owuv!eqpvkpwg!vq!
ugtxg!ejtqpkecnn{!jqognguu!rgtuqpu!gzenwukxgn{/!

!
3/!Ecvgiqt{!Vyq!qh!vjg!jqognguu!fghkpkvkqp-!fqgu!pqv!crrn{!vq!RUJ!rtqlgevu/!!!
!
4/!Ecvgiqt{!Vjtgg!qh!vjg!jqognguu!fghkpkvkqp-!fqgu!pqv!crrn{!vq!RUJ!rtqlgevu/!
!
5/!Ecvgiqt{!Hqwt!.!Hnggkpi0Cvvgorvkpi!vq!Hngg!Fqoguvke!Xkqngpeg<!Cp{!kpfkxkfwcn!qt!

hcokn{! yjq! ku! hnggkpi!qt! cvvgorvkpi! vq! hngg! htqo! fqoguvke! xkqngpeg-! fcvkpi! xkqngpeg-!
ugzwcn!cuucwnv-!xkevkou!qh!jwocp!qt!ugz!vtchhkemkpi-!qt!uvcnmkpi!qt!qvjgt!fcpigtqwu!qt!
nkhg.vjtgcvgpkpi! eqpfkvkqpu! vjcv! tgncvg! vq! xkqngpeg! cickpuv! vjg! kpfkxkfwcn! qt! c! hcokn{!
ogodgt-!kpenwfkpi!c!ejknf-!vjcv!jcu!gkvjgt!vcmgp!rnceg!kp!vjg!rgtuqp!qt!hcokn{�u!rtkoct{!



9!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

pkijvvkog!tgukfgpeg!qt!jcu!ocfg!vjg!rgtuqp!qt!hcokn{!chtckf!vq!tgvwtp!vq!vjg!rtkoct{!
pkijvvkog! tgukfgpeg=! jcu! pq! uwdugswgpv! tgukfgpeg! cpf! ncemu! vjg! tguqwtegu! cpf!
uwrrqtv!pgvyqtmu!pggfgf!vq!qdvckp!jqwukpi/!

!
Yjq!ku!PQV!eqpukfgtgf!JqognguuA!Rgtuqpu!yjq!ctg<!

"! Kpectegtcvgf!qt!dgkpi!fkuejctigf!htqo!cp!kpuvkvwvkqp!yjkej!ku!tgswktgf!vq!rtqxkfg!qt!
cttcpig!jqwukpi!wrqp!tgngcug/!

"! Yctfu!qh! vjg!Uvcvg! )cnvjqwij!{qwvj! kp! hquvgt! ectg!oc{! tgegkxg!pggfgf!uwrrqtv!
ugtxkegu!vjcv!uwrrngogpvu!dwv!fqgu!pqv!uwduvkvwvg!hqt!vjg!Uvcvg�u!cuukuvcpeg*/!
!

Xgtkh{kpi!Jqognguupguu!
Cigpekgu! owuv! uwdokv! cpf! ockpvckp! fqewogpvcvkqp! vjcv! xgtkhkgu! gcej! enkgpv�u!
jqognguupguu! uvcvwu! cpf0qt! jkuvqt{! )wr! vq! vjg! rqkpv! qh! vjg! EqE! Rtqitco! crrnkecvkqp!
uwdokuukqp*=! kp! ceeqtfcpeg! ykvj! JWF! tgswktgogpvu! vjtqwij! vjg! NCJUC! wpkxgtucn!
FgfkecvgfRNWU!xgtkhkecvkqp!hqtou/!
!
Fkucdknkv{!
Hqt!FgfkecvgfRNWU!RUJ-!vjg!swcnkh{kpi!jqwugjqnf!ogodgt!owuv!dg!cp!cfwnv!Jgcf!qh!
Jqwugjqnf!qt!okpqt!Jgcf!qh!Jqwugjqnf!yjgp!pq!cfwnvu!ctg!rtgugpv/!Yjgp! vjgtg!ctg!
ownvkrng!cfwnvu!kp!vjg!rtgugpvkpi!jqwugjqnf-!qt!ownvkrng!okpqtu!kp!c!hcokn{!ykvj!pq!cfwnv-!
JWF!fqgu!pqv!urgekh{!yjkej!cfwnv!qt!okpqt!owuv!dg!kfgpvkhkgf!cu!Jgcf!qh!Jqwugjqnf!hqt!
fgvgtokpkpi!gnkikdknkv{!rwtrqugu/!Rtgxkqwun{-!vjg!fkucdknkv{!tgswktgogpv!ycu!cdng!vq!dg!ogv!
d{!gkvjgt!cp!cfwnv!qt!ejknf!kp!c!hcokn{!jqwugjqnf/!FgfkecvgfRNWU!jcu!ukpeg!tgoqxgf!vjg!
cdknkv{! vq! wug! c! ejknf! cu! vjg! swcnkh{kpi! fkucdngf! rgtuqp! kh! vjgtg! ku! cp! cfwnv! Jgcf! qh!
Jqwugjqnf!rtgugpv/!!
!
Fghkpkvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{!
JWF!eqpukfgtu!cp!kpfkxkfwcn!vq!oggv!vjg!fkucdknkv{!tgswktgogpv!kh<!
2/!Vjg!kpfkxkfwcn!jcu!c!fkucdknkv{!vjcv<!

)k*! Ku!gzrgevgf!vq!dg!nqpi.eqpvkpwkpi!qt!qh!kpfghkpkvg!fwtcvkqp=!
)kk*! Uwduvcpvkcnn{!korgfgu!vjg!kpfkxkfwcn�u!cdknkv{!vq!nkxg!kpfgrgpfgpvn{=!
)kkk*! Eqwnf!dg! kortqxgf!d{! vjg!rtqxkukqp!qh!oqtg!uwkvcdng!jqwukpi!eqpfkvkqpu=!
cpf!
)kx*! Ku! c! rj{ukecn-! ogpvcn-! qt! goqvkqpcn! korcktogpv-! kpenwfkpi! cp! korcktogpv!
ecwugf!d{!cneqjqn!qt!ftwi!cdwug-!rquv.vtcwocvke!uvtguu!fkuqtfgt-!qt!dtckp!kplwt{/!
!

3/!C!rgtuqp!yknn!cnuq!dg!eqpukfgtgf!vq!jcxg!c!fkucdknkv{!kh!jg!qt!ujg!jcu!c!fgxgnqrogpvcn!
fkucdknkv{!cu!fghkpgf!kp!ugevkqp!213!qh!vjg!Fgxgnqrogpvcn!Fkucdknkvkgu!Cuukuvcpeg!cpf!Dknn!
qh!Tkijvu!Cev!qh!3111!)53!W/U/E/!26113*<!

)k*! C!ugxgtg-!ejtqpke!fkucdknkv{!qh!cp!kpfkxkfwcn!vjcv�!
2/! Ku!cvvtkdwvcdng!vq!c!ogpvcn!qt!rj{ukecn!korcktogpv!qt!eqodkpcvkqp!qh!!

ogpvcn!cpf!rj{ukecn!korcktogpvu=!
3/! Ku!ocpkhguvgf!dghqtg!vjg!kpfkxkfwcn!cvvckpu!cig!33=!
4/! Ku!nkmgn{!vq!eqpvkpwg!kpfghkpkvgn{=!
5/! Tguwnvu!kp!uwduvcpvkcn!hwpevkqpcn!nkokvcvkqpu!kp!vjtgg!)4*!qt!oqtg!qh!vjg!



;!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

hqnnqykpi!ctgcu!qh!oclqt!nkhg!cevkxkv{<!
C/! Ugnh.ectg=!
D/! Tgegrvkxg!cpf!gzrtguukxg!ncpiwcig=!
E/! Ngctpkpi=!
F/! Oqdknkv{=!
G/! Ugnh.fktgevkqp=!
H/! Ecrcekv{!hqt!kpfgrgpfgpv!nkxkpi=!cpf!
I/! Geqpqoke!ugnh.uwhhkekgpe{/!

6/! Tghngevu! vjg! kpfkxkfwcn�u! pggf! hqt! c! eqodkpcvkqp! cpf! ugswgpeg! qh!
urgekcn-! kpvgtfkuekrnkpct{-! qt! igpgtke! ugtxkegu-! kpfkxkfwcnk|gf!
uwrrqtvu-!qt!qvjgt!hqtou!qh!cuukuvcpeg!vjcv!ctg!qh!nkhgnqpi!qt!gzvgpfgf!
fwtcvkqp!cpf!ctg!kpfkxkfwcnn{!rncppgf!cpf!eqqtfkpcvgf/!

!
)kk*! Cp! kpfkxkfwcn! htqo! dktvj! vq! cig! pkpg-! kpenwukxg-! yjq! jcu! c! uwduvcpvkcn!
fgxgnqrogpvcn! fgnc{! qt! urgekhke! eqpigpkvcn! qt! ceswktgf! eqpfkvkqp-! oc{! dg!
eqpukfgtgf!vq!jcxg!c!fgxgnqrogpvcn!fkucdknkv{!ykvjqwv!oggvkpi!vjtgg!)4*!qt!oqtg!
qh! vjg!etkvgtkc!fguetkdgf! kp!rctcitcrju! )3*)k*! vjtqwij! )x*!qh!JWF�u!Fghkpkvkqp!qh!
Fgxgnqrogpvcn!Fkucdknkv{-! kh!vjg!kpfkxkfwcn-!ykvjqwv!ugtxkegu!cpf!uwrrqtvu-!jcu!c!
jkij!rtqdcdknkv{!qh!oggvkpi!vjqug!etkvgtkc!ncvgt!kp!nkhg/!

4/!C!rgtuqp!yknn!cnuq!dg!eqpukfgtgf! vq!jcxg!c!fkucdknkv{! kh! vjcv!rgtuqp!jcu!ceswktgf!
koowpqfghkekgpe{!u{pftqog!)CKFU*!qt!cp{!eqpfkvkqpu!ctkukpi!htqo!vjg!gvkqnqike!cigpv!
hqt!CKFU-!kpenwfkpi!kphgevkqp!ykvj!vjg!jwocp!koowpqfghkekgpe{!xktwu!)JKX*/!

Xgtkh{kpi!vjg!Fkucdknkv{!
Ytkvvgp!xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!vjg!fkucdknkv{!owuv!dg!qdvckpgf!kp!vjg!hqto!qh<!c!NCJUC!Xgtkhkecvkqp!
qh!Fkucdknkv{!hqto!eqorngvgf!d{!c!rtqhguukqpcn!nkegpugf!d{!vjg!Uvcvg!vq!fkcipqug!cpf!vtgcv!
vjg!fkucdknkv{=!qt!cp{!qvjgt!ceegrvcdng!hqto!qh!gxkfgpeg!vjcv!xgtkhkgu!vjg!enkgpv�u!fkucdknkv{-!
cu!nkuvgf!wpfgt!vjg!�Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{�!ugevkqp!kp!vjg!�Tgrqtvkpi!Tgswktgogpvu�!vcd!
qh!vjku!Jcpfdqqm/!
!
Eqorngvkpi!vjg!Crrnkecvkqp!
C!eqorngvg!crrnkecvkqp!ku!vjg!qpn{!vqqn!vjcv!vjg!NCEFC!yknn!wug!vq!fgvgtokpg!kh!cp!crrnkecpv!
ku!swcnkhkgf!qt!pqv/!
!
C! eqorngvgf! crrnkecvkqp! yknn! dg! qpg! )2*! vjcv! kpenwfgu! c! eqorngvgf! Eqqtfkpcvgf! Gpvt{!
U{uvgo!)EGU*!tghgttcn!hqto!hqt!211&!qh!cnn!tghgttcnu-!cu!tgswktgf!hqt!vjg!EqE!Rtqitco/!!
Vjgug! tghgttcnu! owuv! dg! kp! eqornkcpeg! ykvj! qwt! EqE�u! crrtqxgf! eqqtfkpcvgf! gpvt{!
u{uvgou0hqtou-!cu!nkuvgf!dgnqy<!

"! EGU!�!Ukping!Cfwnv!U{uvgo<!C!EGU!tghgttcn!hqto!ku!vq!dg!eqorngvgf!cpf!egtvkhkgf!
d{! vjg! Ugtxkeg! Rncppkpi! Ctgc! )URC*! Eqoowpkv{! Eqqtfkpcvqt! qt! Eqoowpkv{!
Ocvejgt/!
!

!



21!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

Cu!c!ecug!ocpcigt!qt!jqwukpi!nkckuqp-!{qwt!tqng!ku!etkvkecn!vq!c!uweeguuhwn!qwveqog/!![qwt!
vjqtqwijpguu! cpf! cvvgpvkqp! vq! fgvckn! fwtkpi! vjg! crrnkecvkqp! rtqeguu! yknn! ocmg! vjg!
fkhhgtgpeg!dgvyggp!c!rtqeguu!vjcv!ku!uoqqvj-!qt!qpg!)2*!hknngf!ykvj!qduvcengu!cpf!fgnc{u!
hqt!{qw!cpf!{qwt!enkgpv/!
!
Uqog!ukorng!iwkfgnkpgu<!
!

2/! Mpqy!cpf!wpfgtuvcpf!vjg!EqE!tgswktgogpvu!dghqtg!{qw!dgikp-!kp!qtfgt!vq!ocmg!
egtvckp!{qwt!enkgpv!swcnkhkgu!hqt!vjg!rtqitco!dghqtg!kpkvkcvkpi!cp!crrnkecvkqp=!
!

3/! Ocmg!egtvckp!{qw!ecp!)cpf!fq*!gzrnckp!vjg!tgswktgogpvu!vq!{qwt!enkgpv!engctn{!cpf!
eqorngvgn{=!
!

4/! Urgpf! vjg! vkog!wr! htqpv! vq!icvjgt!cnn! vjg! tgswktgf!fqewogpvcvkqp-! vjku!yknn!ucxg!
wppgeguuct{!fgnc{u!ncvgt=!
!

5/! Dg!cyctg!vjcv!uqog!tgswktgf!fqewogpvu!ctg!vkog.ugpukvkxg-!cpf!fgnc{u!ecwugf!d{!
kpeqorngvg! kphqtocvkqp! ecp! cwvqocvkecnn{! vtkiigt! vjg! pggf! vq! tguwdokv! egtvckp!
fqewogpvu!)rtqqh!qh!kpeqog-!gve/*-!yjkej!yknn!fgnc{!vjg!rtqeguu!koogcuwtcdn{=!cpf!
!

6/! Eqorngvg!vjg!crrnkecvkqp!vjqtqwijn{!cpf!ocmg!egtvckp!{qw!jcxg!cnn!vjg!tgswktgf!
fqewogpvcvkqp!dghqtg!uwdokvvkpi!vjg!crrnkecvkqp/!
!

!
!
Hqtou0Pqvkegu!Rgtvckpkpi!vq!Vjku!Ugevkqp<!

"! NCJUC!Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Jqognguupguu!Hqtou!

"! NCJUC!Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{!Hqto!

"! Rtqitco!Tghgttcn!Hqto!

"! Eqqtfkpcvgf!Gpvt{!U{uvgo!Hqto!

"! Crrnkecvkqp!Rcemgv!

"! Crrnkecvkqp!Ejgemnkuv!Hqto!

"! Pq!Eqphnkev!qh!Kpvgtguv!Egtvkhkecvkqp!Hqto!

"! Qwv!qh!Ugtxkeg!Ctgc!Citggogpv!Hqto!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!



22!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

UGEVKQP!KK<!!UWDOKUUKQP!QH!VJG!CRRNKECVKQP!
!
Vjg!hqnnqykpi!ku!cp!qxgtxkgy!qh!vjg!rtqeguu!qpeg!cp!crrnkecvkqp0tghgttcn!ku!uwdokvvgf!vq!
vjg!NCEFC/!
!
Vjg!Uwdokuukqp!Rtqeguu!

Uvgr!2<!!Uwdokuukqp!
Urqpuqt!cigpekgu!owuv!uwdokv!eqorngvgf!tghgttcnu!cpf!crrnkecvkqp!rcemgvu!vq!vjg!NCEFC!
hqt! crrtqxcn/! ! Kh! cp{! rctv! qh! vjg! rcemgv! ku! kpeqorngvg-! vjg! NCEFC! yknn! pqv! ceegrv! vjg!
uwdokvvgf!rcemgv!cpf!yknn!tgvwtp!cnn!ocvgtkcn!vq!vjg!urqpuqt!cigpe{!hqt!tguwdokuukqp!qpeg!
cnn!eqttgevkqpu!jcxg!dggp!eqorngvgf/!
!
Uvgr!3<!!NCEFC�u!Kpvgtpcn!Fkuvtkdwvkqp!

Qpeg!vjg!NCEFC!jcu!tgegkxgf!c!eqorngvg!tghgttcn!cpf!crrnkecvkqp!rcemgv-!vjg!rcemgv!yknn!
dg!cuukipgf!vq!cp!NCEFC!gornq{gg!hqt!rtqeguukpi/!
!
Uvgr!4<!!Kpkvkcn!NCEFC!Tgxkgy0Xgtkhkecvkqp!

Vjg! NCEFC! gornq{gg! yknn! tgxkgy! vjg! rcemgv! hqt! gnkikdknkv{! d{! xgtkh{kpi! vjg! enkgpv�u!
jqognguupguu-! kpeqog!gnkikdknkv{-!cpf!fkucdknkv{/!Vjg!NCEFC!gornq{gg!yknn!cnuq!xgtkh{-!
ykvj!vjg!Uvcvg!Ogfkecn!Dqctf-!vjcv!vjg!rj{ukekcp!qt!ogfkecn!rtqhguukqpcn!vjcv!ukipgf!vjg!
Xgtkhkecvkqp! qh! Fkucdknkv{! hqto! jcu! c! xcnkf! nkegpug! vq! rtcevkeg! cpf! ocmg! uwej! c!
fgvgtokpcvkqp/!
!
Uvgr!5<!!Vjg!Dtkghkpi!Uguukqp!

Vjg! NCEFC! yknn! uejgfwng! c! dtkghkpi! uguukqp! ykvj! vjg! urqpuqt! cigpe{=! cv! vjg! vkog! qh!
uejgfwnkpi-!vjg!NCEFC!yknn!rtqxkfg!c!nkuv!qh!enkgpv!pcogu!cpf!kvgou!tgswktgf!cv!vjg!dtkghkpi!
uguukqp/! !Kh!cp{! kvgou!ctg!pggfgf!cv!vjg!dtkghkpi!uguukqp!cpf!vjg!enkgpv! hcknu! vq!rtqxkfg!
vjgo-!vjg!enkgpv!yknn!dg!tguejgfwngf/!!Cnuq-!kh!vjg!enkgpv!hcknu!vq!cvvgpf!vjg!dtkghkpi!uguukqp!
qt!kh!vjg!ecug!ocpcigt!hcknu!vq!ceeqorcp{!jku0jgt!enkgpv-!vjg!enkgpv!yknn!dg!tg.uejgfwngf!
hqt!c!hkpcn!dtkghkpi!uguukqp/!
!
Uvgr!6<!!Kuuwcpeg!

Qpeg!vjg!enkgpv!cvvgpfu!c!dtkghkpi!uguukqp-!vjg{!yknn!dg!kuuwgf!c!EqE!egtvkhkecvg/!Vjg!kpkvkcn!
vgto!qh!vjg!egtvkhkecvg!ku!231!ecngpfct!fc{u!vq!hkpf!cp!crrtqrtkcvg!wpkv=!kh!pggfgf-!vjg!enkgpv!
oc{!tgswguv!cp!gzvgpukqp!vq!vjg!egtvkhkecvg/!Cnn!tgswguvu!hqt!gzvgpukqpu!owuv!dg!tgegkxgf!
rtkqt!vq!vjg!gzrktcvkqp!fcvg!qh!vjg!egtvkhkecvg/!Gzvgpukqpu!oc{!dg!itcpvgf!kp!41-!71-!qt!231!
fc{!kpetgogpvu-!wr!vq!c!oczkowo!vgto!qh!291!ecngpfct!fc{u-!htqo!vjg!fcvg!qh!kuuwcpeg-!
dcugf!qp!gzvgpwcvkpi!ektewouvcpegu/!Gzvgpukqpu!dg{qpf!vjcv!oc{!dg!crrtqxgf!d{!vjg!
uwrgtxkuqt!wr!vq!476!fc{u/!!
!
!
!
!



23!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

UGEVKQP!KKK<!!QDVCKPKPI!CPF!OCKPVCKPKPI!JQWUKPI!

Vjku!ugevkqp!rtqxkfgu!dcuke! kphqtocvkqp!hqt!urqpuqt!cigpekgu!vjcv!yknn!jgnr!vjgo!cuukuv!
vjgkt!enkgpvu!ykvj!eqorngvkpi!vjg!ngcukpi!rtqeguu!cpf!ugewtkpi!jqwukpi/!
!
Nqecvkpi!Wpkvu!!!
Urqpuqt!cigpekgu!ujqwnf!cuukuv!vjgkt!enkgpvu!ykvj!ugctejkpi!hqt!vjg!hqnnqykpi!ceegrvcdng!
jqwukpi!v{rgu<!uecvvgtgf!ukvg!tgpvcn!wpkvu=!enwuvgtgf!wpkvu!ykvjkp!c!dwknfkpi!qt!fgxgnqrogpv=!
qt!cp!gpvktg!dwknfkpi!vjcv!jqwugu!qpn{!rtqitco!enkgpvu/!Vjg!NCEFC!eqnncdqtcvgu!ykvj!Nqu!
Cpigngu!Eqwpv{!Jqwukpi!Tguqwteg!Egpvgt!vq!rtqxkfg!nkuvkpiu!hqt!tgpvcnu!kp!vjg!Eqwpv{<!
jqwukpi/nceqwpv{/iqx/!
!
Uvgr!2<!!Tgxkgy!ocvgtkcnu!ykvj!{qwt!enkgpv!

Cv!vjg!vkog!qh! kuuwcpeg-!enkgpvu!ctg!ikxgp!cp!kphqtocvkqp!rcemgv!vq!jgnr!vjgo!wug!vjgkt!
egtvkhkecvg! vq! tgegkxg! tgpvcn!cuukuvcpeg! kp!c!rtkxcvgn{.qypgf!wpkv! )vjku! kphqtocvkqp!fqgu!
PQV!crrn{! vq!Rtqlgev.Dcugf!cpf!Urqpuqt.Dcugf!enkgpvu!ukpeg! vjg{!ecp!qpn{!wug! vjgkt!
egtvkhkecvg!ykvjkp!urgekhkgf!rtqrgtvkgu*/!
!

Uvgr!3<!!Jgnr!{qwt!enkgpv!hkpf!cp!crrtqrtkcvg!tgpvcn!wpkv!

Enkgpvu!ujqwnf!ugctej!hqt!c!wpkv!vjcv!ku<!

"! Uwkvcdng=!

"! Vjg!tkijv!uk|g!wpkv!hqt!vjgkt!jqwugjqnf=!!

"! Ykvjkp!Nqu!Cpigngu!Eqwpv{!igqitcrjke!ctgc-!yjkej!kpenwfgu!wpkpeqtrqtcvgf!ctgcu!
qh!Nqu!Cpigngu!Eqwpv{!cpf!73!rctvkekrcvkpi!ekvkgu-!qvjgt!rctvkekrcvkpi!ekvkgu-!cpf!
oqdknkv{!yckxgt!qrvkqpu=!cpf!

"! Oqdknkv{!Rqnke{!tgswktgu!vjg!Rtqitco!Urqpuqt!cpf!NCEFC!crrtqxcn!qp!c!ecug.d{.
ecug!dcuku/!

Uvgr!4<!!Eqorngvkpi!c!Tgswguv!hqt!Vgpcpe{!Crrtqxcn!)TVC*!hqto!

Qpeg!vjg!enkgpv! hkpfu!c!wpkv!cpf!vjg!rtqrgtv{!qypgt! ku!yknnkpi! vq!rctvkekrcvg! kp! vjg!EqE!
Rtqitco-!vjg!enkgpv!cpf!rtqrgtv{!qypgt!owuv!eqorngvg!cp!TVC!hqto/!
!

[qwt!enkgpv!ku!gpeqwtcigf!vq!tgcf!vjg!TVC!ectghwnn{-!cu!kv!eqpvckpu!fgvcknu!cdqwv!tgngcukpi!
vjgkt!kphqtocvkqp!vq!vjg!rtqrgtv{!qypgt/!
!
Rctvkekrcpv!Oqdknkv{!
Vjg!fgekukqp!qh!c!rtqitco!rctvkekrcpv!vq!ejqqug!jqwukpi!qt!oqxg!qwvukfg!qh!vjg!EqE(u!
igqitcrjke! ctgc! ujqwnf! dg! qpg! vjcv! ku! ocfg! kp! eqpuwnvcvkqp! dgvyggp! vjg! rtqitco!
rctvkekrcpv-!vjg!NCEFC-!cpf!urqpuqt!cigpe{/!Vjg!NCEFC!cpf0qt!urqpuqt!cigpe{!oc{!
fgenkpg!c!rtqitco!rctvkekrcpv(u!tgswguv!vq!ejqqug!jqwukpi!qt!oqxg!qwvukfg!qh!vjg!EqE(u!
igqitcrjke!ctgc!ku!vjcv!pgkvjgt!vjg!NCEFC!cpf0qt!urqpuqt!cigpe{!ecp!tgcuqpcdn{!oggv!
cnn!qh!vjg!EqE!Rtqitco!tgswktgogpvu!cv!qt!pgct!vjg!fguktgf!cfftguu/!!
!
!
!



24!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

!
Jqognguu!Kpegpvkxg!Rtqitco!)JKR*!
Vjg!JKR!ycu!etgcvgf!vq!cuukuv!jqognguu!hcoknkgu!ykvj!hkpfkpi!cpf!ugewtkpi!jqwukpi!hqt!
vjgkt! kpkvkcn! jqwukpi! wpkv/! Vjg! JKR! qhhgtu! oqpgvct{! kpegpvkxgu! vq! gpeqwtcig! rtqrgtv{!
qypgtu!vq!tgpv!vjgkt!cxckncdng!wpkvu!vq!vjg!NCEFC�u!jqognguu!crrnkecpvu/!Vjg!JKR!cnuq!
rtqxkfgu!jqwukpi!ngcfu!cpf!oqxg.kp!cuukuvcpeg!hqt!jqognguu!crrnkecpvu!qpeg!vjg{!jcxg!
uweeguuhwnn{!nqecvgf!c!jqwukpi!wpkv!ykvj!vjgkt!kpkvkcn!egtvkhkecvg/!Vjgug!JKR!kpegpvkxgu!cpf!
ugtxkegu!yknn!eqpvkpwg!vq!dg!cxckncdng!kh!hwpfkpi!rgtokvu/!
!
Qrgp!Fqqtu!!!
Vq!kpetgcug!vjg!pwodgt!qh!rtqrgtv{!qypgtu!rctvkekrcvkpi!kp!vjg!Eqwpv{�u!tgpvcn!cuukuvcpeg!
rtqitcou-! vjg! NCEFC! ncwpejgf! c! pgy! dwukpguu! oqfgn! vjcv! rtqxkfgu! cp! gpjcpegf!
ewuvqogt!ugtxkeg!gzrgtkgpeg!hqt!rtqrgtv{!qypgtu/!

Vjtqwij!c!eqnncdqtcvkxg!ghhqtv!dgvyggp!vjg!NCEFC!cpf!Nqu!Cpigngu!Eqwpv{-!Qrgp!Fqqtu!
rtqxkfgu! rtqrgtv{! qypgtu! yjq! tgpv! vjgkt! cxckncdng! wpkvu! vq! uwdukfk|gf! hcoknkgu! ykvj!
oqpgvct{!cpf!pqp.oqpgvct{!cuuwtcpegu/!!
!!
Fgxgnqrkpi!Tgncvkqpujkru!ykvj!Rtqrgtv{!Qypgtu!
Vjg! EqE! Rtqitco! uvtqpin{! gpeqwtcigu! vjcv! urqpuqt! cigpekgu! guvcdnkuj! rqukvkxg!
tgncvkqpujkru!ykvj!rtqrgtv{!qypgtu!vjcv!ctg!yknnkpi!vq!tgpv!vq!rtqitco!enkgpvu/!
!
Eqpfwevkpi!qwvtgcej!vq!rtqrgtv{!qypgtu!cpf!gzrnckpkpi!vjg!rwtrqug!qh!vjg!EqE!Rtqitco!
ctg!xgt{!korqtvcpv!cu!ocp{!rtqrgtv{!qypgtu!jcxg!nkvvng!gzrgtkgpeg!ykvj!hqtogtn{!jqognguu!
cpf!fkucdngf!enkgpvu/!!Kv!ku!gswcnn{!korqtvcpv!vq!fgoqpuvtcvg!vjg!dgpghkvu!qhhgtgf!vq!rtqrgtv{!
qypgtu!cpf!enkgpvu!cnkmg-!kpenwfkpi<!
!

"! Egtvckpv{!qh!rc{ogpv=!cpf!

"! Cuuwtcpeg!vjcv!enkgpvu!yknn!tgegkxg!tghgttcnu!vq!vjg!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!vjg{!pggf!
cpf!uwrrqtv!htqo!vjg!urqpuqt!kh!cp{!rtqdngou!ctkug/!

!
Wpkv!Tgpvu!
Tgpvu! hqt! wpkvu! uwdukfk|gf! vjtqwij! vjg! EqE.RUJ! Rtqitco! owuv! oggv! c! �tgpv!
tgcuqpcdngpguu�! vguv/! !Hqt! vjg!EqE.RUJ�u!VDTC-!UDTC-!cpf!RDTC!eqorqpgpvu-! vjg!
NCEFC!owuv!fgvgtokpg!yjgvjgt!vjg!tgpv!dgkpi!ejctigf!hqt!cp!cuukuvgf!wpkv!ku!dqvj<!
!

"! Tgcuqpcdng!kp!tgncvkqp!vq!tgpvu!dgkpi!ejctigf!hqt!eqorctcdng!wpcuukuvgf!wpkvu!ykvj!
ukoknct!hgcvwtgu!cpf!cogpkvkgu=!cpf!

"! Pqv! oqtg! vjcp! tgpvu! ewttgpvn{! dgkpi! ejctigf! d{! vjg! ucog! rtqrgtv{! qypgt! hqt!
eqorctcdng!wpcuukuvgf!wpkvu/!
!

Vjg!tgpvu!hqt!UDTC-!VDTC-!qt!RDTC!wpkvu!oc{!dg!ugv!cv!vjg!tgcuqpcdng!tgpv!ngxgn!gxgp!
kh!kv!ku!jkijgt!vjcp!vjg!JWF!Hckt!Octmgv!Tgpv!)HOT*!nkokvu/!
!
Dg!okpfhwn-!vjcv!ngcukpi!UDTC-!VDTC-!cpf!RDTC!wpkvu!cv!tgpvu!jkijgt!vjcp!vjg!HOT!oc{!
ecwug!rtqdngou!kp!vjg!hwvwtg!ukpeg!vjg!EqE!itcpv!coqwpvu!ctg!ecnewncvgf!d{!ownvkrn{kpi!
vjg!rtqrqugf!pwodgt!qh!wpkv!uk|g)u*!d{!vjg!pwodgt!qh!oqpvju!kp!vjg!tgpgycn!itcpv!vgto!



25!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

cpf! vjg! crrnkecdng! HOT-! cu! qrrqugf! vq! vjg! �tgcuqpcdng! tgpv/�! ! Cfokpkuvtcvkxg! equvu-!
fcocig! rc{ogpvu-! cpf! tgpv! kpetgcugu! ecp! qpn{! dg! eqxgtgf! kh! vjg! vqvcn! itcpv! coqwpv!
gzeggfu!vjg!cevwcn!equvu!qh!ugtxkpi!vjg!pwodgt!qh!enkgpvu!rtqrqugf!vq!dg!ugtxgf!kp!vjg!
EqE!crrnkecvkqp/!
!
Ugewtkv{!Fgrqukvu!
Tgpvcn!Cuukuvcpeg!hwpfu!ecp!dg!wugf!hqt!ugewtkv{!fgrqukvu-!rtqxkfgf!vjcv!vjg!coqwpv!fqgu!
pqv!gzeggf!vyq!)3*!oqpvju!qh!vjg!cuukuvgf!wpkv�u!eqpvtcevgf!tgpv/!!Cp!cfxcpeg!rc{ogpv!
qh!vjg!ncuv!oqpvj�u!tgpv!oc{!dg!rtqxkfgf!vq!vjg!rtqrgtv{!qypgt-!kp!cffkvkqp!vq!vjg!ugewtkv{!
fgrqukv!cpf!rc{ogpv!qh!vjg!hktuv!oqpvj�u!tgpv/!
!
Hqtou0Pqvkegu!Rgtvckpkpi!vq!Vjku!Ugevkqp<!

"! TVC!!

"! Fkuenquwtg!qh!Kphq!qp!Ngcf.Dcugf!Rckpv0Jc|ctfu!Hqto!

"! Ngvvgt!qh!Cwvjqtk|cvkqp!Hqto!

"! KTU!Y.;!Hqto!

"! Fktgev!Fgrqukv!hqt!Xgpfqtu!Hqto!

"! Tgswguv!hqt!Ugewtkv{!Fgrqukv!)kh!pggfgf*!

"! Ugctejkpi!hqt!C!Tgpvcn!Jqog!

"! Lwtkufkevkqp!hkpfgt<!jvvru<00yyy/ncefc/qti0ugevkqp.90ujctgf.kphq0yjgtg.yg.qrgtcvg!

"! C!Vjtgg.yc{!Rctvpgtujkr!

"! Hckt!Jqwukpi<![qw!Ctg!Rtqvgevgf!Wpfgt!Ecnkhqtpkc!Ncy!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!



26!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

!
UGEVKQP!KX<!!KPURGEVKQPU!

Kpkvkcn!Kpurgevkqpu!
!
Chvgt! {qwt! enkgpv! uwdokvu! cp! TVC-! cp! cuukipgf! NCEFC! gornq{gg! yknn! eqpfwev! c! tgpv!
tgcuqpcdngpguu!uvwf{!hqt!vjg!ugngevgf!wpkv/!!
!
Qpeg! vjg! cuukipgf! NCEFC! gornq{gg! jcu! kfgpvkhkgf! vjg! ugngevgf! wpkv! cu! chhqtfcdng-!
Jqwukpi!Swcnkv{!Uvcpfctfu!)JSU*!kpurgevkqp!yknn!dg!uejgfwngf!ykvjkp!26!ecngpfct!fc{u/!!
!
Uejgfwnkpi!Kpurgevkqpu!
Vjg!NCEFC!eqpfwevu!kpurgevkqpu!qp!dwukpguu!fc{u!dgvyggp!vjg!jqwtu!qh!8<11!c/o/!cpf!
5<11!r/o/!!!
!
Jqwukpi!Swcnkv{!Uvcpfctfu!
JSU!ctg!vjg!okpkowo!ugv!qh!uvcpfctfu!ugv!kp!rnceg!vq!gpuwtg!vjcv!cuukuvcpeg!rtqxkfgf!ku!
hqt!fgegpv-!uchg-!cpf!ucpkvct{!jqwukpi/!Dghqtg!cp{!tgpvcn!cuukuvcpeg!oc{!dg!rtqxkfgf-!vjg!
NCEFC! owuv! rj{ukecnn{! kpurgev! gcej! cuukuvgf! wpkv! vq! gpuwtg! vjcv! kv! oggvu! JSU/! Vjg!
rtqurgevkxg!vgpcpv!jcu!vjg!tkijv!vq!dg!rtgugpv!cv!c!uejgfwngf!kpurgevkqp/!!!
!
Fwtkpi!vjg!kpurgevkqp-!vjg!wpkv!owuv!dg!hwnn{!xcecvgf!d{!vjg!rtgxkqwu!vgpcpv)u*/!!Kh!vjg!wpkv!
ku!hwtpkujgf!ykvj!kvgou!pqv!vq!tgockp!kp!rnceg!hqt!vjg!cuukuvgf!vgpcpe{=!kv!ku!pqv!eqpukfgtgf!
tgcf{!hqt!kpurgevkqp/!!Cp!cfwnv!)cig!29!{gctu!qt!qnfgt*!owuv!dg!rtgugpv/!
!
C! iqqf! vkr! cdqwv! vjku! rtqeguu! ku! vq! cfftguu! cp{! rqvgpvkcn! kuuwgu! kp! cfxcpeg! qh! vjg!
kpurgevkqp/!!Kv!ku!kp!{qwt!enkgpv�u!dguv!kpvgtguv!vq!eqpfwev!c!rtg.kpurgevkqp!ycnm!vjtqwij!ykvj!
vjg!rqvgpvkcn!rtqrgtv{!qypgt!rtkqt!vq!vjg!kpurgevkqp!vq!gpuwtg!vjcv!kv!oggvu!vjg!okpkowo!
uvcpfctfu!hqt!crrtqxcn/!Vjg!dtqejwtg!C!Iqqf!Rnceg!vq!Nkxg!eqpvckpu!c!fgvckngf!uwooct{!
qh!JSU!tgswktgogpvu!cpf!ku!fgukipgf!cu!c!�rcuu!cnqpi�!vq!{qwt!enkgpvu!cpf!rtqurgevkxg!
rtqrgtv{!qypgtu/!!
!
Uqog!JSU!uvcpfctfu!ctg<!!

"! Cv!vjg!kpkvkcn!kpurgevkqp-!cnn!wpkvu!owuv!jcxg!cp!qrgtcdng!tghtkigtcvqt!cpf!uvqxg/!Kh!
vjg!tghtkigtcvqt!cpf0qt!uvqxg!ku!pqv!rtgugpv!cv!vjg!kpurgevkqp-!dwv!cnn!qvjgt!hcegvu!qh!
vjg!wpkv!rcuugf!vjg!kpurgevkqp-!vjg!kpurgevkqp!yqwnf!dg!octmgf!�Kpeqpenwukxg/�!!Kh!
{qwt!enkgpv!yknn!dg!tgurqpukdng!hqt!rtqxkfkpi!vjgug!crrnkcpegu-!{qwt!enkgpv!oc{!dg!
cdng!vq!ugnh.egtvkh{!vjcv!vjg{!yknn!rtqxkfg!vjg!okuukpi!crrnkcpeg)u*!d{!vjgkt!pgzv!JSU!
kpurgevkqp/!Qpeg!eqphktogf! vjcv! vjg!crrnkcpeg)u*!ctg! kp! vjg!wpkv-! vjg! kpurgevkqp!
uvcvwu!yqwnf!dg!wrfcvgf!vq!�Rcuu/�!!!!

"! Wpkv!owuv!dg!uvtwevwtcnn{!uqwpf!cpf!uchg/!

"! Ykpfqyu!vjcv!qrgp!owuv!enqug!cpf!nqem!rtqrgtn{-! kpenwfkpi!ugewtkv{!dct!tgngcug!
ogejcpkuou/!

"! Gzvgtkqt!fqqtu!owuv!nqem!rtqrgtn{!)pq!fqwdng!mg{!fgcfdqnvu*!cpf!dg!uqnkf!eqtg!cpf!
ygcvjgt!vkijv!vq!ykpf!cpf!tckp/!



27!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

"! Jgcvkpi!u{uvgou!owuv!dg!qrgtcdng-!uchg-!cpf!rtqrgtn{!xgpvgf/!!Vjg!jgcvgt!rknqv!
owuv!dg!qp-!qt!c! ewttgpv!Icu!Eqorcp{! vci!uvcvkpi! vjcv! vjg!jgcvgt! ku! uchg!cpf!
qrgtcdng!owuv!dg!rtqxkfgf/!!Cp{!rtgugpv!vjgtoquvcvu!owuv!dg!qrgtcdng/!

"! Vjg!ictcig!owuv!dg!ceeguukdng-!yjgvjgt!cvvcejgf!qt!fgvcejgf=!ictcigu!ctg!pqv!vq!
dg!wugf!cu!c!nkxkpi!urceg/!

"! Uykookpi!rqqnu!kp!ownvkhcokn{!uvtwevwtgu!owuv!dg!gpenqugf!d{!c!icvg!vjcv!ku!59!vq!
71! kpejgu! vcnn/! ! Vjg! icvg! owuv! dg! ugnh.enqukpi! ykvj! c! ugnh.enqukpi! ncvej! cpf! c!
rtqvgevgf!rcpgn!owuv!uwttqwpf!vjg!ncvej/!

"! Vjg! jqv! ycvgt! jgcvgt! owuv! dg! qrgtcdng-! ceeguukdng-! rtqrgtn{! xgpvkncvgf! cpf!
ugewtgf!hqt!ugkuoke!uvcdknkv{/!!Kv!owuv!cnuq!jcxg!gkvjgt!c!vgorgtcvwtg.rtguuwtg!tgnkgh!
xcnxg!qt!c!rtguuwtg!tgnkgh!xcnxg/!!Gkvjgt!v{rg!qh!xcnxg!owuv!cnuq!jcxg!c!ftckprkrg!
hcekpi!fqypyctf!cpf!gpfkpi!pq!oqtg!vjcp!ukz!kpejgu!cdqxg!vjg!hnqqt/!!Kv!owuv!pqv!
dg!nqecvgf!pgct!eqodwuvkdngu/!!Kh!c!icu!jqv!ycvgt!jgcvgt!ku!kp!dgftqqou!qt!qvjgt!
nkxkpi!ctgcu-!c!uchgv{!fkxkfgt!qt!ujkgnf!owuv!dg!kpuvcnngf/!

!
Eqttgevkpi!Fghkekgpekgu!Fkueqxgtgf!kp!Kpkvkcn!Kpurgevkqpu!
Rtkqt!vq!oqxg!kp-!kv!ku!vjg!rtqrgtv{!qypgt�u!tgurqpukdknkv{!vq!eqttgev!cnn!fghkekgpekgu!pqvgf/!
!

C!hqnnqy.wr!kpurgevkqp!ku!uejgfwngf!vq!gzcokpg!vjg!eqttgevkqp/!!C!oczkowo!qh!vjtgg!)4*!!
kpurgevkqpu!vq!eqttgev!fghkekgpekgu!ctg!cnnqygf=!kh!vjg!fghkekgpekgu!ctg!pqv!eqttgevgf!vjg!
TVC!yknn!dg!ecpegngf/!
!
Qpeg!kpurgevkqp!jcu!rcuugf-!vjg!qypgt!cpf!vgpcpv!citgg!qp!c!oqxg!kp!fcvg!cpf!ukip!c!
ngcug/!C!eqr{!qh!vjg!ngcug!owuv!dg!rtqxkfgf!vq!vjg!NCEFC/!
!

Cppwcn!Kpurgevkqpu!
Cp!cppwcn!kpurgevkqp!yknn!dg!eqpfwevgf!qpeg!c!{gct!vjtqwijqwv!vjg!nkhg!qh!vjg!eqpvtcev/!
Vgpcpvu!cpf!rtqrgtv{!qypgtu!ujqwnf!tgiwnctn{!cuuguu!vjg!eqpfkvkqp!qh!vjg!wpkv!dghqtg!cp{!
uejgfwngf! kpurgevkqpu! vq! kfgpvkh{!cpf!eqttgev!cp{!fghkekgpekgu/!Fwtkpi!gcej!cppwcn! tg.
kpurgevkqp-!cnn!tgswktgf!crrnkcpegu!owuv!dg!rtgugpv!cpf!qrgtcdng/!
!!
Eqttgevkpi!Fghkekgpekgu!Fkueqxgtgf!kp!Cppwcn!Kpurgevkqpu!
Yjgp! fghkekgpekgu! ctg! fkueqxgtgf! kp! vjg! cppwcn! kpurgevkqp-! c! hqnnqy.wr! kpurgevkqp! ku!
uejgfwngf!vq!qeewt!)wuwcnn{!32.39!fc{u!ncvgt*!cpf!vjg!fghkekgpekgu!owuv!dg!eqttgevgf!d{!
vjcv!vkog/!!Vjg!kpurgevkqp!tgeqtf!yknn!kfgpvkh{!yjgvjgt!vjg!vgpcpv-!vjg!rtqrgtv{!qypgt-!qt!
dqvj!rctvkgu!ctg!tgurqpukdng!vq!eqttgev!vjg!fghkekgpekgu/!!
!

Kh! fghkekgpekgu! ctg! pqv! eqttgevgf! d{! vjg! hqnnqy.wr! kpurgevkqp-! vjg! hqnnqykpi! yknn!
qeewt<!

"! Kh!vjgtg!ctg!rtqrgtv{!qypgt!fghkekgpekgu!vjcv!jcxg!pqv!dggp!eqttgevgf-!JCR!yknn!dg!
cdcvgf=!c!rtqrqucn!vq!vgtokpcvg!vjg!JCR!eqpvtcev!yknn!qeewt!cpf-!kh!vjgtg!ctg!qpn{!
rtqrgtv{!qypgt!fghkekgpekgu-!vjg!vgpcpv!yknn!dg!tgkuuwgf!c!egtvkhkecvg!vq!oqxg/!

"! Kh!vjgtg!ctg!vgpcpv!fghkekgpekgu-!c!rtqrqucn!vq!vgtokpcvg!vjg!vgpcpv�u!rctvkekrcvkqp!kp!
vjg!rtqitco!yknn!qeewt/!!Vjg!vgpcpv!ecp!cnuq!tgswguv!c!jgctkpi!d{!c!urgekhke!fcvg/!



28!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

"! C! vjktf! kpurgevkqp! yknn! dg! uejgfwngf-! cpf! vjku! kpurgevkqp! ku! igpgtcnn{! vjg! hkpcn!
kpurgevkqp/!

!
Kh!fghkekgpekgu!ctg!pqv!eqttgevgf!d{!vjg!hkpcn!kpurgevkqp-!vjg!hqnnqykpi!yknn!qeewt<!

"! Kh! vjgtg!ctg!rtqrgtv{!qypgt!fghkekgpekgu! vjcv!jcxg!pqv!dggp!eqttgevgf-! vjg!JCR!
eqpvtcev!yknn!dg!vgtokpcvgf!cpf-!kh!vjgtg!ctg!qpn{!rtqrgtv{!qypgt!fghkekgpekgu-!vjg!
vgpcpv! yknn! jcxg! vjg! tkijv! vq! oqxg! ykvj! vjg! egtvkhkecvg! vjcv! jcu! dggp! kuuwgf! vq!
jko0jgt/!

"! Kh!vjgtg!ctg!vgpcpv!fghkekgpekgu-!vjg!vgpcpv�u!rctvkekrcvkqp!yknn!dg!vgtokpcvgf-!wpnguu!
c!tgswguv!hqt!c!jgctkpi!ycu!tgegkxgf!d{!vjg!NCEFC!vkogn{/!!Kh!c!jgctkpi!tgswguv!
ycu!tgegkxgf!htqo!vjg!vgpcpv!vkogn{-!c!jgctkpi!yknn!dg!eqpfwevgf-!cpf!vjg!jgctkpi!
qhhkegt!yknn!ocmg!c!fgvgtokpcvkqp!tgictfkpi!vjg!vgpcpv�u!eqpvkpwgf!rctvkekrcvkqp!qp!
vjg!rtqitco/!

!
Hqtou0Pqvkegu!Rgtvckpkpi!vq!Vjku!Ugevkqp<!

"! Kpuvtwevkqpu!vq!Egtvkhkecvg!Jqnfgtu!

"! C!Iqqf!Rnceg!vq!Nkxg!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!



29!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

UGEVKQP!X<!!TGRQTVKPI!TGSWKTGOGPVU!

Vjg! hqnnqykpi! qwvnkpgu! vjg! rtqitco! tgswktgogpvu! vjcv! owuv! dg! cfjgtgf! vq! tgockp! kp!
eqornkcpeg!ykvj!vjg!EqE!FgfkecvgfRNWU!Rtqitco/!!!
!
EQPVTCEVQT�U!TGURQPUKDKNKVKGU!

Eqpvtcevqt(u! tgurqpukdknkvkgu!ctg!fgvckngf! kp! vjg!NCEFC0Urqpuqt!Cigpe{!EqE!Rtqitco!
Citggogpv!yjkej!ku!gzgewvgf!cppwcnn{/!!Gcej!urqpuqt!cigpe{!owuv!tgxkgy!kvu!Citggogpv!
vq! dgeqog! hcoknkct! ykvj! kvu! eqpvtcevwcn! qdnkicvkqpu-! rctvkewnctn{! rc{kpi! cvvgpvkqp! vq! vjg!
hqnnqykpi!ugevkqpu<!!!!
!

UGEVKQP!! ! ! VKVNG!

UGEVKQP!2!!!!!! ! FGHKPKVKQPU!
UGEVKQP!3!!!!! ! UGTXKEGU!CPF!FWVKGU!
UGEVKQP!4!!!!! ! EQORGPUCVKQP!
UGEVKQP!6!!!!! ! VGTO!
UGEVKQP!24!!! !!!!!!!!!!!KPUWTCPEG!
UGEVKQP!2;!!!! ! HQTOU!CPF!TGRQTVU!
UGEVKQP!32!!!!!!!!!!!!! RCTVKEKRCPV!OCUVGT!HKNG!
UGEVKQP!35!!!! ! CWVJQTKV[�U!SWCNKV[!CUUWTCPEG!RNCP!
UGEVKQP!53!!!! ! EQPHNKEV!QH!KPVGTGUV!
CVVCEJOGPV!K!! ! KPUWTCPEG!TGSWKTGOGPVU!
CVVCEJOGPV!KK!! ! UVCVGOGPV!QH!YQTM!
CVVCEJOGPV!KKK!! ! HGG!UEJGFWNG!
CVVCEJOGPV!KX!! ! EQPVTCEV!HQTOU!
!
EQPVTCEV!OQPKVQTKPI!
!
C/! OQPKVQTKPI!RTQEGUU!

Cp!qpnkpg!oqpkvqtkpi!tgxkgy!yknn!dg!eqpfwevgf!qp!cp!cppwcn!dcuku!hqt!gcej!urqpuqt!cigpe{!
vjcv! rtqxkfgu! eqpvtcevwcnn{! qdnkicvgf! uwrrqtvkxg! ugtxkegu! vq! vjg! EqE!itcpvu/! Vjg! urqpuqt!
cigpe{! yknn! wvknk|g! c! pgy! NCEFC! EDQ! Oqpkvqtkpi! Rqtvcn! vjcv! yknn! tgrnceg! qpukvg! EqE!
oqpkvqtkpi!xkukvu!uvctvkpi!kp!3132/!Vjg!hqnnqykpi!fguetkdgu!vjg!oqpkvqtkpi!rtqeguu!ngcfkpi!wr!
vq!vjg!fcvg!qh!tgxkgy<!

"! C!uejgfwnkpi!ngvvgt!ugpv!xkc!gockn!fgvcknkpi!vjg!fcvg0vkog!qh!vjg!qpnkpg!tgxkgy!yknn!dg!
ockngf! vq! vjg! urqpuqt! cigpe{! cv! ngcuv! 41.fc{u! rtkqt! vq! vjg! uejgfwngf! tgxkgy/!
Cffkvkqpcnn{-!cp!gockn!yknn!dg!ugpv!ykvj!c!Oketquqhv!Vgcou!eqphgtgpeg!ecnn!kpxkvcvkqp!vq!
dg!wugf!qp!vjg!uejgfwngf!fcvg!qh!oqpkvqtkpi/!!

"! Qpg!yggm!rtkqt! vq! vjg!qpnkpg! tgxkgy-!cp!gockn!yknn! dg!ugpv! vq! vjg!urqpuqt!cigpe{!
tgswguvkpi! vjg! Swctvgtn{! Ocvej! Hwpfu! Vtcemkpi! Tgrqtv! hqt! gcej! swctvgt! qh! vjg!
qrgtcvkpi!{gct/!Vjku!cnnqyu!vjg!oqpkvqtkpi!cpcn{uv!cp!qrrqtvwpkv{!vq!cuuguu!vjg!tgrqtv!



2;!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

rtkqt!vq!vjg!uejgfwngf!tgxkgy!cpf!fkuewuu!cp{!swguvkqpu!qt!eqpegtpu!tgictfkpi!ugtxkeg!
ocvej!fwtkpi!vjg!oqpkvqtkpi!tgxkgy/!

"! Ugxgpv{.vyq!jqwtu!rtkqt!vq!vjg!qpnkpg!tgxkgy-!cp!gockn!pqvkhkecvkqp!yknn!dg!ugpv!vq!vjg!
urqpuqt!cigpe{!eqphktokpi!vjg!fcvg0vkog!qh!vjg!oqpkvqtkpi!tgxkgy-!vjg!kvgou!vjcv!yknn!
dg!tgswktgf!hqt!wrnqcf!vq!vjg!qpnkpg!oqpkvqtkpi!ygdrcig-!cpf!vjg!enkgpv!hkngu!vjcv!ygtg!
ugngevgf!vq!dg!tgxkgygf/!Rngcug!dg!uwtg!vq!wrnqcf!cnn!fqewogpvu!dghqtg!vjg!uejgfwngf!
eqphgtgpeg!ecnn!qp!vjg!cuukipgf!oqpkvqtkpi!fcvg/!

Fc{!qh!Oqpkvqtkpi<!

"! Cp!gpvtcpeg!eqphgtgpeg!ecnn-!xkc!Oketquqhv!Vgcou-!yknn!dg!jgnf!vq!gzrnckp!vjg!
qpnkpg!oqpkvqtkpi!tgxkgy!rtqegfwtgu/!

"! Chvgt!vjg!gpvtcpeg!eqphgtgpeg!ecnn-!vjg!urqpuqt!cigpe{!yknn!dg!qp!uvcpfd{!hqt!
vjg! tgockpfgt! qh! vjg! fc{! cu! vjg! oqpkvqtkpi! cpcn{uv! tgxkgyu! vjg! tgswktgf!
fqewogpvu! vjcv! ygtg! wrnqcfgf! htqo! gcej! ugngevgf! enkgpv! hkng! vq! gpuwtg! vjg!
dgnqy! fqewogpvcvkqp! ku! eqorngvg! cpf! rtgugpv! kp! vjg! hkng/! Kh! cp{! kvgou! ctg!
okuukpi-!kpeqorngvg-!qt!eqpvckp!gttqtu-!vjg!urqpuqt!cigpe{!owuv!dg!rtgrctgf!
vq!rtqxkfg! vjg! eqttgev! eqrkgu! qt! uwrrngogpvcn! fqewogpvcvkqp! uwej!cu! ecug!
pqvgu-!gocknu-!cpf!ngvvgtu!vq!uwrrqtv!vjg!fqewogpvcvkqp/!

"! C!ucog!fc{!gzkv!eqphgtgpeg!ecnn-!xkc!Oketquqhv!Vgcou-!yknn!dg!jgnf!vq!tgeqipk|g!
ctgcu!qh! uvtqpi!rgthqtocpeg-!fkuewuu!cp{!rtqdngocvke!ctgcu-!cpf!cnnqy! vjg!
urqpuqt!cigpe{!cp!qrrqtvwpkv{!vq!tgurqpf!vq!cp{!hkpfkpiu!htqo!vjg!fqewogpv!
wrnqcf!tgxkgy/!

"! Vjg!urqpuqt!cigpe{!yknn!tgegkxg!c!oqpkvqtkpi!tgxkgy!tguwnv!ngvvgt-!xkc!gockn-!41!
fc{u!chvgt!vjg!qpnkpg!oqpkvqtkpi!tgxkgy/!

D/! TGRQTVKPI!TGSWKTGOGPVU!

Vjg!hqnnqykpi!ctg!tgrqtvkpi!tgswktgogpvu!fwg!vq!vjg!NCEFC!qpeg!vjg!enkgpv!tgegkxgu!c!
EqE!egtvkhkecvg/!

!
2/! Cppwcn!Pggfu!Cuuguuogpv!

Cp! Cppwcn! Pggfu! Cuuguuogpv! )CPC*! hqto! owuv! dg! uwdokvvgf! hqt! gcej! EqE!
rctvkekrcpv-!gcej!qrgtcvkpi!{gct-!chvgt!vjg!enkgpv!jcu!dggp!jqwugf!hqt!c!hwnn!{gct/!
Eqpvkpwqwu!jqwukpi!pggfu!cuuguuogpvu!owuv!dg!eqpfwevgf!hqt!ugtxkeg!rtqxkfgtu!
vq! gpuwtg! vjcv! crrtqrtkcvg! cuukuvcpeg! )jqwukpi! cuukuvcpeg! cpf! uwrrqtvkxg!
ugtxkegu*! ctg! dgkpi! qhhgtgf! cpf0qt! tgpfgtgf! vq! kvu! vctigv! rqrwncvkqp/! ! Pggfu!
cuuguuogpvu!ctg!vq!gpuwtg!vjcv!2*!cfgswcvg!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!)k/g/-!etgfkv!tgrckt!
eqwtugu-!ogpvcn!jgcnvj!eqwpugnkpi-!gve/*!ctg!ocfg!cxckncdng!vq!gcej!enkgpv=!3*!vjg!
enkgpv�u! pggfu! ctg! )tg*gxcnwcvgf! kp! qtfgt! vq! cfgswcvgn{! tgeqoogpf! uwrrqtvkxg!
ugtxkegu=! cpf! 4*! enkgpvu! ockpvckp! rtqitco! eqornkcpeg! cpf! tgvckp! rgtocpgpv!



31!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

jqwukpi/!Rngcug!dg!uwtg!vjcv!gcej!hqto!ku!ukipgf!cpf!fcvgf!fwtkpi!vjg!qrgtcvkpi!
rgtkqf/!

3/! Swctvgtn{!Ocvej!Hwpfu!Vtcemkpi!Tgrqtv!!
C!Swctvgtn{!Ocvej!Hwpfu!Vtcemkpi!Tgrqtv!owuv!dg!uwdokvvgf!hqt!gcej!itcpv-!qp!cp!
Cppwcn!Rgthqtocpeg!Tgrqtv!)CRT*!swctvgt!dcuku/!Vjg!tgrqtv!ujcnn!dg!uwdokvvgf!vq!
vjg!NCEFC!d{!vjg!26vj!qh!vjg!oqpvj!hqnnqykpi!gcej!swctvgtn{!tgrqtvkpi!rgtkqf/!!!

!
4/! Cppwcn!Rgthqtocpeg!Tgrqtv!!

Vjg!CRT!owuv!dg!uwdokvvgf!vq!vjg!NCEFC!hqt!gcej!itcpv!ykvjkp!41!fc{u!chvgt!vjg!
qrgtcvkpi!{gct!ku!qxgt/!
!
++!CRT!ucorng!hqtou!ctg!cvvcejgf!cu!cp!gzjkdkv/!
!

5/! Kpuwtcpeg!!
Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Kpuwtcpeg!eqxgtcig!owuv!dg!uwdokvvgf!vq!vjg!NCEFC!gcej!vkog!vjg!
kpuwtcpeg! rqnke{! ku! tgpgygf! fwtkpi! vjg! cppwcn! Urqpuqt! Cigpe{! EqE! Rtqitco!
Citggogpv! tgpgycn/! Hqt! urgekhke! iwkfcpeg! qp! eqxgtcig! tgswktgogpvu-! rngcug!
eqpvcev!Ucpfgt!Uejokfv-!Cfokpkuvtcvkxg!Cpcn{uv-!cv!Ucpfgt/UejokfvBncefc/qti/!
!

6/!!Tghgttcnu!cpf!Ngcug.Wr!

Enkgpv!crrnkecvkqp0tghgttcnu!owuv!dg!uwdokvvgf!rtqorvn{!cpf!qp!c!eqpvkpwqwu!dcuku-!
tguwnvkpi!kp!61&!qh!vjg!vqvcn!cnnqecvkqpu!ykvjkp!ukz!oqpvju!qh!eqpvtcev!gzgewvkqp!cpf!
211&!qh!vjg!cnnqecvkqp!ykvjkp!23!oqpvju!htqo!gzgewvkqp!qh!vjg!NCEFC�u!Urqpuqt!
Cigpe{!EqE!Rtqitco!Citggogpv/!

Vjg!tghgttcn!cpf!ngcug.wr!tgswktgogpv!yknn!dg!oqpkvqtgf!vjtqwijqwv!vjg!{gct!cpf!
yknn!dg!kpenwfgf!ykvj!vjg!tguwnvu!qh!vjg!qpukvg!oqpkvqtkpi!tgxkgy/!Hcknwtg!vq!tgcej!
211&!ngcug.wr!kp!c!vkogn{!ocppgt!ku!uwdlgev!vq!fg.qdnkicvkqp!qh!hwpfu!d{!JWF!cu!
uvkrwncvgf!kp!35!EHT!©689/96/!

!
E/! SWCNKV[!CUUWTCPEG0OQPKVQTKPI!TGSWKTGOGPVU!

!

Vjtqwij!fkikvcn!hknkpi-!cnn!NCEFC!tgswktgf!tgeqtfu!ujcnn!dg!mgrv!cpf!ocfg!cxckncdng!
hqt!gzcokpcvkqp/!

!

2/! Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Jqognguupguu!

"! [qwt! cigpe{! owuv! gpuwtg! vjcv! vjg! ejtqpke! jqognguu! rqrwncvkqp! ugtxgf! ku!
cfgswcvgn{!fqewogpvgf!cpf!tgrqtvgf!vq!vjg!NCEFC!xkc!vjg!CRT/!
!

"! Vjku!fqewogpvcvkqp!ku!pq!nqpigt!pggfgf!hqt!vjg!cppwcn!oqpkvqtkpi!xkukv/!Jqygxgt-!
kv! ku! uvknn! vjg! tgurqpukdknkv{!qh! vjg!urqpuqt!cigpe{! vq!ockpvckp! vjg!Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!
Jqognguu!fqewogpvcvkqp!wugf!hqt!gcej!enkgpv�u!crrtqxgf!EqE!crrnkecvkqp!vq!dg!
cxckncdng!wrqp!tgswguv/!Kv!ku!jkijn{!tgeqoogpfgf!vq!mggr!vjku!hqto!hnciigf!hqt!gcug!
qh!ceeguu/!



32!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

"! Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!jqognguupguu!ujcnn!dg!ockpvckpgf!kp!gcej!rctvkekrcpv�u!ocuvgt!
hkng!cu!gxkfgpeg!vjcv!{qwt!cigpe{!cfokpkuvgtu!tgpvcn!cuukuvcpeg!vq!qpn{!gnkikdng!
rctvkekrcpvu/! Hqt! enkgpvu! cfokvvgf! dghqtg! Hgdtwct{! 312;-! fqewogpvcvkqp! qh!
Jqognguupguu!eqpukuvu!qh!vjg!crrtqrtkcvg!xgtkh{kpi!fqewogpvu!cu!qwvnkpgf!kp!
vjg! NCEFC�u! rtgxkqwu! Jqwukpi! Cwvjqtkv{! qh! vjg! Eqwpv{! qh! Nqu! Cpigngu!
)JCEqNC*!Jqognguu!Eqpfkvkqp!Egtvkhkecvkqp!hqto!)k/g/-!vjktf!rctv{!ngvvgt!htqo!cp!
gogtigpe{! ujgnvgt-! qt! vtcpukvkqpcn! rncegogpv-! oqvgn! tgegkrvu-! rkevwtgu! qh!
rgtuqpu! nkxkpi! kp! c! rnceg! pqv! ogcpv! hqt! jwocp! jcdkvcvkqp-! gve/*/! Hqt! enkgpvu!
cfokvvgf! chvgt! Hgdtwct{! 312;-! fqewogpvcvkqp! qh! Jqognguupguu! eqpukuvu! qh!
NCJUC�u! FgfkecvgfRNWU! Jqognguu! Xgtkhkecvkqp! hqtou! )Jqognguu! Jkuvqt{-!
Jqognguu!Xgtkhkecvkqp-!cpf!Fwg!Fknkigpeg!hqtou*!
!

"! Vjg! rgtuqpu! vq! dg! ugtxgf! kp! vjku! rtqitco! ujcnn! dg! jctf.vq.ugtxg! jqognguu!
Hcoknkgu! ykvj! fkucdknkvkgu-! cu! fghkpgf! d{! vjg! EqE! Rtqitco! Tgiwncvkqpu! cv!
35EHT! Rctv! 693/6! cpf! qwvnkpgf! kp! Ugevkqp! 2<! Rtgrctkpi! Crrnkecvkqpu! hqt!
Uwdokuukqp-!qh!vjku!jcpfdqqm/!!!

!
3/! Kpvcmg!!

"! Vjku!fqewogpvcvkqp!ku!pq!nqpigt!pggfgf!hqt!vjg!cppwcn!oqpkvqtkpi!xkukv/!Jqygxgt-!
kv!ku!uvknn!vjg!tgurqpukdknkv{!qh!vjg!urqpuqt!cigpe{!vq!ockpvckp!vjg!Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Kpkvkcn!
Kpvcmg! fqewogpvcvkqp! wugf! hqt! gcej! enkgpv�u! crrtqxgf! EqE! crrnkecvkqp! vq! dg!
cxckncdng!wrqp!tgswguv/!

"! C! Jqwukpi! Kpvcmg!Cuuguuogpv! hqto!owuv! dg! eqorngvgf! hqt! gcej!rctvkekrcpv!
rtkqt!vq!dgkpi!cfokvvgf!qpvq!vjg!EqE!Rtqitco/!!Vjg!kpvcmg!hqto!yknn!fqewogpv!
yjgp!vjg!enkgpv!jcu!ogv!vjg!gnkikdknkv{!etkvgtkc!tgictfkpi!hcokn{!uvcvwu!tgukfgpe{!
)k/g/!jqognguu*-!fkucdknkv{-!cpf!kpeqog/!!Vjg!Jqwukpi!Kpvcmg!Cuuguuogpv!owuv!
kfgpvkh{! vjg! dcttkgtu! vjcv! jcxg! ecwugf! cpf0qt! rgtrgvwcvgf! vjg! enkgpv�u!
jqognguupguu!cpf!yjkej!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu-!kh!cp{-!yqwnf!gpcdng!c!uoqqvj!
vtcpukvkqp!kpvq!rgtocpgpv!jqwukpi/!

!
4/! Cppwcn!Pggfu!Cuuguuogpv!)CPC*!

!
Cp!CPC!hqto!owuv!dg!uwdokvvgf!hqt!gcej!EqE!rctvkekrcpv-!qp!cp!qrgtcvkpi!{gct!dcuku-!
chvgt! vjg! enkgpv! jcu! dggp! jqwugf! hqt! c! hwnn! {gct/! Eqpvkpwqwu! jqwukpi! pggfu!
cuuguuogpvu! owuv! dg! eqpfwevgf! hqt! ugtxkeg! rtqxkfgtu! vq! gpuwtg! vjcv! crrtqrtkcvg!
cuukuvcpeg! )jqwukpi! cuukuvcpeg! cpf! uwrrqtvkxg! ugtxkegu*! ctg! dgkpi! qhhgtgf! cpf0qt!
tgpfgtgf!vq!kvu!vctigv!rqrwncvkqp/!CPC!hqtou!ctg!vq!gpuwtg!vjcv<!cfgswcvg!uwrrqtvkxg!
ugtxkegu!)k/g/-!etgfkv!tgrckt!eqwtugu-!ogpvcn!jgcnvj!eqwpugnkpi-!gve/*!ctg!ocfg!cxckncdng!
vq!gcej!enkgpv=!vjg!enkgpv�u!pggfu!ctg!)tg*gxcnwcvgf!kp!qtfgt!vq!cfgswcvgn{!tgeqoogpf!
uwrrqtvkxg! ugtxkegu-! kh! cp{-! ecp! cuukuv! vjg! enkgpv! ykvj! vjgkt! fkucdknkv{)kgu*=! cpf! vjg{!
ockpvckp!Rtqitco!eqornkcpeg!cpf!tgvckp!rgtocpgpv!jqwukpi/!Rngcug!gpuwtg!vjcv!gcej!
CPC!hqto!ku!ukipgf!cpf!fcvgf!fwtkpi!vjg!qrgtcvkpi!rgtkqf/!
!
!



33!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

5/!Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{!!

"! Vjku! fqewogpvcvkqp! ku! pq! nqpigt! pggfgf! hqt! vjg! cppwcn! oqpkvqtkpi! xkukv/!
Jqygxgt-! kv! ku! uvknn! vjg! tgurqpukdknkv{! qh! vjg! urqpuqt! cigpe{! vq! ockpvckp! vjg!
Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{! hqto!fqewogpvcvkqp!wugf!hqt!gcej!enkgpv�u!crrtqxgf!
EqE!crrnkecvkqp!vq!dg!cxckncdng!wrqp!tgswguv/!
!

"! Fkucdknkv{!xgtkhkecvkqp!ujcnn!dg!ockpvckpgf! kp!gcej!enkgpv! hkng!cu!gxkfgpeg! vjcv!

tgpvcn!cuukuvcpeg!ku!dgkpi!rtqxkfgf!vq!gnkikdng!rctvkekrcpvu/!!

!

Ytkvvgp!Xgtkhkecvkqp!!

"! Ytkvvgp!xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!vjg!fkucdknkv{!htqo!c!rtqhguukqpcn-!nkegpugf!d{!vjg!Uvcvg!vq!

fkcipqug!cpf!vtgcv!vjg!fkucdknkv{-!cpf!jku!qt!jgt!egtvkhkecvkqp!vjcv!vjg!fkucdknkv{!ku!

gzrgevgf! vq! dg! nqpi.eqpvkpwkpi! qt! qh! kpfghkpkvg! fwtcvkqp! cpf! uwduvcpvkcnn{!

korgfgu! vjg! kpfkxkfwcn�u! cdknkv{! vq! nkxg! kpfgrgpfgpvn{/! Enkgpvu! cfokvvgf! chvgt!

Lcpwct{!312;!owuv!wug!vjg!wpkxgtucn!Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{! hqto!vq!ucvkuh{!

vjg!ytkvvgp!xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!fkucdknkv{!tgswktgogpvu/!

!

"! Hqt!enkgpvu!cfokvvgf!dghqtg!Hgdtwct{!312;-!vjg!NCEFC�u!JCEqNC!Egtvkhkecvg!

qh!Fkucdknkv{!hqto!owuv!dg!eqorngvgf!d{!c!nkegpugf!rtqhguukqpcn!cpf!kpenwfg!vjg!

rtqhguukqpcn�u! nkegpug!pwodgt!cpf!ukipcvwtgu!qh!dqvj! vjg!rctvkekrcpv!cpf! vjg!

rtqhguukqpcn/! Hqt! enkgpvu! cfokvvgf! chvgt! Hgdtwct{! 312;-! vjg! NCJUC!

FgfkecvgfRNWU!Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{!owuv!dg!wugf/!

!

"! Yjgp!cp!kpfkxkfwcn�u!qt!Jgcf!qh!Jqwugjqnf�u!swcnkh{kpi!fkucdknkv{!ku!JKX0CKFU-!

vjg!qpn{!fqewogpvcvkqp! tgswktgf! ku!c!ytkvvgp! xgtkhkecvkqp! htqo!c!rtqhguukqpcn!

nkegpugf!d{!vjg!Uvcvg!vq!fkcipqug!cpf!vtgcv!JKX0CKFU/!C!egtvkhkecvkqp!vjcv!vjg!

eqpfkvkqp!ku!gzrgevgf!vq!dg!qh!nqpi.eqpvkpwkpi!qt!kpfghkpkvg!fwtcvkqp!cpf!vjcv!kv!

uwduvcpvkcnn{! korgfgu! vjg! kpfkxkfwcn(u! cdknkv{! vq! nkxg! kpfgrgpfgpvn{! ku! pqv!

tgswktgf/!

!
Rngcug!pqvg!vjcv!vjg!hqnnqykpi!kvgou!oc{!ugtxg!cu!ceegrvcdng!gxkfgpeg!qh!vjg!
enkgpv�u!fkucdknkv{!kp!nkgw!qh!vjg!Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{!hqto<!

!

"! Ytkvvgp!xgtkhkecvkqp!htqo!vjg!Uqekcn!Ugewtkv{!Cfokpkuvtcvkqp!)g/i/-!UUFK!ngvvgt!qh!

cyctf*!vjcv!pcogu!vjg!Jgcf!qh!Jqwugjqnf!cu!vjg!rgtuqp!ykvj!vjg!fkucdknkv{=!qt!

"! Gxkfgpeg! qh! vjg! tgegkrv! qh! c! fkucdknkv{! ejgem! )g/i/-! Uqekcn!Ugewtkv{! Fkucdknkv{!

Kpuwtcpeg! ejgem! qt! Xgvgtcp! Fkucdknkv{! Eqorgpucvkqp*! ykvj! vjg! Jgcf! qh!

Jqwugjqnf!engctn{!kfgpvkhkgf!cu!vjg!kpfkxkfwcn!ykvj!vjg!fkucdknkv{=!qt!



34!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

"! !Kpvcmg!uvchh.tgeqtfgf!qdugtxcvkqp!qh!fkucdknkv{-!yjkej!owuv!dg!uwrrqtvgf!ykvj!

qpg!qh!vjg!ceegrvcdng!hqtou!qh!gxkfgpeg!pqvgf!cdqxg!ykvjkp!56!fc{u!hqnnqykpi!

Rtqitco!kpvcmg=!qt!!

"! Qvjgt!fqewogpvcvkqp!crrtqxgf!d{!JWF/!

Rngcug!pqvg!vjcv!qtcn.vjktf!rctv{!cpf!ugnh.egtvkhkecvkqp!ku!PQV!cp!crrtqrtkcvg!

hqto!qh!fkucdknkv{!xgtkhkecvkqp/!

6/!Uwrrqtvkxg!Ugtxkegu!Ocvej!
Fqewogpvcvkqp! qh! ocvejkpi! hwpfu! tgswktgu! vtcemkpi! vjg! xcnwg! qh! uwrrqtvkxg!
ugtxkegu!cpf!owuv!knnwuvtcvg!pq!nguu!vjcp!c!36&!hkpcpekcn!ocvej!vq!vjg!gpvktg!itcpv!
coqwpv!cyctfgf!wpfgt!vjg!EqE!Rtqitco/!Vjku!36&!ocvej!coqwpv!ecp!dg!hqwpf!
kp!gcej!itcpv�u!Urqpuqt!Cigpe{!EqE!Rtqitco!Citggogpv!wpfgt!vjg!Uvcvgogpv!qh!
Yqtm�u!Ugevkqp!D-!Rctv! 7/!Vjg!ocvej! ku! vq!dg! vtcemgf!d{!wvknk|kpi! vjg!Swctvgtn{!
Ocvej! Hwpfu! Vtcemkpi! Tgrqtv! rtqxkfgf! d{! vjg! NCEFC/! ! Vjg! tgrqtv! owuv! dg!
egtvkhkgf!d{!c!urqpuqt!uvchh!ukipcvwtg!cpf!uwdokvvgf!vq!vjg!NCEFC!ceeqtfkpi!vq!vjg!
eqttgurqpfkpi!swctvgt!qh!vjcv!qrgtcvkpi!{gct/!
!

Vjg!tgeqtfu!owuv!kpfkecvg!vjg!uqwteg!cpf!wug!qh!eqpvtkdwvkqpu!ocfg!vq!ucvkuh{!vjg!
ocvej!tgswktgogpv/!Vjg!tgeqtfu!owuv!ujqy!jqy!vjg!xcnwg!rncegf!qp!vjktf.rctv{!
kp.mkpf!eqpvtkdwvkqpu!ycu!fgtkxgf/!!Vq!vjg!gzvgpv!hgcukdng-!xqnwpvggt!ugtxkegu!owuv!
dg! uwrrqtvgf! d{! vjg! ucog! ogvjqfu! vjcv! vjg! qticpk|cvkqp! wugu! vq! uwrrqtv! vjg!
cnnqecvkqp!qh!tgiwnct!rgtuqppgn!equvu/!
!

Vjg!hqnnqykpi!oc{!dg!eqwpvgf!vqyctfu!oggvkpi!vjg!ocvej!tgswktgogpv<!

"! Vjg!xcnwg!qh!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!rtqxkfgf!d{!vjktf.rctv{!qticpk|cvkqpu/!!

"! Vjg!xcnwg!qh!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!rtqxkfgf!d{!rtqhguukqpcnu!xqnwpvggtkpi!vjgkt!
rtqhguukqpcn!ugtxkegu/!!
!

Pqvg<!Vq!vjg!gzvgpv!hgcukdng-!kp.mkpf!ocvej!tgrtgugpvgf!d{!xqnwpvggt!ugtxkegu!
owuv!dg!fqewogpvgf!wukpi!vjg!ucog!ogvjqfu!wugf!d{!vjg!rtqxkfgt!vq!uwrrqtv!
vjg!cnnqecvkqp!qh!tgiwnct!rgtuqppgn!equvu/!Ugtxkegu!rtqxkfgf!d{!kpfkxkfwcnu!owuv!
dg!xcnwgf!cv!tcvgu!eqpukuvgpv!ykvj!vjqug!qtfkpctkn{!rckf!hqt!ukoknct!yqtm!kp!vjg!
rtqxkfgt�u! qticpk|cvkqp/! Kh! gornq{ggu! qh! vjg! rtqxkfgt! fq! pqv! rgthqto! ukoknct!
yqtm-!vjg!tcvgu!owuv!dg!eqpukuvgpv!ykvj!vjqug!qtfkpctkn{!rckf!d{!qvjgt!gornq{gtu!
hqt!ukoknct!yqtm!kp!vjg!ucog!ncdqt!octmgv/!!
!

"! Ucnctkgu!rckf!vq!urqpuqt!cigpe{!uvchh!vq!rtqxkfg!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!vq!rtqitco!
rctvkekrcpvu/!
!

$! Fktgev! rtqxkukqp! qh! ugtxkegu/! Kh! vjg! uwrrqtvkxg! ugtxkegu! ctg! dgkpi! fktgevn{!

fgnkxgtgf! d{! vjg! urqpuqt! cigpe{-! gnkikdng! equvu! hqt! vjqug! ugtxkegu! cnuq!

kpenwfg<!

"! Vjg!equvu!qh! ncdqt!qt!uwrrnkgu-!cpf!ocvgtkcnu! kpewttgf!d{! vjg!urqpuqt!

cigpe{!kp!fktgevn{!rtqxkfkpi!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!vq!rtqitco!rctvkekrcpvu=!

cpf!



35!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

"! Vjg! rtqtcvgf! coqwpv! qh! ucnct{! cpf! dgpghkv! rcemcigu! qh! vjg! urqpuqt!

cigpe{!uvchh!yjq!fktgevn{!fgnkxgtu!vjg!ugtxkegu/!
!

Gnkikdng! ugtxkegu! owuv! cfftguu! vjg! urgekcn! pggfu! qh! vjg! rctvkekrcpvu-! cpf!
oc{!kpenwfg<!

"! Cppwcn!cuuguuogpv!qh!ugtxkeg!pggfu!

"! Cuukuvcpeg!ykvj!oqxkpi!equvu!

"! Ecug!ocpcigogpv!

"! Ejknfectg!)qrgtcvkpi!qt!xqwejgtu*!kp!nkegpugf!egpvgtu!hqt!ejknftgp!wpfgt!cig!
24!qt!hqt!ejknftgp!wpfgt!cig!29-!kh!fkucdngf!

"! Gfwecvkqpcn!ugtxkegu!

"! Gornq{ogpv!cuukuvcpeg!cpf!lqd!vtckpkpi!

"! Hqqf!)ogcnu!qt!itqegtkgu!hqt!rtqitco!rctvkekrcpvu*!

"! Jqwukpi!ugctej!cpf!eqwpugnkpi!ugtxkegu!

"! Ngicn!ugtxkegu!)kookitcvkqp-!ekvk|gpujkr-!cpf!oqtvicig0jqogqypgtujkr!ngicn!
ocvvgtu!ctg!kpgnkikdng*!

"! Nkhg!umknnu!vtckpkpi!!

"! Ogpvcn!jgcnvj!ugtxkegu!

"! Qwvrcvkgpv!jgcnvj!ugtxkegu!

"! Qwvtgcej!ugtxkegu!)kpenwfkpi!yqtm.tgncvgf!vtcpurqtvcvkqp!cpf!egnnrjqpg*!

"! Uwduvcpeg!cdwug!vtgcvogpv!ugtxkegu!

"! Vtcpurqtvcvkqp!)vtcpurqtvcvkqp!hqt!rtqitco!rctvkekrcpvu-!okngcig!hqt!ugtxkeg!
yqtmgtu-!xgjkengu-!cpf!oqtg-!cu!urgekhkgf*!

"! Wvknkv{!fgrqukvu+!
!

Pqvg<!Kprcvkgpv!cewvg!jqurkvcn!ku!PQV!gnkikdng/!!
!!
Chvgt!vjg!gzgewvkqp!qh!vjg!itcpv!citggogpv-!qwvtgcej!eqwpvu!vqyctfu!oggvkpi!vjg!
ocvej/!!Qwvtgcej!ku!fghkpgf!cu!kfgpvkh{kpi!gnkikdng!jctf!vq!tgcej!jqognguu!rgtuqpu!
cpf!ujqwnf!dg!rtkoctkn{!fktgevgf!vqyctf!rgtuqpu!yjq!jcxg!pkijvvkog!tgukfgpeg!cv!
gogtigpe{! ujgnvgtu! qt! rncegu! pqv! fgukipcvgf! hqt! tgiwnct! unggrkpi!
ceeqooqfcvkqpu-!k/g/-!cdcpfqp!dwknfkpiu-!rctmu-!ectu-!cpf!uvtggvu/!

!
Ecnewncvkpi!vjg!uwrrqtvkxg!ugtxkegu!ocvej!ku!ukorng<!

"! Cigpekgu!owuv!gpuwtg!c!36&!ugtxkeg!ocvej!ku!ogv!hqt!vjg!vqvcn!itcpv!cyctfgf/!!
Vjg! ocvej! owuv! dg! tgrqtvgf! xkc! dqvj! vjg! Swctvgtn{! Ocvej! Hwpfu! Vtcemkpi!
Tgrqtv!cpf!vjg!CRT!

!
7/!Pq!Eqphnkev!qh!Kpvgtguv!Egtvkhkecvkqp!

Cigpekgu! owuv! gpuwtg! eqornkcpeg! ykvj! vjg! NCEFC�u! Pq! Eqphnkev! qh! Kpvgtguv!
rqnkekgu! vq! gpuwtg! vjcv! pq! eqphnkev! qh! kpvgtguv! gzkuvu! dgvyggp! rctvkekrcpvu! cpf!
itcpvgg0urqpuqt!uvchh/!!Vq!eqorn{!ykvj!vjku!tgswktgogpv-!urqpuqt!cigpekgu!owuv!
gpuwtg!vjcv!gcej!EqE!rctvkekrcpv-!kvu!gornq{ggu!cpf!uwdeqpvtcevqtu!kpxqnxgf!ykvj!
vjg! EqE! Rtqitco! ukip! cpf! fcvg! vjg! Pq! Eqphnkev! qh! Kpvgtguv! Egtvkhkecvkqp! hqto-!
rtqxkfgf!d{!vjg!NCEFC/!Vjg!NCEFC!yknn!tgxkgy!vjg!Pq!Eqphnkev!qh!Kpvgtguv!hqtou!



36!~!R c i g !
NCEFC!.!EqE!Vtckpkpi!Jcpfdqqm!)Tgxkugf!13.33.33*!

ukipgf!cpf!fcvgf!d{!vjgkt!rctvkekrcpvu-!gornq{ggu-!cpf0qt!uwdeqpvtcevqtu!fwtkpi!
kvu!cppwcn!oqpkvqtkpi!ukvg!xkukvu/!!!!!

!
Hqtou0Pqvkegu!Rgtvckpkpi!vq!Vjku!Ugevkqp<!

"! Cppwcn!Pggfu!Cuuguuogpv!Hqto!)NCEFC!hqto*!

"! CRT!)JWF!hqtou*!

"! Eqpvtcevwcn! Kpuwtcpeg! Tgswktgogpvu! Nkuv! )Cvvcejogpv! K! qh! {qwt! NCEFC!
Citggogpv*!

"! Jqognguu!Eqpfkvkqp!Egtvkhkecvkqp!Hqto!)NCEFC!hqto*!

"! FgfkecvgfRNWU!Jqognguu!Xgtkhkecvkqp!Hqtou!)NCJUC!hqtou*!

"! Jqwukpi!Kpvcmg!Cuuguuogpv!Hqto!)NCEFC!hqto*!

"! Egtvkhkecvg!qh!Fkucdknkv{!Hqto!)NCEFC!hqto*!

"! Xgtkhkecvkqp!qh!Fkucdknkv{!Hqto!)NCJUC!hqto*!

"! Uwrrqtvkxg!Ugtxkegu!Hgg!Uejgfwng!)Cvvcejogpv!KKK!qh!{qwt!NCEFC!Citggogpv*!

"! Kpuvtwevkqpu! hqt! EqE! Uwrrqtvkxg! Ugtxkegu! Ocvej! Fqewogpvcvkqp! )NCEFC!

fqewogpv*!

"! Swctvgtn{!Ocvej!Hwpfu!Vtcemkpi!Tgrqtv!)NCEFC!fqewogpv*!

"! Rctvkekrcpv!Pq!Eqphnkev!qh!Kpvgtguv!Egtvkhkecvkqp!)NCEFC!hqto*!



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
MONTHLY STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
DATE: December 20, 2023 
 
TO:   Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority and 
  Mental Health Commission 
 
FROM: Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Director’s Monthly Report 
 
 
SB 43 IMPLEMENTATION 
 
SB 43 was signed by the Governor on October 10, 2023.  This bill expands the definition 
of gravely disabled to include a person who, as a result of a mental health disorder, a 
severe substance use disorder, or a co-occurring mental health disorder and a severe 
substance use disorder, or as a result of impairment by chronic alcoholism, is unable to 
provide for their basic personal needs for food, clothing, shelter, personal safety, or 
necessary medical care.  
 
Counties will need to develop an extensive array of new policies, procedures, workforce, 
and treatment capacity in order to implement SB 43. Because SB 43 has not come with 
dedicated state funding to support these expanded obligations, counties need additional 
lead-time to arrange the staffing and resources necessary to support the implementation. 
 
SB 43 also expands reporting requirements to align with the new criteria and allows 
counties to delay implementation until January 1, 2026, through adoption of a county 
board resolution.  Resolution for delay for Los Angeles County will go before the Board 
on December 19th asking to delay the implementation.   
 
Bill Summary 
 
SB 43 makes several significant changes to the state’s involuntary detention and 
conservatorship laws under the Lanterman-Petris-Short (LPS) Act by: 

• Expanding the state’s “gravely disabled” criteria to allow for the involuntary 
detention and conservatorship of individuals on the basis of a standalone 
“severe” substance use disorder or co-occurring mental health disorder and 
severe SUD; 

• Expanding the definition of grave disability to include individuals who are 
unable to provide for their basic personal need for personal safety or necessary 
medical care; 

• Defining “necessary medical care” to mean care that a licensed health care 
practitioner determines to be necessary to prevent serious deterioration of an 
existing medical condition which is likely to result in serious bodily injury if left 
untreated;  



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Mental Health Commission 
Monthly Staff Report of Rimmi Hundal 
December 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 

• Modifying hearsay evidentiary standards for conservatorship hearings in order 
to expand the array of testimony that can be submitted into conservatorship 
proceedings without requiring in-person cross examination; and, 

• Requiring counties consider less restrictive alternatives such as assisted 
outpatient treatment (AOT) and CARE Court in conducting conservatorship 
investigations. 

 
EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION AND RECOGNITION 
 
Tri-City’s employee appreciation and recognition party was held on Wednesday 
December 6th at the Walter Taylor Hall and was attended by all staff. The planning 
committee started planning for this event in November and each staff member had a 
chance to win at least one gift.   During this time, we also recognized the employee of the 
year and this year we received 12 nominations.   
 
CLAREMONT GARDENS SENIOR HOUSING PROJECT 
 
The groundbreaking for the Claremont Gardens Senior Housing project took place on 
Monday, December 11th, at 956 W. Baseline Road in Claremont. It was attended by the 
Governing Board Chair, Jed Leano, Governing Board Member Ron Vera, and Tri-City 
staff.  TCMHA has made a permanent loan of Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) No 
Place like Home funds in the amount of $1,140,736 and donated the land to RNLA, for 
the construction and development of the Claremont Gardens Senior Housing Project, 
which gives us 8 rental units for TCMHA clients, as permanent supportive housing for 
households with extremely low income and who have a diagnosed mental illness.  
 
IT UPDATE 
 
The IT team has completed the Method of Authentication (MFA) enrollment of all staff!  
They worked with each department to enable this additional layer of security in steps, and 
over the course of three weeks met with and hosted sessions to ensure everyone’s 
account now utilizes our enhanced method of authentication. 
 
In addition to our MFA endeavor, the team received and resolved numerous (260+, 
month-to-date) technology issues from staff, through our helpdesk and security 
dashboards to ensure smooth and secure daily operations. 
 
We’re almost done with a project to standardize paging systems at all five agency 
locations to align with our safety policies. Once complete, staff will have a single-button 
option to page through our phone system for site-wide alerts and potential emergency 
situations. This is a significant improvement over our current state, where a 4-digit code 
is needed in order to initiate a page broadcast. 
 
 
 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Mental Health Commission 
Monthly Staff Report of Rimmi Hundal 
December 20, 2023 
Page 3 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Staffing – Month Ending November 2023 
  

• Total Staff is 205 full-time and 7 part-time plus 41 full-time vacancies 3 part-time 
vacancies for a total of 251 positions.   

• There were 3 new hires in November 2023. 
• There were 3 separations in November 2023. 

Workforce Demographics in November 2023 
 

• American Indian or Alaska Native =                  0.47% 
• Asian =                                                              9.91% 
• Black or African American =                              8.49%   
• Hispanic or Latino =                                          60.38% 
• Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander =      0.47% 
• Other =                                                               3.30% 
• Two or more races =                                          1.89% 
• White or Caucasian =                                       15.09% 

Posted Positions in November 2023 
 

• Administrative Assistant                                               (1 FTE) 
• Behavioral Health Specialist                                        (1 FTE) 
• Behavioral Health Worker                                           (1 FTE) 
• Clinical Supervisor I – Access to Care                        (1 FTE) 
• Clinical Therapist I/II – School Partnership                 (1 FTE) 
• Clinical Therapist II – PACT                                        (1 FTE) 
• Psychiatric Technician I/II                                           (2 FTEs) 
• Psychiatrist                                                                  (1 FTE) 

COVID-19 UPDATE 
 
March 1, 2022 was the State required vaccination booster deadline for all healthcare 
workers who are booster eligible.  As of November 30, 2023, Tri-City staff have a 
vaccination compliancy rate of 87.73% with a vaccination booster compliancy rate of 
94.08%.   
 



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
MONTHLY STAFF REPORT 

 
 

  
DATE: December 20, 2023 
 
TO:  Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 

Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Diana Acosta, CPA, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Finance and Facilities Report 
 

 
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FOUR MONTHS ENDED 
OCTOBER 31, 2023 (2024 FISCAL YEAR-TO-DATE): 
 
The financials presented herein are the PRELIMINARY and unaudited financial 
statements for the four months ended October 31, 2023. These financial statements 
include the activities from the clinical outpatient operations as well as activities from the 
implemented MHSA programs under the CSS, PEI, INN, WET and CFTN plans. 
 
The increase in net position (income) is approximately $10.0 million. MHSA operations 
accounted for approximately $10.0 million of the increase, which is primarily the result of 
recognizing MHSA revenues on hand at the beginning of the fiscal year. MHSA non-
operating revenues are reflected when MHSA funds have been received and are eligible 
to be spent. 
 
During fiscal 2023, Tri-City received MHSA funding of approximately $11.4 million, of 
which $8.4 million were for approved programs for fiscal 2023-24 MHSA operations and 
was reflected as MHSA Revenue Restricted for Future Period on the Statement of Net 
Position (balance sheet) at June 30, 2023.  These restricted MHSA revenues have now 
been recorded as non-operating revenues in fiscal 2023-24.  In addition, during this 
current fiscal year 2023-24 approximately $12.6 million in MHSA funding has been 
received of which $7.0 million was identified and approved for use in the current fiscal 
year 2023-24 and recorded as non-operating revenues, bringing the total MHSA non-
operating revenues recognized to date up to approximately $15.4 million. Unlike the 
requirement to reflect all available and approved MHSA funding when received as non-
operating revenues, MHSA operating costs are reflected when incurred. Therefore, the 
matching of revenue to expense is not consistent as the timing of expenditures will lag 
behind the timing of revenue recognition. 
 
The decrease in net position of approximately $24 thousand is from Clinic outpatient 
operations, which is the result of operations for the four months ended October 31, 2023 
which includes one-time payments made at the beginning of the year. 
 
The total cash balance at October 31, 2023 was approximately $47.6 million, which 
represents an increase of approximately $8.5 million from the June 30, 2023 balance of 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of Diana Acosta 
December 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 
approximately $39.1 million. Outpatient Clinic operations, after excluding any 
intercompany receipts or costs resulting from MHSA operations, had an increase in cash 
of approximately $2.0 million primarily as a result timing of cash receipts from LADMH.  
MHSA operations reflected an increase in cash of approximately $6.5 million, after 
excluding intercompany receipts or costs resulting from clinic operations. Total increase 
in MHSA cash reflects the receipt of approximately $12.6 million in MHSA funds offset by 
the use of cash for MHSA operating activities. 
 
Approximately $2.8 million in Medi-Cal cash receipts have been collected for both 
Outpatient Clinic Operations and MHSA Operations within the four months ended October 
31, 2023. As of December 14, 2023 an additional $970 thousand has been received. Note 
that all receipts in the current year have been related to outstanding accounts receivable, 
no amounts related to current year billings have been received to-date. 
 
UPCOMING, CURRENT EVENTS & UPDATES 
 
Overall Financial Update:  
We continue to closely monitor for any new developments, changes to legislation and 
updated revenue projections from CBHDA, specifically with regard to MHSA as these 
revenues continually fluctuate and as evidenced in the past and as noted below, 
significantly differ from original projections as well as revised projections.  As such, 
planning appropriately to ensure we meet the needs of our community, and having the 
ability to make changes as we go will be necessary in the upcoming years, especially if 
projections wind up being significantly different than currently projected. 
 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Annual Audit:  
Final fieldwork on the annual independent audit commenced on September 11, 2023. 
Due to the extensive and complex implementation of a new Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board standard (GASB 96) anticipated issuance of final opinions on the audit 
is expected to be pushed to January of 2024. 
 
MHSA Reform: 
As the Executive Director has previously mentioned in her staff report, the Governor has 
announced a proposed ballot measure that would dramatically alter MHSA funding and 
how Counties, along with Tri-City, would be required to utilize it.  Although Management 
is closely following this proposal, its development, and potential requirements that come 
with it, as of today we are still compelled to follow the existing legislative requirements of 
MHSA law as it exists today. 
 
CalAIM:  
As of September 7, 2023, Tri City was able to bill our first batch of claims and are currently 
awaiting adjudication of said claims. There is currently no ETA as to when to expect this 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of Diana Acosta 
December 20, 2023 
Page 3 
 
initial billing batch to be processed and paid. As of October 31, 2023 an estimated $3.3 
million in MediCal claims has been recognized as revenue. 
 
MHSA Funding Updates: 
 
Estimated Current Cash Position – The following table represents a brief summary of 
the estimated (unaudited) current MHSA cash position as of the three months ended 
September 30, 2023. 

 

MHSA
Cash at October 31, 2023 36,763,654$              

Receivables net of Reserve for Cost Report Settlements 2,853,803                  
Prudent Reserves (2,200,000)                *

Estimated Remaining Expenses for Operations FY 2022-23 (9,072,878)                **
Reserved for future CFTN Projects including approved TCG Project (3,116,487)                

Total Estimated Adjustments to Cash (11,535,562)              

Estimated Available at June 30, 2024 25,228,092$              

Estimated remaining MHSA funds to be received in FY 2023-24 11,097,635$              

* Per SB 192, Prudent Reserves are required to be maintained at an amount that does not
exceed 33% of the average Community Services and Support (CSS) revenue received for
the fund, in the preceding 5 years.

** Estimated based on to-date actuals projected through year-end June 30, 2024, net of
estimated Medi-Cal revenue, including actual and estimated amounts to year end 06/30/2024. 

 
 
MHSA Expenditures and MHSA Revenue Receipts –  
 
FY 2022-23 Revenue Projections:  Based on prior estimates disclosed by CBHDA, the 
amount of MHSA funds projected to be collected in Fiscal year 2022-23 were expected 
to be in line with what was just collected in the prior year (FY 21-22). As such the Fiscal 
Year 2022-23 Operating budget reflected a projected collection of MHSA funds totaling 
$16.5 million.  As noted in the table below, the original estimate of new funding in the 
MHSA Annual Update was $11.1 million.  As a result of the updated projections the MHSA 
revenues are now expected to be $5.3 million higher, however as of May of 2023 MHSA 
collections to date were $10.9 million and expected to reach $12.2 million an average of 
25% less than the prior year or closer to the original estimate of $11.2. As of June 30, 
2023 actual cash receipts received totaled approximately $11.4 million. 
 
 
 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of Diana Acosta 
December 20, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 
 
For reference the following is the information included in the MHSA Fiscal Year 2022-23 
Annual Update:  
 

Included in the MHSA FY 2022-23 Annual Update CSS PEI Innovation WET CFTN Totals
Estimated Unspent Funds from Prior Fiscal Years 19,278,875           4,037,204          2,697,746           808,952            1,529,299         28,352,076      
Transfers in FY 2022-23 (2,700,000)            -                       1,000,000        1,700,000         -                     
Available for Spending in FY 2022-23 16,578,875           4,037,204          2,697,746           1,808,952        3,229,299         28,352,076      
Approved Plan Expenditures during FY 2022-23 (12,284,819)         (2,221,506)        (253,661)             (857,628)          (703,183)           (16,320,797)    
Remaining Cash before new funding 4,294,056             1,815,698          2,444,085           951,324            2,526,116         12,031,279      

Estimated New FY 2022-23 Funding 8,477,602             2,119,401          557,737               11,154,740      
Estimated Ending FY 2022-23 Unspent Fund Balance 12,771,658           3,935,099          3,001,822           951,324            2,526,116         23,186,019      

 
 
The following information demonstrates the changes in estimated cash flow between the 
MHSA Fiscal Year 2022-23 Annual Update and the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating 
Budget: 
 

 
 
FY 2023-24 Revenue Projections:  Based on the announcement that tax filings were 
delayed until October of 2023, for individuals living in Counties who experienced weather 
related States of Emergency. As a result, MHSA receipts were $11.4 million for fiscal year 
2022-23. Just like we experienced in fiscal year 2019-20, cash receipts were anticipated 
to decrease significantly followed by a significant increase in cash receipts in fiscal year 
2023-24. Tri City has received $11.1 million for the two months ended August 31, 2023. 
For reference, the following table is an excerpt from the Fiscal Year 2023-24 MHSA 
Three-Year Plan.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Included in the FY 2022-23 Operating Budget CSS PEI Innovation WET CFTN Totals
* Updated  Funding Estimates for FY 2022-23 12,519,290           3,129,822          823,638               -                    -                     16,472,750      

Original Estimated New FY 2022-23 Funding 8,477,602              2,119,401          557,737               -                    -                     11,154,740      
Difference/Projected Additional Funding 4,041,688              1,010,421          265,901               -                    -                     5,318,010         

* These amounts were estimated prior to winter storms in December of 2022. The most recent updates as of March of 2023, total actual collections will be
closer to $12.2 million. 

Included in the MHSA FY 2023-24 Annual Update CSS PEI Innovation WET CFTN Totals
Estimated Unspent Funds from Prior Fiscal Years 16,544,291           4,476,308          3,107,758           1,431,643         2,729,658         28,289,658      
Transfers in FY 2023-24 (2,500,000)            -                      500,000            2,000,000         -                    
Available for Spending in FY 2023-24 14,044,291           4,476,308          3,107,758           1,931,643         4,729,658         28,289,658      
Approved Plan Expenditures during FY 2023-24 (11,610,705)          (3,336,066)         (980,883)             (611,680)           (980,700)           (17,520,034)     
Remaining Cash before new funding 2,433,586              1,140,242          2,126,875           1,319,963         3,748,958         10,769,624      

Estimated New FY 2023-24 Funding 11,178,109           2,794,527          735,402               14,708,038      
Estimated Ending FY 2023-24 Unspent Fund Balance 13,611,695           3,934,769          2,862,277           1,319,963         3,748,958         25,477,662      

* Updated  Funding Estimates for FY 2023-24 17,998,168           4,499,542          1,184,090           -                    -                     23,681,800      
(as of June of 2023)



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of Diana Acosta 
December 20, 2023 
Page 5 
 
MHSA Reversion Update: 
 
Each remittance of MHSA funds received by Tri-City is required to be allocated among 
three of the five MHSA Plans, CSS, PEI and INN.  The first 5% of each remittance is 
required to be allocated to INN and the remaining amount is split 80% to CSS and 20% 
to PEI. While the WET and the CapTech plans have longer time frames in which to spend 
funds (made up of one-time transfers into these two plans), the CSS, PEI and INN plans 
have three years.    
 
Amounts received within the CSS and PEI programs must be expended within three years 
of receipt. INN amounts must be programmed in a plan that is approved by the Mental 
Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC) within three years 
of receipt, and spent within the life of the approved program. Upon approval by the 
MHSOAC, INN amounts have to be expended within the life of said program. For 
example, a program approved for a five-year period will have the full five years associated 
with the program to expend the funds. 
 
The following tables are excerpts from DHCS’s annual reversion report received by Tri-
City on March 16, 2023 based on the fiscal year 2021-22 Annual Revenue and Expense 
Report (ARER): 
 
CSS reversion waterfall analysis 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 Total
8,676,848                 8,797,914                  9,293,482                  11,824,329              13,252,035             51,844,608             

Expended in:
2017-18 -                            -                           
2018-19 939,014                    -                              939,014                  
2019-20 7,737,834                 1,290,269                  -                              9,028,103               
2020-21 7,507,645                  3,546,924                  -                           11,054,569             
2021-22 5,746,558                  3,676,533                -                          9,423,091               

2022-23 ** 8,147,796               4,137,023              12,284,819             
2023-24 ** 11,610,705            11,610,705             

Total Expended 8,676,848                 8,797,914                  9,293,482                  11,824,329              15,747,728             54,340,301             
Unspent Balance -                            -                              -                              -                           (2,495,693)             (2,495,693)              

**=Planned Expenditures based on approved MHSA Plan

CSS amounts received



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of Diana Acosta 
December 20, 2023 
Page 6 
 
 
PEI reversion waterfall analysis 

 
 
The following table was copied directly from latest information provided from DHCS 
 
INN reversion waterfall analysis  

INN
Reallocated

AB 114 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22
Encumbered Unspent Funds3 799,187       302,889 580,471                        550,879                        784,114                        245,707                        
Unencumbered Unspent Funds4 -                -          -                                 -                                 -                                 628,829                        
Unspent Balance 799,187       302,889 580,471                        550,879                        784,114                        874,536                        

Encumbered Funds Starting Balance → 799,187       302,889 580,471                        550,879                        784,114                        245,707                        
Applied Expenditure ↓ Applied Expenditure ↓
FY 15-16 -                                         
FY 16-17 -                                         
FY 17-18 304,376       -          304,376                                
FY 18-19 131,206       -          -                                 131,206                                
FY 19-20 355,393       -          -                                 -                                 355,393                                
FY 20-21 8,212            -          -                                 -                                 -                                 8,212                                     
FY 21-22 -                302,889 25,035                          -                                 -                                 -                                 327,924                                
FY 22-23 -                -          TBD TBD TBD TBD -                                         
Encumbered Unspent Balance → -                -          555,436                        550,879                        784,114                        245,707                        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 Total
2,145,788                 2,119,324                  2,173,110                  2,948,240                3,311,501               12,697,963             

Expended in:
2017-18 726,119                    726,119                  
2018-19 1,419,669                 387,017                     1,806,686               
2019-20 -                            1,644,825                  -                              1,644,825               
2020-21 87,482                       1,746,984                  -                           1,834,466               
2021-22 426,126                     1,309,696                -                          1,735,822               

2022-23 ** 1,638,544               582,962                 2,221,506               
2023-24 ** 3,336,066              3,336,066               

Total Expended 2,145,788                 2,119,324                  2,173,110                  2,948,240                3,919,028               13,305,490             
Unspent Balance -                            -                              -                              -                           (607,527)                 (607,527)                 

**=Planned Expenditures based on approved MHSA Plan

PEI amounts received



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of Diana Acosta 
December 20, 2023 
Page 7 
 
FACILITIES DEPARTMENT  
 
Status of Governing Board Approved Upcoming, Current or Ongoing projects: 
 

• The Community Garden Upgrades:  A contract for the completion of this project 
has now been approved and was awarded during the March 15, 2023 Governing 
Board Meeting.  This project is targeted to be substantially complete closer to the 
end of the summer with the exception of some phases that may experience delays 
as a result of lead times and availability of materials required for the project.  As 
reported previously, construction broke ground on Wednesday, May 10, 2023 and 
continual progress is being made.  Various staff have expressed their excitement 
about the progress and the project in general and look forward to seeing its 
completion.  
 

• Office Space Remodel at the MHSA Administrative Building:  Project concept was 
initially approved in March of 2020 as part of the approved CFTN Plan.  This project 
had previously been temporarily on hold until the Electrical/Power Upgrade Project 
was complete as this project was also being performed in the same building. The 
Electrical was completed in November of 2022. At the November of 2022 
Governing Board Meeting an agreement with a design firm was approved for 
services to include the preparation of formal plans, a Request For Proposal (RFP) 
and construction management for the project.  Over the past several months our 
Facilities Department worked closely with the design firm on finalizing the design 
and formal plans which were submitted to the City for Approval.  As reported 
previously, the plans were been approved by the City of Pomona and shortly after 
the solicitation of contractors through an RFP process was completed.  The next 
phase will be to bring forth a contract for approval to the Governing Board Meeting 
as soon as possible and projecting the January board meeting.  Target date of 
project completion will be closer to early calendar year 2024. 

Attachments 
 
Attachment 10-A: September 30, 2023 Unaudited Monthly Financial Statements 



TCMH MHSA Consolidated TCMH MHSA Consolidated
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Current Assets
Cash 10,866,849$   36,763,654$     47,630,503$     8,976,643$     30,118,745$    39,095,388$      
Accounts receivable, net of reserve for uncollectible accounts

$1,034,870 at October 31, 2023 and $742,206 at June 30, 2023 6,311,249        5,838,481         12,149,729       7,142,756        5,365,900        12,508,656        
Total Current Assets 17,178,098     42,602,134       59,780,232       16,119,399     35,484,646      51,604,044        

Property and Equipment
Land, building, furniture and equipment 3,835,817        10,457,887       14,293,703       3,822,091        9,994,846        13,816,937        
Accumulated depreciation (2,793,986)      (4,675,939)        (7,469,925)        (2,759,359)      (4,527,857)       (7,287,216)        
Rights of use assets-building lease 1,753,343        -                    1,753,343         1,753,343        -                   1,753,343          
Accumulated amortization-building lease (1,156,719)      -                    (1,156,719)        (1,037,395)      -                   (1,037,395)        

Total Property and Equipment 1,638,455        5,781,947         7,420,402         1,778,680        5,466,989        7,245,669          
Other Assets

Deposits and prepaid assets 297,658           248,892            546,550            53,934             248,892           302,826             
Note receivable-Housing Development Project -                   2,800,000         2,800,000         -                   2,800,000        2,800,000          

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,936,112        8,830,839         10,766,952       1,832,614        8,515,881        10,348,495        
          Total Assests 19,114,210     51,432,974       70,547,184       17,952,013     44,000,527      61,952,539        

Deferred Outflows of Resources
  Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability 5,749,104        -                    5,749,104         5,749,104        -                   5,749,104          
      Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,749,104        -                    5,749,104         5,749,104        -                   5,749,104          
          Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resouces 24,863,314$   51,432,974$     76,296,288$     23,701,117$   44,000,527$    67,701,644$      

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 1,052,198        65,032              1,117,230         450,748           122,807           573,555             
Accrued payroll liabilities 1,532,746        2,264,337         3,797,083         917,396           2,409,809        3,327,205          
Accrued vacation and sick leave 652,225           1,244,344         1,896,570         608,466           1,063,071        1,671,537          
Deferred revenue 395,395           -                    395,395            322,539           -                   322,539             
Reserve for Medi-Cal settlements 3,527,066        2,984,678         6,511,744         3,440,500        2,883,786        6,324,286          
Current portion of lease liability 238,647           -                    238,647            357,971           -                   357,971             

Total Current Liabilities 7,398,277        6,558,391         13,956,668       6,097,619        6,479,473        12,577,093        

Intercompany Acct-MHSA & TCMH 297,692           (297,692)           -                    412,138           (412,138)          -                     

Long-Term Liabilities
Lease liability 357,977           357,977            357,977           -                   357,977             
Net pension liability 8,262,600        -                    8,262,600         8,262,600        -                   8,262,600          
Unearned MHSA revenue -                   6,631,182         6,631,182         -                   1,080,332        1,080,332          

Total Long-Term Liabilities 8,620,577        6,631,182         15,251,759       8,620,577        1,080,332        9,700,909          

Total Liabilities  16,316,546     12,891,881       29,208,427       15,130,334     7,147,667        22,278,001        

Deferred Inflow of Resources
MHSA revenues restricted for future period -                   -                    -                    -                   8,349,489        8,349,489          
Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability 237,328           -                    237,328            237,328           -                   237,328             

           Total Deferred Inflow of Resources 237,328           -                    237,328            237,328           8,349,489        8,586,817          

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 1,041,830        5,781,947         6,823,778         1,062,732        5,466,989        6,529,721          
Restricted for MHSA programs -                   32,759,146       32,759,146       -                   23,036,382      23,036,382        
Unrestricted 7,267,609        -                    7,267,609         7,270,722        -                   7,270,722          
     Total Net Position 8,309,439        38,541,093       46,850,532       8,333,454        28,503,371      36,836,825        
         Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 24,863,314$   51,432,974$     76,296,288$     23,701,117$   44,000,527$    67,701,644$      

Definitions:
  TCMH=Tri-City's Outpatient Clinic
  MHSA=Mental Health Services Act (Proposition 63)

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

AT OCTOBER 31, 2023 AT JUNE 30, 2023



TCMH MHSA Consolidated TCMH MHSA Consolidated
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

OPERATING REVENUES
Medi-Cal FFP 1,317,422$     1,367,598$   2,685,019$      839,759$        932,042$      1,771,802$      
Medi-Cal FFP FYE Prior Year 67,297           3,039            70,336             -                     -                -                      
Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT 291,998         321,257        613,255           177,820         220,663        398,482           
Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT Prior Year 3,379             25,813          29,192             -                 -                -                  
Medicare 2,374             1,778            4,151               3,656             1,287            4,943               
Contracts -                 10,285          10,285             -                 9,987            9,987               
Patient fees and insurance 21                  62                 83                   256                57                 313                 
Rent income - TCMH & MHSA Housing 3,696             22,586          26,282             3,696             23,407          27,103             
Other income 85                  46                 130                 254                74                 328                 

Net Operating Revenues 1,686,271           1,752,464         3,438,735            1,025,441           1,187,516         2,212,957            

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 2,761,729       5,734,180     8,495,909        3,037,125       4,589,060     7,626,185        
Facility and equipment operating cost 191,459         413,543        605,002           205,752         414,014        619,765           
Client lodging, transportation, and supply expense 104,933         425,187        530,120           5,778             28,020          33,798             
Depreciation & amortization 98,930           203,103        302,033           106,687         206,280        312,968           
Other operating expenses 301,056         760,164        1,061,220        248,854         486,987        735,841           

Total Operating Expenses 3,458,107           7,536,176         10,994,283          3,604,195           5,724,362         9,328,557            

OPERATING (LOSS) (Note 1) (1,771,836)         (5,783,712)        (7,555,548)           (2,578,755)         (4,536,846)        (7,115,600)           

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Realignment 1,218,450       -                1,218,450        1,218,450       -                1,218,450        
MHSA funds -                 15,413,070   15,413,070      -                 14,780,860   14,780,860      
Grants and Contracts 213,559         -                213,559           8,903             -                8,903               
Interest Income net with FMV 74,435           408,365        482,799           (2,590)            (38,212)         (40,802)           
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expense) 1,506,443           15,821,435       17,327,878          1,224,763           14,742,648       15,967,411          

INCOME (LOSS) (265,393)            10,037,722   9,772,330            (1,353,992)         10,205,802   8,851,810            

Special Item:
  Receipt of SB90 claims previously reserved 241,378         -                241,378           -                 -                -                      

241,378              -                    241,378               -                     -                    -                      

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (24,015)          10,037,722   10,013,708      (1,353,992)     10,205,802   8,851,810        
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,333,454           28,503,370       36,836,825      7,995,472           25,853,634       33,849,106      
NET POSITION, END OF MONTH 8,309,439$         38,541,093$     46,850,532$        6,641,480$         36,059,437$     42,700,917$        

 (Note 1)  "Operating Loss" reflects loss before realignment funding and MHSA funding which is included in non-operating revenues.

Definitions:
  Medi-Cal FFP= Federal Financial Participation Reimbursement
  Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT=State General Funds reimbursement for Medi-Cal services provided to children under the "Early and
    Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment" regulations.
  TCMH=Tri-City's Outpatient Clinic
  MHSA=Mental Health Services Act (Proposition 63)

PERIOD ENDED 10/31/23

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOUR MONTHS ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

PERIOD ENDED 10/31/22



TCMH MHSA Consolidated TCMH MHSA Consolidated
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from and on behalf of patients 1,351,295$          1,247,273$          2,598,567$            1,360,706$        1,107,476$         2,468,183$            
Cash payments to suppliers and contractors (397,457)              (1,711,690)           (2,109,147)             (656,364)            (991,522)            (1,647,886)             
Payments to employees (2,102,620)           (5,698,378)           (7,800,998)             (3,116,761)         (4,705,584)         (7,822,345)             

(1,148,782)           (6,162,796)           (7,311,578)             (2,412,419)         (4,589,630)         (7,002,049)             

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
MHSA Funding -                       12,584,165          12,584,165            -                     5,779,411           5,779,411              
CalHFA-State Administered Projects -                       30,266                 30,266                   -                     64,485                64,485                   
Realignment 2,542,362            -                       2,542,362              1,876,672          -                      1,876,672              
Grants and Contracts 287,508               -                       287,508                 110,000             -                      110,000                 

2,829,870            12,614,431          15,444,301            1,986,672          5,843,896           7,830,568              

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (13,725)                (463,040)              (476,765)                (2,457)                (47,642)               (50,099)                  
Intercompany-MHSA & TCMH (114,446)              114,446               -                         (875,396)            875,396              -                         

(128,171)              (348,594)              (476,765)                (877,853)            827,754              (50,099)                  

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received 89,620                 541,078               630,697                 27,846               156,616              184,462                 

89,620                 541,078               630,697                 27,846               156,616              184,462                 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,883,914            6,644,119            8,528,032              (1,275,754)         2,238,636           962,882                 

Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 8,976,643            30,118,745          39,095,388            8,386,759          31,504,790         39,891,549            
Cash Equivalents at End of Month 10,860,556$        36,762,864$        47,623,420$          7,111,004$        33,743,427$       40,854,431$          

Cash from the Balance Sheet 10,866,849          36,763,654          47,630,503            7,535,177          33,219,733         40,754,909            
YTD Gain/(Loss) from GASB 31 Fair Market Value 6,293$                 790                      7,083                     424,172$           (523,694)            (99,522)                  

Definitions:
  TCMH=Tri-City's Outpatient Clinic
  MHSA=Mental Health Services Act (Proposition 63)

PERIOD ENDED 10/31/23

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOUR MONTHS ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

PERIOD ENDED 10/31/22



Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
OPERATING REVENUES

Medi-Cal FFP 1,436,665$      1,047,559$      389,105$         1,491,383$      1,452,582$      38,801$           2,928,047$      2,500,141$      427,906$         
Medi-Cal FFP Prior Year 73,388             -                      73,388             3,314               -                  3,314               76,702             -                      76,702             
Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT 318,427           -                  318,427           350,335           -                  350,335           668,762           -                      668,762           
Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT Prior Year 3,685               -                  3,685               28,149             -                  28,149             31,835             -                      31,835             
Medicare 2,374               1,667               707                  1,778               700                  1,078               4,151               2,367               1,785               
Patient fees and insurance 21                    333                  (313)                62                    -                  62                    83                    333                  (251)                
Contracts -                  6,667               (6,667)             10,285             9,333               952                  10,285             16,000             (5,715)             
Rent income - TCMH & MHSA Housing 3,696               3,696               -                  22,586             23,333             (747)                26,282             27,029             (747)                
Other income 85                    367                  (282)                46                    -                  46                    130                  367                  (237)                
Provision for contractual disallowances (145,673)         -                  (145,673)         (152,863)         -                  (152,863)         (298,535)         -                      (298,535)         
Provision for contractual disallowances prior year (6,397)             -                  (6,397)             (2,611)             -                  (2,611)             (9,009)             -                      (9,009)             

Net Operating Revenues 1,686,271        1,060,289        625,982           1,752,464        1,485,949        266,515           3,438,735        2,546,237        892,497           
 

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 2,761,729        3,475,478        (713,749)         5,734,180        6,544,170        (809,991)         8,495,909        10,019,648      (1,523,739)      
Facility and equipment operating cost 191,459           205,326           (13,867)           413,543           412,043           1,500               605,002           617,369           (12,367)           
Client program costs 104,933           20,777             84,155             425,187           207,634           217,553           530,120           228,411           301,708           
Grants 1,554               -                  1,554               64,005             123,333           (59,328)           65,559             123,333           (57,774)           
MHSA training/learning costs -                  38,114             33,044             5,069               38,114             33,044             5,069               
Depreciation & amortization 98,930             94,629             4,301               203,103           211,428           (8,325)             302,033           306,057           (4,024)             
Other operating expenses 299,502           171,842           127,660           658,045           986,174           (328,129)         957,547           1,158,016        (200,469)         

Total Operating Expenses 3,458,107        3,968,053        (509,946)         7,536,176        8,517,827        (981,651)         10,994,283      12,485,879      (1,491,596)      

OPERATING (LOSS) (1,771,836)      (2,907,764)      1,135,928        (5,783,712)      (7,031,878)      1,248,166        (7,555,548)      (9,939,642)      2,384,094        

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Realignment 1,218,450        1,466,667        (248,216)         -                  -                  -                  1,218,450        1,466,667        (248,216)         
MHSA Funding -                  -                  -                  15,413,070      15,539,345      (126,275)         15,413,070      15,539,345      (126,275)         
Grants and contracts 213,559           364,133           (150,574)         -                  -                  -                  213,559           364,133           (150,574)         
Interest (expense) income, net 74,435             43,500             30,935             408,365           258,641           149,724           482,799           302,141           180,658           
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expense) 1,506,443        1,874,299        (367,856)         15,821,435      15,797,986      23,449             17,327,878      17,672,285      (344,407)         

Special Item:  Net reorganization income (expense) 241,378           -                  241,378           -                  -                  -                  241,378           -                      241,378           

INCREASE(DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (24,015)$         (1,033,465)$    1,009,450$      10,037,722$    8,766,108$      1,271,614$      10,013,708$    7,732,643$      2,281,064$      

Definitions:
  Medi-Cal FFP= Federal Financial Participation Reimbursement
  Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT=State General Funds reimbursement for Medi-Cal services provided to children under the
    "Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment" regulations.
  TCMH=Tri-City's Outpatient Clinic
  MHSA=Mental Health Services Act (Proposition 63)

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH OUTPATIENT CLINIC            
(TCMH)

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT 
(MHSA)

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY                                  
CONSOLIDATED

(UNAUDITED)

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ACTUAL TO BUDGET COMPARISON
FOUR MONTHS ENDING OCTOBER 31, 2023



5 of 8

COMMENT:  PLEASE NOTE, THE DISCUSSION BELOW MAY USE THE FOLLOWING ABBREVIATIONS:
TCMH==TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH (OUTPATIENT CLINIC OPERATIONS)
MHSA==MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (ACTIVITIES INCLUDE CSS, PEI, INN, WET AND CFTN PROGRAMS)

Net Operating Revenues

   Net operating revenues are higher than the budget by $892 thousand for the following reasons:  

1 Medi-Cal FFP revenues for FY 2023-24 were $428 thousand higher than the budget. Medi-Cal FFP revenues were approximately $389
thousand higher for TCMH and $39 thousand lower for MHSA.  At TCMH, the adult program revenues were higher than budget by $102
thousand and the children program revenues were higher by $287 thousand. For MHSA, the adult and older adult FSP programs were
lower than budget by $217 thousand and the Children and TAY FSP programs were higher by $256 thousand. Additionally, as the result
of the fiscal year 2020-21 interim cost report settlement, a total of approximately $77 thousand in prior year Medi-Cal FFP revenues were
recorded to the current year operations.

2 Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT revenues for fiscal year 2023-24 were higher than budget by approximately $668 thousand of which $318 thousand
higher were from TCMH and $350 thousand higher were from MHSA. As was mentioned above, an additional $32 thousand in prior year
Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT revenue were recorded to the current year operations. SGF-EPSDT relates to State for provision of qualifying
Medi-Cal services for Early Prevention Screening and Diagnostic Testing (EPSDT) to children and youth under 21 years. 

3 Medicare revenues are $2 thousand higher than the budget. Tri-City records revenue when the services are provided and the claims are
incurred and submitted.

4 Contract revenues are $6 thousand lower than the budget..

5 Rent Incomes are approximately $1 thousand lower than the budget. The rental income represents the payments collected from Genoa
pharmacy for space leasing at the 2008 N. Garey Avenue and from the tenants staying at the MHSA house on Park Avenue.

6 Provision for contractual disallowances for fiscal year 2023-24 was higher than budget by $307 thousand including prior years amount.

Operating Expenses

   Operating expenses were lower than budget by approximately $1.5 million for the following reasons:

1 Salaries and benefits are approximately $1.5 million lower than budget and of that amount, salaries and benefits are $714 thousand
lower for TCMH operations and are $810 thousand lower for MHSA operations. These variances are due to the following:

TCMH salaries are lower than budget by $413 thousand due to vacant positions and benefits are lower than budget by $301 thousand.
Benefits are budgeted as a percentage of the salaries. Therefore, when salaries are lower, benefits will also be lower.

MHSA salaries are lower than budget by $465 thousand. The direct program salary costs are lower by $458 thousand due to vacant
positions and the administrative salary costs are lower than budget by $7 thousand. Benefits are lower than the budget by $345 thousand
Of that, health insurance is lower than budget by $187 thousand, retirement insurance is lower by $73 thousand, state unemployment
insurance is lower by $45 thousand, workers compensation is lower by $10 thousand, medicare tax and other insurances are lower by
$30 thousand. 

2 Facility and equipment operating costs were lower than the budget by $12 thousand of which $14 thousand lower were from TCMH
and $2 thousand higher were from MHSA. Overall, building and facility costs were higher by $16 thousand and equipment expenses were 
lower by $28 thousand.

3 Client program costs are higher than the budget by approximately $302 thousand due to a payment of $396 thousand to the City of
Pomona Hope for Home Year-Round Emergency Shelter early in the fiscal year while the budget is spread out over the whole fiscal year.

4 Grants for fiscal year 2023-24 are $58 thousand lower than the budget. These are the community grants awarded under the PEI
Community Wellbeing project and the Student Loan Forgiveness program under the WET plan which was planned to be disbursed
later in June.

5 MHSA learning and training costs are $5 thousand higher than the budget.

6 Depreciation and amortization are $4 thousand lower than the budget.

7 Other operating expenses were lower than the budget by $200 thousand of which approximately $128 thousand higher were from
TCMH and $328 thousand lower were from MHSA. At TCMH, liability insurance was higher by $78 thousand mainly from the 50% share of
cost for the Psychiatric Assessment Care Team (PACT) program with the City of Claremont Police Department and also the attorney fees
were higher than the budget by $51 thousand. As for MHSA, professional fees were lower than the budget by $143 thousand due to INN
Tech Suite program and Psychiatric Advance Directives program and IT expenses under the CFTN plan were lower by $326 thousand.
These lower expenses are offset with higher attorney fees, security expense and dues and subscription fees.

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ACTUAL TO BUDGET VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS

FOUR MONTHS ENDING OCTOBER 31, 2023



6 of 8

COMMENT:  PLEASE NOTE, THE DISCUSSION BELOW MAY USE THE FOLLOWING ABBREVIATIONS:
TCMH==TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH (OUTPATIENT CLINIC OPERATIONS)
MHSA==MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (ACTIVITIES INCLUDE CSS, PEI, INN, WET AND CFTN PROGRAMS)

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ACTUAL TO BUDGET VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS

FOUR MONTHS ENDING OCTOBER 31, 2023



7 of 8

COMMENT:  PLEASE NOTE, THE DISCUSSION BELOW MAY USE THE FOLLOWING ABBREVIATIONS:
TCMH==TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH (OUTPATIENT CLINIC OPERATIONS)
MHSA==MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (ACTIVITIES INCLUDE CSS, PEI, INN, WET AND CFTN PROGRAMS)

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
ACTUAL TO BUDGET VARIANCE EXPLANATIONS

FOUR MONTHS ENDING OCTOBER 31, 2023

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

   Non-operating revenues, net, are lower than budget by $344 as follows:

1 TCMH non-operating revenues are $368 thousand lower than the budget. Of that, realignment fund was lower than the budget by $248
thousand, grants and contracts were lower by approximately $150 thousand from the Crisis Care Mobil Units (CCMU) and Mental Health
Student Services Act (MHSSA) programs.  Offset with these lower revenues was the higher interest income net with fair market value by
$31 thousand.

2 MHSA non-operating revenue is lower than the budget by $126 thousand.
In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board, MHSA funds received and available to be spent must be recorded as
non-operating revenue as soon as the funds are received. Funds are available to be spent when an MHSA plan and related programs
have been approved and the proposed expenditures for those programs have been approved through an MHSA plan, MHSA update,
or State Oversight and Accountability Commission. 

The differences in actual to budget are broken out as follows:
Actual Budget Variance

CSS funds received and available to be spent 11,610,705$   11,610,705$   -$                
PEI funds received and available to be spent 3,209,793        3,336,068       (126,275)         
WET funds received and available to be spent -                   -                  -                  
CFTN funds received and available to be spent -                   -                  -                  
INN funds received and available to be spent 592,572           592,572          -                  

Non-operating revenues recorded 15,413,070$   15,539,345$   (126,275)$       

CSS recorded revenue is in line with the budget.

PEI recorded revenue is lower than budget by $126 thousand. The difference is due to the amount received and available for the PEI plan
through October 2023. The additional funds received during the fiscal year 2023-24 will be recorded as revenue up to the budgeted
amount.

INN recorded revenue is in line with the budget.

Interest income net with Fair Market Value for MHSA is higher than budget by $150 thousand.

Special Item:  Reorganization income: this caption included any expense or income recognized as a result of the bankruptcy.
In October 2023, Tri City received  $241,378 from Los Angeles County in payment for the FY1999-00 SB90 claims. This amount
was a pass-through payment due Tri-City from the State as determined by the final audit settlement performed by the State
Controller's Office. The pre-petition SB90 claims were fully reserved in fiscal 2006-07 and reflected as an expense under Special
Items-SB90 Claims Reserves, therefore, Tri-City now recognizes the receipt of SB90 receivables as income under Special Items.
It also should be noted that this transaction completed and closed out the last bankruptcy item that was remained on Tri-City's books.



TCMH MHSA Consolidated TCMH MHSA Consolidated
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited

REVENUES
Medi-Cal FFP, net of reserves 1,317,422$      1,367,598$    2,685,019$       839,759$         932,042$       1,771,802$       
Medi-Cal FFP FYE Prior Year 67,297             3,039             70,336              -                   -                 -                   
Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT 291,998           321,257         613,255            177,820           220,663         398,482            
Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT Prior Year 3,379               25,813           29,192              -                   -                 -                   
Medicare 2,374               1,778             4,151                3,656               1,287             4,943                
Realignment 1,218,450        -                 1,218,450         1,218,450        -                 1,218,450         
MHSA funds -                   15,413,070    15,413,070       -                   14,780,860    14,780,860       
Grants and contracts 213,559           10,285           223,844            8,903               9,987             18,890              
Patient fees and insurance 21                    62                  83                     256                  57                  313                   
Rent income - TCMH & MHSA Housing 3,696               22,586           26,282              3,696               23,407           27,103              
Other income 85                    46                  130                   254                  74                  328                   
Interest Income 74,435             408,365         482,799            (2,590)              (38,212)          (40,802)            
Receipt of SB90 claims previously reserved 241,378           -                 241,378            -                   -                 -                   

Total Revenues 3,434,092            17,573,898        21,007,991          2,250,203            15,930,164        18,180,367          

EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 2,761,729        5,734,180      8,495,909         3,037,125        4,589,060      7,626,185         
Facility and equipment operating cost 191,459           413,543         605,002            205,752           414,014         619,765            
Client lodging, transportation, and supply expense 104,933           425,187         530,120            5,778               28,020           33,798              
Depreciation & amortization 98,930             203,103         302,033            106,687           206,280         312,968            
Other operating expenses 301,056           760,164         1,061,220         248,854           486,987         735,841            

Total Expenses 3,458,107            7,536,176          10,994,283          3,604,195            5,724,362          9,328,557            

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (24,015)            10,037,722    10,013,708       (1,353,992)       10,205,802    8,851,810         
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,333,454            28,503,370    36,836,825       7,995,472            25,853,634        33,849,106       
NET POSITION, END OF MONTH 8,309,439$          38,541,093$      46,850,532$        6,641,480$          36,059,437$      42,700,917$        

NOTE:  This presentation of the Change in Net Assets is NOT in accordance with GASB, but is presented only for a simple review of Tri-City's revenue sources and
    expenses. 

Definitions:
  Medi-Cal FFP= Federal Financial Participation Reimbursement
  Medi-Cal SGF-EPSDT=State General Funds reimbursement for Medi-Cal services provided to children under the "Early and
    Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment" regulations.
  TCMH=Tri-City's Outpatient Clinic
  MHSA=Mental Health Services Act (Proposition 63)

PERIOD ENDED 10/31/23 PERIOD ENDED 10/31/22

TRI-CITY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOUR MONTHS ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2023 AND 2022



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 
 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
MONTHLY STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
DATE: December 20, 2023 
 
TO:   Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
  Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Elizabeth Renteria, LCSW, Chief Clinical Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Clinical Services Report 
 
 
CLINICAL PROGRAM UPDATES 
 
The clinical report this month includes monthly program updates and the yearly data for 
the Access to Care Program. 
 
ACCESS TO CARE YEARLY DATA 7/1/2022-6/30/2023 
 
PROGRAM: Access to Care (ATC) 
  
HOW MUCH DID WE 
DO?     
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

48%
30%

19%
3%

0%
20%
40%
60%

Call Walk-in SRTS Other

Type of Service Request by Adults
50%

30%
17%

3%
0%

20%
40%
60%

Call Walk-in SRTS Other

Type of Service Request by Childrens

131 140 145 146 118 152 136 133 170 144 173 160

47 55 64 79
57

54 58 68
76

61
86

64

0

100

200

300

Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Service Requests by Month

Adults Children

2,517 
Service Requests 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Mental Health Commission 
Monthly Staff Report of Elizabeth Renteria, LCSW Chief Clinical Officer 
December 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Demographics from all Service Requests 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADULT PROGRAM SUMMARY 

 

281 
Services Request from 
Hospital Discharges 
Adults 

76 
Services Request from 
Hospital Discharges 
Childrens 

13% 18%

62%

8%
0%

20%
40%
60%
80%

0-15 16-25 26-59 60+

Age Group

46%
54%

Gender

Male

Female 3% 4%

83%

4% 6%
0%

20%
40%
60%
80%

100%

City

1% 2%
13% 18%

3%

52%

12%

0%

20%

40%

60%

Race

86%

12% 1% 1%
0%

50%

100%

English Spanish Another
language

Not
Reported

Age Group

1,942 
Intake Appointments 
Given to Client 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Mental Health Commission 
Monthly Staff Report of Elizabeth Renteria, LCSW Chief Clinical Officer 
December 20, 2023 
Page 3 
 
  
 

  

THERAPEUTIC COMMUNITY GARDEN 
 
Joslyn Senior Center Highlight  
 
TCG Team joined with the Joslyn Center to provide a workshop to revitalize and refresh 
some planters with new plants that the attendees at the center can watch grow and benefit 
from over time. The participants engaged in learning about how engaging in a variety of 
activities helps the brain continue to produce neurons and create more neural pathways 
to assist in maintaining function as we age. This was connected to how nature can also 
benefit from refreshing every now and then. Such as refreshing the soil to assist plants in 
growing healthier. The participants could not wait to garden and the results were beautiful.  
 

Total Number of 
completed Adult Service 

Requests 

127 

This graph above compares the number of services requests from last month, October 
2023 and last year, November 2022 to the current month, November 2023. There was an 
19% decrease in the number of service requests from last month. 
 

121

5 1
0

20
40
60
80

100
120
140

Adult ATC Adult- FSP ATC OAdult  FSP ATC

Total # of Service Requests by Program- AAOP

156
127 119

0

50

100

150

200

LAST MONTH: OCT 2023 CURRENT MONTH: NOV 2023 LAST YEAR: NOV 2022

Service Request (AAOP)- Time Based Comparisson

19% decrease from last 
 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Mental Health Commission 
Monthly Staff Report of Elizabeth Renteria, LCSW Chief Clinical Officer 
December 20, 2023 
Page 4 
 

     
 

Above: Two pictures on the left are the photos of the planter before the participants 
refreshed the soil and added new plants. The two pictures on the right are the newly 

revitalized planters with aloe and mint. 
Fall in the Farm Highlight  
 
Pomona Fairplex had their annual Fall in the Farm on Saturday, November 18th. TCG 
team set up an interactive resource booth where individuals who stopped by at TCG booth 
had the opportunity to use their sense of smell to guess the different herbs hidden inside 
each jar. If individuals guessed three out of five correct, they were provided a Teddy Bear 
Sunflower seed packet or a Poppy Flower seed packet, to attract pollinators in their 
garden and be Pollinator Heros. Through this wonderful interactive booth, the TCG team 
received various visitors, where 136 seed packets were dispersed, and 197 individuals 
connected with the TCG team. Additionally, Kyra Saegusa, Community Gardener and 
Elizabeth Fajardo, Behavioral Health Specialist promoted the TCG program thoroughly 
for community members. 
 
Harrison Elementary School Highlight  
 
Finding your calm was the main objective through Harrison Elementary workshop on 
Thursday, November 30th. Students were able to learn about mindfulness through 
creating mindfulness sachets with their parents or guardians and connect with herbs 
(lavender, mint, lemon balm, and roses) with their sense of smell, touch, and sight. 
Students can often experience stressors due to the responsibilities of completing 
assignments, projects or preparing for an exam; through the mindfulness guide of creating 
their sachet with parent or guardian the students were able to enhance their 
communication skills and learn how to regulate their emotions. In total we had 3 families 
for a total of 9 participants for the Harrison Elementary workshop.  
 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Mental Health Commission 
Monthly Staff Report of Elizabeth Renteria, LCSW Chief Clinical Officer 
December 20, 2023 
Page 5 
 

  
 
Above: Picture on the left is TCG resource booth at Future Forward event. Picture in the middle 

is TCG interactive booth at Fall in the Farm, Fairplex. Picture on the right is Harrison 
Elementary workshop materials for mindfulness sachet activity.  

 
CHILD AND FAMILY SERVICES 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Number of 
completed Adult Service 

Requests 

85 

82

1 2
0

20

40

60

80

100

Child ATC Child- FSP ATC CTAY ATC

Total # of Service Requests by Program- CFS



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Mental Health Commission 
Monthly Staff Report of Elizabeth Renteria, LCSW Chief Clinical Officer 
December 20, 2023 
Page 6 
 

  

  
 

95
85

73

0

20

40

60

80

100

LAST MONTH: OCT 2023 CURRENT MONTH: NOV 2023 LAST YEAR: NOV 2022

Service Request (CFS)- Time Based Comparisson 

This graph above compares the number of services requests from last month, October 2023 
and last year, November 2022 to the current month, November 2023. There was a 16% 
increase in the number of service requests from last year. 
 

16% increase from last 
 



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
MONTHLY STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
DATE: December 20, 2023 
 
TO:   Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
  Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Seeyam Teimoori, M.D., Medical Director 
 
SUBJECT: Medical Director’s Monthly Report 
 

 
SERVICES PROVIDED BY TRI-CITY INTENSIVE OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT 
TEAM (IOET), and PACT TEAMS IN NOVEMBER 2023 
 
IOET Program 
 
o Number of all new outreach= 55 
o Number client given intake appointments= 19 
o Number of clients opened= 12 
o Total number of ALL clients outreached= 184 
o Total number of homeless served= 113 
o Percentage of clients outreached that are homeless= 61%  
o Percentage of clients enrolled this month in formal services that are homeless= 17% 

 
Service area: 
 

o Laverne= 2 
o Pomona= 172 
o Claremont= 10 
o Total= 184 

 
Enrollments: 

 
o FSP (Full-Service Partnership)-Older Adult= 2 
o FSP-adult= 3 
o FSP-TAY (Transition Age Youth) = 0 
o AOP (Adult Outpatient Program) = 4 
o COP (Children Outpatient Program) = 2 
o FCCS (Field Capable Clinical Services) = 0 
o FSP Children= 0 
 

 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of Dr. Seeyam Teimoori 
December 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Health Issues: 
 

o Number of initial health assessments completed= 25 
o Number of clients linked to PCP appointments with IOET LPT= 9 

 

P.A.C.T. (Psychiatric Assessment Care Team) 
 
o Number of new individuals added for the month= 10 
o Number of holds written for the month= 3 hold 
o Number enrolled in formal services for the month= 0 
o Number referred to Navigators this month= 3 

 
Pop Up Clinic  
 

o Total of attendees= 32 
o Non-enrolled clients = 20 
o Community Member = 2 
o Total Rx written = 30 

  
Psychiatric services 
 

o Initial Medication Appointment Authorization-57  
o Total Scheduled for October = 89 (To see a psychiatrist) 



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Monthly Staff Report 

DATE: December 20, 2023 
 
TO:  Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority  

Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director                  
 
FROM: Dana Barford, Director of MHSA and Ethnic Services      

 
SUBJECT: Monthly MHSA and Ethnic Services Report 
 

      
COMMUNITY PLANNING PROCESS  
 
In November there was a focus on preparing and scheduling ‘mini’ stakeholder meetings 
for the community. Sara Rodriguez, MHSA Projects Manager, attended the La Verne 
Youth and Family Action Committee to provide a presentation on the Mental Health 
Services Act and the programming made available through this funding source. Attendees 
included school representatives, the La Verne police department and city government 
officials were able to learn more about Tri-City services, enhance their understanding of 
how to access different programming, and leave written and/or verbal feedback related 
to their local community mental health services. Future presentations based on current 
discussions with community partners include Pomona Valley Hospital Medical Center, 
Sustainable Claremont, and La Verne Veterans of Foreign Wars.   
 
DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION (DEI) 

In the month of November, the DEI Coordinator posted a call-to-action Advertorial for La 
Nueva Voz Pomona “Supporting mental wellness in Indigenous communities during 
National Native American Heritage Month”. Through this article, TCHM invites individuals, 
cultural groups, and organizations to join our Wellness Collaboratives. These community-
led partnerships consist of community members, advocates, clients, family members, 
local service providers, and TCMH staff. TCMH aims to improve services that impact the 
holistic health and wellness of Native and Indigenous people. Through community 
involvement and advocacy, the hope is to collectively contribute and ensure that the 
mental health needs of individuals and families are acknowledged and met.  
 
PREVENTION AND EARLY INTERVENTION (PEI) 
 
Community Trainings 
 
For the month of December, staff is currently scheduled to provide a webinar in 
partnership with NAMI Pomona Valley called: “In Our Own Voice” which will be open to 
all residents, service providers, community groups and organizations in Pomona, 
Claremont, and La Verne. This free presentation provides a personal perspective of 
mental health conditions, as leaders with lived experience talk openly about what it's like 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of MHSA 
December 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 
to have a mental health condition. Tri-City staff will continue to outreach and engage other 
community partners and provide training, workshops, and presentations per their request.  
 
Stigma Reduction 
 
Over the next few months, Tri-City’s speakers bureau program, Courageous Minds will 
be recruiting for their next cohort. This will be a 5 week-long training that meets once a 
week and partakes in workshops that will help guide them with their storytelling and 
provide an opportunity to practice public speaking. To qualify, participants must reside in 
the Tri-City area, be at least 18+ years or older, and commit to attend all 5 workshops. 
Once participants complete the program, they will be given a platform during Green 
Ribbon Week (March 17-23, 2024) to share their mental health and recovery story.  
 
COMMUNITY NAVIGATORS  
 
The Community Navigator Program has been identifying and verifying different holiday 
resources that are being offered in the community. This includes places that are offering 
food or hot meals for the holidays, free toys, and free holiday events such as tree lighting 
in the community. Every year the Community Navigator program creates a holiday list of 
resources, and the list is shared with the community and the families that are served at 
Tri-City Mental Health.  
 
Success Story: The Community Navigator program continues to work with families that 
were previously placed in the motel voucher program through the Homeless 
Implementation Grant. With the goal of finding permanent housing, one particular family 
of 3, continued to work with the Community Navigator who advocated for their Section 8 
voucher to be reinstated after expiring. In collaboration with the City of Pomona, the 
Section 8 voucher was reinstated, and the family recently identified qualified housing and 
will now be permanently housed by Christmas.  
 
WELLNESS CENTER                                                                                                                                                       
 
During the month of November, the Wellness Center continued its commitment to help 
the community with their holiday needs. With the understanding that many families 
struggle financially during the holidays, the Family Wellbeing Program stepped in to help. 
Ten families were identified as being in need and then with the support of the Wellness  
 
Center received a turkey with a food basket to help provide a traditional Thanksgiving 
meal. All ten families expressed gratitude to the program and the support they received. 
The Center also again hosted the very popular tree lighting event on December 1st which 
was well attended.   
 
 



Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director 
Monthly Staff Report of MHSA 
December 20, 2023 
Page 3 
 
WORKFORCE EDUCATION AND TRAINING  
 
Training: WET staff hosted 12 training opportunities for staff during the month of 
November.  These included the first training that focused on disabilities. Tri-City also held 
the first part of Reducing Revictimization Risk for Commercial Sexual Exploitation of 
Children (CSEC) Among Youth with Gaby Grant with the second part concluding in 
December.  
 
Service Learners: Tri-City had several new inquiries and applications for Service 
Learners in the month of November. Two of them are in the process of completing 
background checks. Staff are working with Tri-City’s Human Resource Department to 
create a path for 16/17-year-olds to volunteer year-round as there has been an increase 
in requests from local high schools and students who would like to volunteer and receive 
service hours towards graduation. 
 
INNOVATIONS  
 
Help@Hand: On November 11th the Innovation team attended the Help@Hand 
Collaborative Workshop in Sacramento. The workshop gave counties the opportunity to  
discuss their projects in more detail and provide feedback on what aspects of their project 
were successful. Focusing on the successes was key in creating the messaging for the 
close out of this project. Tri-City’s Help@Hand project myStrength, concludes on 
December 5th.  
 
Psychiatric Advance Directives (PADs): Staff are currently working with the PADs Project 
Manager and contractor Chorus on a date to present to the City of La Verne, La Verne 
Police Department, La Verne Crisis Teams, and the University of La Verne for further 
engagement and launch of PADs within La Verne. In addition, efforts are underway to 
establish a TAY focus group for the project. One community partner who is also a Tri-City 
grantee, Just Us 4 Youth, has expressed interest in hosting this focus group.  
 
New Innovation Project: For the Community Planning Process Project internal 
brainstorming sessions are taking place to discuss what foundational aspects need to be 
established first, in order to create an organized timeline for the project. In addition, staff 
are in the process of identifying consultants to assist with the outreach, marketing and 
facilitation of focus groups.  
 



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14 
 

Tri-City Mental Health Authority 
MONTHLY STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
DATE: December 20, 2023 
 
TO:  Governing Board of Tri-City Mental Health Center  
  Rimmi Hundal, Executive Director             
 
FROM:  Natalie Majors-Stewart, LCSW, Chief Compliance Officer  

 
SUBJECT: Monthly Best Practices Report 
 

 
ELECTRONIC HEALTH RECORD - GROUP TREATMENT MODULE 
 
Best Practices collaborated with the Revenue and Clinical Departments to further develop 
and optimize the functionality of the electronic health record’s group treatment module. 
The following items were developed:  
 
 Group claiming configuration  
 Group billing accuracy 
 Group claiming procedures  
 Group documentation procedures 
 Group set-up & navigation procedures 

Group treatment is an essential part of the mental health service array. Not only can group 
treatment have a positive impact on recovery, but group treatment can help with 
increasing access to services.  
 
Training for all service providers will take place over the next few months, in order to 
maximize our group treatment effort and to ensure that agency providers can effectively 
use the group treatment module to manage and capture their group treatment services.  
 
INCIDENT REPORTS: SUBMISSION AND TRACKING 
 
Best Practices, Facilities and Human Resources have been working together to update 
our internal incident report submission and tracking process.  

Internal incident reporting is essential to agency operations and is part of our legal 
responsibility and commitment to safety. The purpose of this process update is to simplify 
and streamline incident reporting.  

Additionally, the new process will help improve incident report tracking and analysis.  


	2023-12-20 Governing Board Meeting Agenda
	Item No 1. 2023-09-12 Minutes-MHC Regular Meeting
	Item No 2. Selection of Ad Hoc Committee Members 12202023
	Attachment 2A. CBHPC 2023 Data Notebook Survey Document

	Item No 3. 2023-08-09 Minutes-Governing Board Adjourned Regular Minutes
	Item No 4. 2023-11-15 Minutes-Governing Board Regular Meeting
	Item No 5. 2023 GB Meeting Schedule Staff Report 12202023
	Attachment 5A. Resolution 727. 231220 Adopting 2024 GB-MHC Meeting Schedule
	Exhibit A. 2024 GB & MHC Mtg Schedule


	Item No 6. FY 2022-23 Published Rates Increase Report 11082023
	Attachment 6A. Resolution 728. 231220 Adopting FY 2022-23 Published Rates

	Item No 7. Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement Agenda Report 12202023
	Attachment 7A. Resolution 729. 231220 Approving Subordination&Intercreditor Agreement for Claremont Gardens Project
	Attachment 7B. Subordination and Intercreditor Agreement Effective 12202023

	Item No 8. TCMHA-LACDA CoC Agreement Agenda Report 12202023
	Attachment 8A. Resolution 730. 231220 Authorizing CoC Agreement with LACDA
	Attachment 8B. LACDA & TCMHA Agmt -TBRA Prog Re CoC No CA0800L9D002214 TCMHA Agreement

	Item No 9. Executive Director Monthly Report 12202023
	Item No 10. Chief Financial Officer Monthly Report 12202023
	Attachment 10A. 10-31-2023 Unaudited Financial Statements 12202023
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Cash Flow
	Actual to Budget Summary
	Actual to Budget Variations
	Attachment 2


	Item No 11. Chief Clinical Officer Montlhy Report 12202023
	Item No 12. Medical Director Monthly Report 12202023
	Item No 13. Director of MHSA & Ethnic Services Monthly Report 12202023
	Item No 14. Chief Compliance Officer Monthly Report 12202023


